I







AMMRC TR 81-41

TRANSPARENT POLYOLEFIN FILM ARMOR

August 1981

RALPH SHELTON Swedlow, Inc. 12122 Western Avenue Garden Grove, California 92645



81

AD

FINAL REPORT

Contract No. DAAG46-76-C-0034

059

Approved for public release; distribution unlimited.



Prepared for

ARMY MATERIALS AND MECHANICS RESEARCH CENTER Watertown, Massachusetts 02172

The findings in this report are not to be construed as an official Department of the Army position, unless so designated by other authorized documents.

. .

- -

. .

• •

Mention of any trade names or manufacturers in this report shall not be construed as advertising nor as an official indorsement or approval of such products or companies by the United States Government.

DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS

Dercroy this report when it is no longer needed. Do not return it to the origenator.

REPORT HUMBER 1 <	T'S CATALOG NUMBER
AMMRC TR 81-41 H D-A 1.07 TYPE OF TYPE OF TY	
ANDREC IK SI-41 ITLE (and Sublide) TITLE (and Sublide) TRANSPARENT POLYOLEFIN FILM ARMOR AUTHOR(*/ Ralph Shelton PERFOMMING ORGANIZATION NAME AND ADDRESS Swedlow, Inc. 10. PROFA Ralph Shelton PERFOMMING ORGANIZATION NAME AND ADDRESS Swedlow, Inc. 12122 Western Avenue Garden Grove, California 92645 CONTROLLING OFFICE NAME AND ADDRESS ATTN: DRXMR-AP Waterials and Mechanics Research Center ATTN: DRXMR-AP Watertown, Massachusetts 02172 WONTORING AGENCY NAME & ADDRESS(if different from Controlling Office) IS. SECURI Uncla 13. NUMBER Watertown, Massachusetts 02172 WONTORING AGENCY NAME & ADDRESS(if different from Controlling Office) IS. SECURI DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the abstract missed in Block 20. If different from Report) SUPPLEMENTARY HOTES This project has been acComplished as part of the U.S. Ar Methods and Technology Program, which has as its objectiv establishment of manufacturing processes, techniques or e insure the efficient production of current or future defe KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side If necessary and identify by block number) Transparent armor Polyolefin Films Windows ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse side If necessary are Identify by block number)	
SUPPLEMENTARY HOTES S. (WE DO Supplementary Supplementary Supplementary Supplementar	
TRANSPARENT POLYOLEFIN FILM ARMOR AUTHOR(*) AUTHOR(*) Ralph Shelton PERFONMING ORGANIZATION NAME AND ADDRESS Swedlow, Inc. 12122 Western Avenue Garden Grove, California 92645 CONTROLLING OFFICE NAME AND ADDRESS ATMY Materials and Mechanics Research Center ATTN: DRXMR-AP Wateriown, Massachusetts 02172 MONITORING AGENCY NAME & ADDRESS(# different from Controlling Office) 13. SECURI Uncla 15. SECURI Uncla 15. SECURI Uncla 15. SECURI DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the abstract entered in Black 20. If different from Report) SUMPLEMENTARY NOTES This project has been accomplished as part of the U.S. Ar Methods and Technology Program, which has as its objectiv establishment of manufacturing processes, techniques or e insure the efficient production of current or future defe KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side If necessary and identify by black number) Transparent armor Polyolefin Films Windows ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse side If necessary and identify by black number)	REPORT & PERIOD COVERE
TRANSPARENT POLYOLEFIN FILM ARMOR 5.730 Authoria Ferror Authoria Ferror Authoria DAAG4 Authoria DAAG4 Authoria DAAG4 Performing ORGANIZATION NAME AND ADDRESS D. PROGR Swedlow, Inc. D/A P Controlling Orfice NAME AND ADDRESS D/A P Army Materials and Mechanics Research Center // Au ATTN: DRXMR-AP DIXTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the Report) Watertown, Massachusetts 02172 Uncla Wohltofing Agency NAME & ADDRESS(if different from Controlling Office) 15. SECURI Uncla Uncla Screed Distribution unlimited. Distribution Statement (of the abstreat missed in Black 20. If different from Report) Approved for public release; distribution unlimited. Distribution and Technology Program, which has as its objectiv stablishment of manufacturing processes, techniques or e insure the efficient production of current or future defe KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side if necessery and identify by black number) Transparent armor Polyolefin Films Windows ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse side If n	Report -
AUTHOR(*) AUTHOR(*) Ralph Shelton PERFORMING ORGANIZATION NAME AND ADDRESS Swedlow, Inc. 12122 Western Avenue Garden Grove, California 92645 CONTROLLING OFFICE NAME AND ADDRESS ATTMY Materials and Mechanics Research Center ATTN: DRXMR-AP Wateriow, Massachusetts 02172 MONITORING AGENCY NAME & ADDRESS(# different from Controlling Office) 13. SECURI Uncla 15. SECURI 15. S	10 LU 2/20/01
AUTHOR:#/ ECONTRA Ralph Shelton // DAAG4 PERFORMING ORGANIZATION NAME AND ADDRESS Swedlow, Inc. 12122 Western Avenue Garden Grove, California 92645 CONTROLLING OFFICE NAME AND ADDRESS Army Materials and Mechanics Research Center //) Au ATTN: DRXMR-AP // 13. NUMBER Watertown, Massachusetts 02172 MONITORING AGENCY NAME & ADDRESS(// different from Controlling Office) // 3. SECURI Uncla 15. SECURI Uncla 15. SECURI Uncla 15. SECURI DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the shared in Block 20. // different from Report) SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES This project has been accomplished as part of the U.S. Ar Methods and Technology Program, which has as its objective establishment of manufacturing processes, techniques or e insure the efficient production of current or future defe KEY WORDS (Continue on reserve and if metastary and identify by block number) Transparent armor Polyolefin Films Windows ABSTRACT (Continue on reserve aids // necessary and identify by block number)	ANG ONG. REPORT NURBER
Ralph Shelton (DAAG4 PERFORMING ORGANIZATION NAME AND ADDRESS 0. PROGN. Swedlow, Inc. 12.2 Western Avenue D/A P Garden Grove, California 92645 0./A P Controuling OFFICE NAME AND ADDRESS 12. AEPOR Army Materials and Mechanics Research Center 7/) Au ATTN: DRXMR-AP 13. NUMBER Watertown, Massachusetts 02172 14. NUMBER WONTORING AGENCY NAME & ADDRESS(// different from Controlling Office) 15. SECURI Uncla 15. OBECLY Sched 0.05TRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the Report) Approved for public release; distribution unlimited. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the abstract entered in Block 20. If different from Report) Supplementation of manufacturing processes, techniques or e This project has been accomplished as part of the U.S. Ar Methods and Technology Program, which has as its objectiv establishment of manufacturing processes, techniques or e insure the efficient production of current or future defe KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side If necessery and identify by block number) Transparent armor Polyolefin Films Windows ABSTRACT (Contifnue on reverse side If	CT OR GRANT NUMBER(+)
Ralph Shelton DAAG4 PERFONMING ORGANIZATION NAME AND ADDRESS 10 PROOF. Swedlow, Inc. 1222 Western Avenue D/A P Garden Grove, California 92645 D/A P CONTROLUNG OFFICE NAME AND ADDRESS 12. REFORM Army Materials and Mechanics Research Center 7/) Au ATTN: DRXMR-AP 13. NUMBER Watertown, Massachusetts 02172 13. SECURI WONITORING AGENCY NAME & ADDRESS(If different from Controlling Office) 15. SECURI Uncla 13. OBECLI SCRED 015TRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the Report) Approved for public release; distribution unlimited. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the abstract entered in Black 20. If different from Report) SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES This project has been accomplished as part of the U.S. Ar Methods and Technology Program, which has as its objectiv establishment of manufacturing processes, techniques or e insure the efficient production of current or future defe KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side If necessery and identify by black number) Transparent armor Polyolefin Films Windows ABSTRACT (Continue on revence side If necessery and Identify by black number) <td></td>	
PERFORMING ORGANIZATION NAME AND ADDRESS 10. PROGN. Swedlow, Inc. 11. AREA & CONTROLLING OFFICE NAME AND ADDRESS 12. PROGN. Garden Grove, California 92645 0/A P CONTROLLING OFFICE NAME AND ADDRESS 12. PROGN. ATTN: DRXMR-AP 13. NUMBER Watertown, Massachusetts 02172 14. NUMBER WohitoRing agency name & ADDRESS(II different from Controlling Office) 15. SECURI Uncla 13. NUMBER Watertown, Massachusetts 02172 15. SECURI WohitoRing agency name & ADDRESS(II different from Controlling Office) 15. SECURI Uncla 13. NUMBER Screed 06578:800000000000000000000000000000000000	6-76-C-0034
PERFORMING ORGANIZATION NAME AND ADDRESS 10. PROGR. AREA & Swedlow, Inc. 12122 Western Avenue D/A P Garden Grove, California 92645 D/A P Controcuing ofFICE NAME AND ADDRESS 12. REFOR Army Materials and Mechanics Research Center 7/ Au ATTN: DRXMR-AP 13. NUMBER Watertown, Massachusetts 02172 15. SECURI WONITORING AGENCY NAME & ADDRESS(II different from Controlling Office) 15. SECURI Uncla 15. SECURI Distribution statement (of this Report) Sched Approved for public release; distribution unlimited. 15. Security schedules Distribution statement (of the eduted entered in Block 20. If different from Report) Schedules Supplementary Notes This project has been accomplished as part of the U.S. Ar Methods and Technology Program, which has as its objectiv establishment of manufacturing processes, techniques or e ransparent armor Polyolefin Films Windows ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse edut If necessary and identify by block number)	
Swedlow, Inc. 12122 Western Avenue Garden Grove, California 92645 CONTROLLING OFFICE NAME AND ADDRESS ATTY DRXMR-AP Waterials and Mechanics Research Center ATTN: DRXMR-AP Watertown, Massachusetts 02172 WONITORING AGENCY NAME & ADDRESS(II different from Controlling Office) Uncla 15. SECURI Uncla 16. DECL SCRED DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the Report) Approved for public release; distribution unlimited. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the edutred entered in Block 20, 11 different from Report) SUPPLEMENTARY HOTES This project has been accomplished as part of the U.S. Ar Methods and Technology Program, which has as its objectiv establishment of manufacturing processes, techniques or e insure the efficient production of current or future defe KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side (Interessory and identify by block number) Transparent armor Polyolefin Films Windows ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse side 11 necessory and identify by block number)	MELEMENT PROJECT TAS
12122 Western Avenue D/A P Garden Grove, California 92645 12. REPORT CONTROLING OFFICE NAME AND ADDRESS 12. REPORT Army Materials and Mechanics Research Center 17. NUMBER MATN: DRXMR-AP 13. NUMBER Watertown, Massachusetts 02172 14. REPORT MONITORING AGENCY NAME & ADDRESS(II different from Controlling Office) 15. SECURI Uncla 15. DECL DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the Report) 15. SECURI Approved for public release; distribution unlimited. 15. DECL DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the ebetreet entered in Black 20. If different from Report) 15. Securi Scheding SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES 15. Securi different from Report) Supplet the efficient production of current or future defe 15. Securi different from Report) Transparent armor 16. Inscreasery and identify by black number) Transparent armor 17. Decle and identify by black number) ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse aids If necessery and identify by black number)	WORK UNIT AUMBERS
Garden Grove, California 92645 CONTROLLING OFFICE NAME AND ADDRSSS ATMY Materials and Mechanics Research Center ATTN: DRXMR-AP Wateriown, Massachusetts 02172 MONITORING AGENCY NAME & ADDRESS(II different from Controlling Office) IS SECURI Uncla 15- DECL SCHED DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of this Report) Approved for public release; distribution unlimited. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the obstreet entered in Block 20, 11 different from Report) SUPPLEMENTARY HOTES This project has been accomplished as part of the U.S. Ar Methods and Technology Program, which has as its objectiv establishment of manufacturing processes, techniques or e insure the efficient production of current or future defe KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side 11 necessory and identify by block number) Transparent armor Polyolefin Films Windows ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse side 11 necessory and identify by block number)	roject: 1748035
CONTROLLING OFFICE NAME AND ADDRESS 12. REPOR Army Materials and Mechanics Research Center 7.) Au ATTN: DRXMR-AP 13. Number Watertown, Massachusetts 02172 14. Number WONITORING AGENCY NAME & ADDRESS(II different from Controlling Office) 15. SECURI Uncla 15. SECURI Distribution statement (of the Report) 15. SECURI Approved for public release; distribution unlimited. Distribution statement (of the ebetrect entered in Black 20. II different from Report) Supplementary Notes This project has been accomplished as part of the U.S. Ar Methods and Technology Program, which has as its objectiv establishment of manufacturing processes, techniques or e insure the efficient production of current or future defe KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side If necessery and identify by black number) Transparent armor Polyolefin Films Windows	and 1758035
Army Materials and Mechanics Research Center ATTN: DRXMR-AP Watertown, Massachusetts 02172 MONITORING AGENCY NAME & ADDRESS(II different from Controlling Office) 15. SECURI Uncla 15. DECL OUSTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of this Report) Approved for public release; distribution unlimited. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the ebetrect entered in Black 20, 11 different from Report) SUPPLEMENTARY HOTES This project has been accomplished as part of the U.S. Ar Methods and Technology Program, which has as its objectiv establishment of manufacturing processes, techniques or e insure the efficient production of current or future defe KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side II necessary and identify by block number) Transparent armor Polyolefin Films Windows ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse side II necessary and identify by block number)	OATE
ATTN: DRXMR-AP Watertown, Massachusetts 02172 MONITORING AGENCY NAME & ADDRESS(II different from Controlling Office) Uncla 15. SECURI Uncla 15. OECCI 015TRIBUTION STATEMENT (of this Report) Approved for public release; distribution unlimited. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the observed entered in Black 20. II different from Report) SUPPLEMENTARY HOTES This project has been accomplished as part of the U.S. Ar Methods and Technology Program, which has as its objectiv establishment of manufacturing processes, techniques or e insure the efficient production of current or future defe KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side II necessary and identify by block number) Transparent armor Polyolefin Films Windows ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse side II necessary and identify by block number)	gust 1981
Watertown, Massachusetts 02172 WONITORING AGENCY NAME & ADDRESS(II different from Controlling Office) 15. SECURI Uncla 15. SECURI Uncla 15. OECC: SCREE DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the Report) Approved for public release; distribution unlimited. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the obstreet entered in Block 20, 11 different from Report) SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES This project has been accomplished as part of the U.S. Ar Methods and Technology Program, which has as its objectiv establishment of manufacturing processes, techniques or e insure the efficient production of current or future defe KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side if necessary and identify by block number) Transparent armor Polyolefin Films Windows ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse side If necessary and identify by block number)	OF PAGES
WONITORING AGENCY NAME & ADDRESS(II different from Controlling Office) 15. SECURI Uncla 15. SECURI Uncla 15. SECURI OSTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of this Report) Approved for public release; distribution unlimited. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the obstreet entered in Black 20. If different from Report) SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES This project has been accomplished as part of the U.S. Ar Methods and Technology Program, which has as its objectiv establishment of manufacturing processes, techniques or e insure the efficient production of current or future defe KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side if necessary and identify by black number) Transparent armor Polyolefin Films Windows ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse side If necessary and identify by black number)	50
Uncla 19. DECL SCHED OISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the Report) Approved for public release; distribution unlimited. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the ebetrect entered in Block 20, 11 different from Report) SUPPLEMENTARY HOTES This project has been accomplished as part of the U.S. Ar Methods and Technology Program, which has as its objectiv establishment of manufacturing processes, techniques or e insure the efficient production of current or future defe KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side 11 necessory and identify by block number) Transparent armor Polyolefin Films Windows ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse side 11 necessory and identify by block number)	TY CLASS. (of this report)
Uncla Ise DECLA DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of this Report) Approved for public release; distribution unlimited. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the ebetred in Block 20, 11 different from Report) SUPPLEMENTARY HOTES This project has been accomplished as part of the U.S. Ar Methods and Technology Program, which has as its objectiv establishment of manufacturing processes, techniques or e insure the efficient production of current or future defe KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side 11 necessory and identify by block number) Transparent armor Polyolefin Films Windows ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse side 11 necessory and identify by block number)	
IS. DECLY SCHED DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of this Report) Approved for public release; distribution unlimited. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the abstract entered in Block 20, 11 different from Report) SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES This project has been accomplished as part of the U.S. Ar Methods and Technology Program, which has as its objectiv establishment of manufacturing processes, techniques or e insure the efficient production of current or future defe KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side 11 necessory and identify by block number) Transparent armor Polyolefin Films Windows ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse side 11 necessory and identify by block number)	ssified
DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of this Report) Approved for public release; distribution unlimited. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the observed entered in Block 20, 11 different from Report) SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES This project has been accomplished as part of the U.S. Ar Methods and Technology Program, which has as its objectiv establishment of manufacturing processes, techniques or e insure the efficient production of current or future defe KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse alde If necessary and identify by block number) Transparent armor Polyolefin Films Windows ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse alde If necessary and identify by block number)	SSIFICATION/DOWNGRADING
SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES This project has been accomplished as part of the U.S. Ar Methods and Technology Program, which has as its objectiv establishment of manufacturing processes, techniques or e insure the efficient production of current or future defe KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse aide if necessary and identify by block number) Transparent armor Polyolefin Films Windows ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse aide If necessary and identify by block number)	
insure the efficient production of current or future defe KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse aide if necessary and identify by block number) Transparent armor Polyolefin Films Windows ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse aids If necessary and identify by block number)	my Manufacturing e the timely quipment to
KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse aide if necessary and identify by block number) Transparent armor Polyolefin Films Windows ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse aids II necessary and identify by block number)	nse programs.
Transparent armor Polyolefin Films Windows ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse eids II necessary and Identify by Block number)	
ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse eids II necessary and Identify by block number)	
(See Reverse Side)	

and the state of the state

1.000

ł

,

ļ

Į

]

]

E Francis

AN ADDRESS OF ADDRESS OF

UNCLASSIFIED

SECURITY CLASSIFICATION OF THIS PADE(Shan Date Zeternet)

ABSTRACT

Block No. 20

The general objective of this project was to determine the optimum processing conditions for the large scale conversion, by molding and laminating of oriented polyolefin film into fragment resistant transparent armor suitable for Army aircraft glazing applications. The manufacturing process must produce a laminate with sufficient adhesion to resist debonding during thermal cycling and yet react as a laminar structure during ballistic impact.

To accomplish the objectives required the completion of the following six major tasks.

- Preparation of reference film and sheet to which all other film and sheet could be compared.
- Effect of film characteristics including evaluation of additional films compared with the reference film and the selection of film for optimization.
- Molding of flat sheet to optimize the molding process.
- Protective covers evaluation and selection.
- Process specifications that describes the selected materials and the procedure for converting the film into molded sheet having the desired properties.
- Production of film and bonded sheet in accordance with the process specifications.

These tasks were accomplished in consecutive order so that a film material or processing condition from one task found to improve transparency and ballistic performance could be used in the next task.

These tasks were successfully performed, in the order listed, and the general objective of this project has been achieved. An optimum process has been established, and in the process, areas of further development have been identified.

UNCLASSIFIED

SECURITY CLASSIFICATION OF THIS PAGE(When Date Entered)

FOREWORD

This report covers work performed under contract number DAAG 46-76-C-0034, Amendment Number P000002. This work was performed for the Army Materials and Mechanics Research Center (AMMRC), Watertown, Massachusetts. Mr. Anthony Alesi was the Technical Supervisor.

Acknowledgement is given to Mr. Alesi for his valuable assistance and direction.

In addition, the Swedlow personnel who made significant contributions to the completion of this work are: C. Gibson, J. Peterson, C. Bailey, W. White and W. Harbison.

Accession For
NTIS GFALL 🕎
DIICILP 🕈
Uarenzario
Justicienting
By
District on/
Averbei Feldy Codes
Andre Sior
Dist ' croipl
H

TABLE OF CONTENTS

7 10 10 10 10 10

Title	Page
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY	1
INTRODUCTION	1
BACKGROUND	1
PROCEDURE	2
Task I - Preparation of Reference Film and Sheet	4
Task II - Effect of Film Characteristics	6
Task ill – Molding Flat Sheet	13
Light Transmission and Haze Thickness Deviation of Line of Sight Interlaminar Shear Strength Bond Tensile Strength Resistance to Debonding	22 24 25 26 27 29
Task IV - Protective Covers	35
Task V - Process Specifications	39
Task VI - Production of Film and Bonded Sheet	40
CONCLUSIONS	45
RECOMMENDATIONS	45
DELIVERED ITEMS	47
REFERENCES	49
APPENDIX A - SUMMARY OF MOLDING TRIALS	
APPENDIX B - MOLDING CYCLES	
APPENDIX C - INDIVIDUAL LIGHT TRANSMISSION AND HAZE READINGS	
APPENDIX D - ORIENTATION RELEASE STRESS TEST RESULTS	
APPENDIX E - SPECIFICATIONS	

APPENDIX F - DRAWINGS

فالمتنابط والأشاقات فالمستعملان والمقالة فتشاكر فتخدي مورد مواطئه والنالي ومند

•

1

ļ

• • •

- - - Here

LIST OF FIGURES

3.01.00 X 22

- 42 Miles

Number	Description	Page
1	Box-Behnken Diagram-Parameters Established to Determine Optimum Processing Cycle	15
2	Box-Behnken Diagram-Results of Processing Variables	18
3	Typical Molding Cycle	21
4	Test Specimen Configuration-Interlaminar Shear Strength	26
5	Test Specimen Configuration-Bond Tensile Strength	28
6	Panel Machining Procedure	34
7	AMMRC Drawing CD-I	41

Number	Description	Page
1	Film and Molded Panel Requirements	3
2	Typical Properties-Hercules N-400 Film	4
3	Task II Films	7
4	Task II Films	Ŗ
5	Results of Films Received in Task II	÷
6	Film Rating	, *
7	Results of Orientation Release Stress Testing	1.
8	Results of Film Moldings in Task II	12
9	Typical Properties-Hercules EK-500 Film	13
10	EK-500 Film Properties	14
11	Fisults of Process Optimization	17
12	Results of Resistance to Debonding	19
13	Light Transmission and Haze	23
14	Thickness	24
15	Maximum Deviation of Line of Sight	25
16	Interlaminar Shear Strength	27
17	Bond Tensile Strength	29
18	Results of Resistance to Debonding	30
19	Light Transmission and Haze After Resistance to Debon ling	32
20	Results of EK-500 Panels Molded Using Optimum Conditions	33
21	Light Transmission and Haze of Panels with Protective Covers	37
22	Light Transmission and Haze of Protective Coated Panels	38
23	Light Transmission and Haze of Triangular Windows	42
24	Dimensional Results of Triangular Windows	44

LIST OF TABLES

an Militaria - -

1

vii

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This program has demonstrated the manufacturing technology for a laminated polyolefin film transparency yielding ballistic protection equivalent to polycarbonate at considerable weight savings. Technical requirements met by this program include acceptable levels of light transmission, haze, interply strength, surface protection, optical deviation and ballistic performance. Processing parameter limits were identified through statistical designed experimentation. Typical production transparencies have been delivered for evaluation.

INTRODUCTION

In 1976, the Army Materials and Mechanics Research Center, (AMMRC), Watertown, Mass., contracted with Swedlow, Inc. to determine the optimum processing conditions for the large scale conversion, by molding and laminating of oriented polyolefin film, into fragment resistant transparent armor suitable for Army aircraft glazing applications.

The manufacturing process must produce a laminate with sufficient adhesion to resist debonding during thermal cycling and yet react as a laminar structure during ballistic impact. To maintain the ballistic properties of the oriented film requires that the manufacturing process not disturb the orientation, for complete fusion into a homogenous mass degrades the ballistic capabilities.

In addition to supplying the labor and required facilities, Swedlow applied its experience gained as a fabricator of high-quality aircraft transparencies and structural laminates to the development of the manufacturing technology of transparent polyolefin armor.

BACKGROUND

Early work conducted by AMMRC demonstrated the potential application of molded oriented polyolefin as a fragment resistant transparent armor material.

This early work was done by AMMRC using a polyolefin film with a fluid compression rolling orientation of approximately 4.5: 1, (four and one half times its original length). Such orientation increases the tensile strength from approximately 4800 PSI to 33,000 PSI in the machine direction. The strength in the transverse direction is slightly reduced, from 4800 PSI to 4600 PSI.

To take advantage of this increased directional strength of the oriented film, successive layers of the film are cross-plied at 90° . (Reference 5).

Results of the initial AMMRC studies indicated that molded polyolefin would provide the same level of protection against the .22 caliber 17 grain fragment simulator as polycarbonate at approximately half the weight of polycarbonate. Such potential weight savings is highly attractive for aircraft applications.

キャイン 白橋下立

PROCEDURE

The program was divided into six major tasks. Each task was performed in consecutive order, as listed, so that a film material or processing from one task found to improve transparency and ballistic performance could be used in the next task.

task i	-	Preparation of Reference Film and Sheet
TASK II	-	Effect of Film Characteristics
TASK III	-	Molding Flat Sheet
task iv	-	Protective Covers
ταςκ ν	-	Process Specifications
ταςκ νι	-	Production of Film and Bonded Sheet

The performance levels desired for the oriented polyolefin film and molded panels are shown in Table 1. The test methods utilized are also shown in Table 1.

All film assembly was conducted in a clean room, class 100,000 or better, in accordance with Federal Standard 209. Clean, disposable, polyethylene gloves were worn at all times when handling the polyolefin film or molded sheet.

- 19⁻ - -

FILM AND MOLDED PANEL REQUIREMENTS

Dranarty	Performance Level	Test Mashad	Applicable Material		
Property	Desired	Test Method	<u></u>	Molded Panel	
Sonic Modulus or	Maximum	ASTM F 89	x		
Orientation Release Stress	Maximum	ASTM D 1504	x		
Haze	<3 percent	ASTM D 1003	х	х	
Light Transmission	>85	ASTM D 1003	x	х	
Resistance to Debonding	Minimum of 5 Cycles without Debonding	ASTM D 756 (Procedure E, -57C low tem- perature)		X	
Thickness 	± 5 percent	ASTM D 374	х	х	
Ballistic Resistance (1)	Maximum Ballistic Limit	MIL-STD-662		x	
Maximum Deviation of line of sight	<7 minutes of Arc	ASTM D 881-48		x	
Interlaminar Shear Strength	None Specified (2)	To be selected by the Contractor (3)		x	

(1) Ballistic resistance determined by the Government

(2) Although AMMRC did not specify a performance level, Swedlow established an objective of 1000 PSI minimum.

(3) The test method used is defined in paragraph 4.6.9 of MIL-P-25690 (Reference 10).

1

Task I - Preparation of Reference Film and Sheet

The objective of this task was the preparation of a reference rolled film and molded sheet representing the current state-of-the-art. The results obtained formed the basis of comparison for materials and processing developed under subsequent tasks.

Hercules N400, roll oriented by American Can to an orientation of 4.5:1, was selected by AMMRC to be the reference film. The film was furnished to Swedlow by AMMRC.

Table 2 shows some of the typical properties of the N400 film before and after roll orientation.

TABLE 2

Film Values $Oriented^{(1)}$ Unoriented Property 0.0011-0.0013 Thickness, Inches 0.005-0.0056 Tensile Strength, PSI Machine Direction 4794 32,620 Transverse Direction 4813 4,600 Elongation, Percent 29 Machine Direction 595 Transverse Direction 665 655 91.4 93.1 Light Transmission, % Haze, % 18.4 1.5

TYPICAL PROPERTIES HERCULES N-400 FILM

(1) Fluid compression rolling orientation, 4.5:1 reduction

A chase mold with inside dimensions of $12" \times 12"$ was fabricated in accordance with Swedlow drawing 77050. As originally built, water cooling capability was not provided. Results of the first two moldings indicated a slight decrease of haze with rapid mold cooling. Therefore, the $12" \times 12"$ mold was redesigned and modified to provide for water cooling. Subsequent moldings demonstrated that rapid cooling of the mold was not necessary to obtain clear moldings. Preliminary molding trials were conducted using the cycle furnished by AMMRC. The cycle furnished was:

Temperature:	+325°F
Pressure:	2000 PSI
Time:	10 minutes dwell

The following procedure was established for initial moldings in Task 1.

- o The film was laid-up, oversize, by cross-plying successive layers of film and then trimmed to the $12" \times 12"$ molding size with a power paper cutter.
- o The cross-plied package was dried, under vacuum, for 6 hours at +220°F.
- o Pressure was applied prior to heating and was maintained throughout the cycle until the molded sheet had cooled to approximately +130°F.

The initial moldings were not transparent. Several additional molding trials were conducted, varying the molding and drying conditions. All resulted in moldings of low light transmission.

At this point it was determined that there was no noticeable difference in the moldings as a result of the film drying temperature. Therefore, drying the film at room temperature, under vacuum, became the standard.

At the direction of the Technical Supervisor, moldings of N600 film, roll oriented by Revere, were made. These moldings also exhibited low light transmission. In addition, cross-plied samples of N400, roll oriented by American Can, were supplied to AMMRC for evaluation. Since the moldings produced by AMMRC from these cross-plied samples also had low light transmission, it was concluded that the N400 film, roll oriented by American Can, was at fault and not the Swedlow processing. Samples of films and laminates were submitted by the Technical Supervisor to Hercules for examination. IR analysis showed that the clear laminate made in the initial work and believed to be N400 homopolymer was actually N600 homopolymer (N400 designates copolymer film). This mixup led to the mistaken designation of N400 as the reference film instead of N600. Also, the 3 and 10 mil films labeled N600, rolled by Revere, and used in molding trials number 10, 12, 25, 26 and 27 were actually N400. (The N600 films rolled by American Co. were corectly labeled.) Aithough the film designated N400II rolled by Revere was not examined, it is suspected that this is actually N600.

Also at the direction of the technical supervisor, samples of B-503, a biaxially oriented film, were tried. This film resulted in clear moldings of high light transmission.

Molding trials Number 15 and 16 were submitted to AMMRC for establishment of the reference material ballistic limit. These moldings were produced from N400 film, roll oriented by American Can.

2

The V₅₀ limit for the molded N400 reference material was 1221 ft./sec. for Number 15 and 1238 ft./sec. for Number 16. The ballistics tests were conducted by AMMRC using caliber .22, 17 grain fragment simulating projectiles (MIL-P-46593) per MIL-STD-662A except for the averaging of 6 rounds instead of 10 within a spread of 125 ft/sec. for the V₅₀ ballistics limit velocity.

The moldings produced in Task I were Numbers 1 through 16. A summary of the Task I molding trials is contained in Appendix A. The actual molding cycles are contained in Appendix B as Figures I-1 through I-5. The light transmission of the N400 moldings ranged from a low of 12% to a high of 56%. Appendix C contains the individual light transmission and haze readings obtained on Molding Number 14.

Task II - Effect of Film Characteristics

and the second sec

A STATE OF A

The objectives of this task were to (1) evaluate additional films and compare them with the reference film, N400, from Task I; and (2) select the one film for optimization, that was found to possess, overall, the qualitites required to produce transparent polyolefin armor with the desired performance level.

A total of 23 additional films were received. Eleven films were originally received and are shown in Table 3.

1

TASK II FILMS

Film	Manufacturer	Rolled By
N-600	Hercules	American Can
N-600 (1)	Hercules	Revere
AT-61	Crown Zellerbach	Americarı Can
B-503	Hercules	(2)
P-2102	Toyoba	(2)
P-81B	Mobil	(2)
N-400-II (3)	Hercules	Revere
Capacitor	General Electric	(2)
X-207	Cryovac	(2)
B-500	Hercules	(2)
SK-300-2	Trea	(2)

(1) Film identified as N600, is N400

(2) Biaxially oriented film

(3) Film suspected to be N600.

An additional 12 films, shown in Table 4, were received later in the program.

7

સા

TASK II FILMS

Film	Manufacturer	Rolled By
EK-500	Hercules	(1)
NB81-59-99-1	Diamond Shamrock	Archer
NB81-59-99-2	Diamond Shamrock	Archer (2)
NB81-59-99-2	Diamond Shamrock	Archer(3)
NB81-59-99-3	Diarnond Shamrock	Archer(4)
NB81-59-99-3	Diamond Shamrock	Archer(5)
NB81-59-99-4	Diamond Shamrock	Archer
NB81-59-99-5	Diamond Shamrock	Archer
PP-41-6300-4153	El Rexene	Archer
Dart Ind.	El Rexene	Archer
4230-E	Eastman Tenite	Archer
AT-40	Crown Zellerbach	Archer

(1) Biaxially oriented film
(2) 10:1 Orientation
(3) 12:1 Orientation
(4) 8:1 Orientation
(5) 6:1 Orientation

Properties for all 23 films received in Task II are shown in Table 5.

RESULTS OF FILMS RECEIVED IN TASK II

Film	Туре	<u>Orientation</u>	Light Transmission (%)	Haze (%)	Thickn es s <u>(Inches)</u>
N600 (1)	Homopolymer	4:1	91.9	1.2	0.0015
N600 (2)	Homopolymer	3:1	92.2	3.7	0.0025
AT-61	Homopolymer	4:1	92.3	3.5	0.001
B-503	Homopolymer	(3)	92.4	1.3	0.001
P-2102	Homopolymer	(3)	92.0	3.0	0.002
P-81B	Homopolymer	(3)	92.9	4.0	0.002
N400II (4)	Copolymer	3:1	93.1	4.8	0.001
Capacitor	Homopolymer	(3)	93.3	5.4	0.001
X-207	Homopolymer	(3)	92.8	1.7	0.001
B-500	Homopolymer	(3)	92.8	1.4	0.002
SK-300-2	Copolymer	(3)	92.4	3.5	0.003
EK-500	Homopolymer	(3)	92.2	1.3	0.001/0.0012
NB81-59-99-1	Homopolymer	10:1	92.9	15.0	0.0025/0.0027
NB81-59-99-2	Homopolymer	10:1	91.3	9.7	0.0025
NB81-59-99-2	Homopolymer	12:1	92.8	11.0	0.0025
NB81-59-99-3	Copolymer	8:1	92.5	6.0	0.0035
NB81-59-99-3	Copolymer	6:1	92.7	9.5	0.0032
NB81-59-99-4	Copolymer	8:1	92.5	6.5	0.002
NB81-59-99-5	Copolymer (5)	8:1	92.2	7.2	0.0028
PP-41-6300-4153	Homopolymer	10:1	92.6	10.6	0.002/0.0028
Dart Ind.	Homopolymer	8:1	91.2	22.0	0.0035
4230-E	Homopolymer	10:1	90.2	12.2	0.002
AT-40	Copolymer	6:1	92.3	4.6	0.0012
		•			

⁽¹⁾ Oriented by American Can

(2) Film identified as N600 Homopolymer, oriented by Revere, is N400 Copolymer H

(3) Biaxially oriented

(4) Film suspected to be N600 Homopolymer

(5) U. V. Stabilizer

Of these 12 additional films, 3 were to be selected to complete a total of 14 films for Task II evaluation. The 12 films were evaluated to determine which 3 should be included in Task II. The method used to rate the films, and the results obtained, are contained in Table 6.

FILM RATING⁽¹⁾

Film	Luminous Transmission WT = 10	Haze WT = 9	Film Condition WT = 7	Film Caliper WT + 5	Roll Condition WT = 4	Degree of Orient. WT = 3	Total Weighted Score
	Score Wt × Sc	Score Wt x Sc	Score Wt x Sc	Score Wt x Sc	Score Wt x Sc	Score Wt x Sc	
Hercules EK 500	6 60	17 108	12 84	5 25	4 16	8 24	317
01a. Sham. -1, 10:1	12	2 18	7 49	9 45	3 12	11 33	277
Dia. Sham. -2, 10:1	111	6 54	3 21	8 40	5 20	11 33	278
Dia. Sham. 2, 12:1	5 50	4 36	2 14	3 40	0 No Roll	12 26	176
Dia. Sham -3, 8:1	10	10 90	10 70	12 60	3 12	10 30	362
Dia. Sham -3, 6:1	8 30	7 63	6 42	11 55	4 16	9 27	283
D1a. Sham -4, 8:1	8 80	9 81	8 56	7 25	2 8	10 30	290
D14. Sham -5, 8:1 (UV)	6 60	8 72	111	10 50	1 4	10	293
El Rexene -4153, 10:1	9 90	5 45	5 35	10 50	5 20	11 23	273
El Rexene (Dart), 8:1	40		9 63	12 60	3 12	10 30	214
Eastman 4230-E, 10:1	3 30	3 27	4 28	7 35	4 16	11 33	169
Crorn Zell. AT 40, 6:1	7	1 11		630	3 12	9 27	245

(1) LOGIC: Weight Highest value given to properties regarded as most important to produce a good laminate (clarity, Min. Haze, etc.)

> Applied as follows. Score

> > (1) Lum. Trans. highest rec'd highest score, (2) Haze Lowest rec'd highest score, (3) film and roll condition Subjective judgement Best appearance, highest score (4) film caliper - Thickest film highest score. (5) Orientation Greatest orientation, highest score

NOTE

كالأفحاذ أأقو وفاحت فسنعم فسنعو فسأدرج مسور حاضوه وترخانا خدقسا

Ties on similar values received same score.

The three films selected were the Diamond Shamrock NB81-59-99-3 with 8:1 orientation, the Hercules EK-500 and the El Rexene PP-41-6300-4153.

In addition to the properties reported in Table 5, Orientation Release Stress was determined on the fourteen Task II films, plus the N400 Task I reference film. The results of this testing is summarized in Table 7 for the fifteen films. The

Orientation Release Stress testing was conducted by an independent test laboratory and copies of the test reports are contained in Appendix D.

TABLE 7

RESULTS OF ORIENTATION RELEASE STRESS TESTING

	Orie Maximum	ess	
Film	Temperature Attained (°F)	Dire Machin e <u>(Psi)</u>	ection Transverse (Psi)
N-400	250	838	Nil
N-600 (Am.Can)	275	435	Nil
N-600 (Rev.) (1)	250	5 29	Nil
AT-61	250	552	Nil
B-503	325	289	205
P-2102	318	131	151
P-81B	332	174	330
N-400 II (2)	262	469	21.8
Capacitor	328	v (;	324
X-207	334	÷	499
B-500	335	288	298
SK-300-2	328	486	51.4
EK 500	335	254	290
NB81-59-99-3	276	656	1.2
PP-41-6300-4153	305	615	1.2

(1) Film identified as N600, is N400.

(2) Film suspected to be N600.

}

ł.

Moldings, 12 inches by 12 inches by 20 ounces/foot², were prepared of each of the 14 Task II films. A total of 57 molding trials were made in Task II (Number 17 through 73).

- ことう 生産法学会学会学会 まま

The moldings were evaluated for light transmission, haze and ballistics. The ballistics testing, to determine the V_{50} limit, was conducted by AMMRC as described in Task I.

The average results obtained are shown in Table 8. N-400, the Task I reference film, is included for comparative purposes.

TABLE 8

RESULTS OF FILM MOLDINGS IN TASK II

		MOLDED PANEL PROPERTIES				
FILM	MANUFACTURER	LIGHT TRANSMISSICN (%)	HAZE	V ₅₀ (FPS)		
N-400	HERCULES	12.0-56.0	34.0-46.0	1221-1238		
N-600(1)	HERCULES	17.0-62.0	74.0-100.0	1674		
N-600(2)	HERCULES	0.10-91.0	1.0-8.0	995		
AT-61	CROWN ZELLERBACH	64.0-75.0	34.0-46.0	928		
B-503	HERCULES	76.0-83.0	3.0-8.0	1035		
P-2102	TOYOBA	78.0-83.0	23.0-27.0]		
P-818	MOBIL	72.6-74.0	7.0-11.0			
N-400 II(3)	HERCULES	84.0-88.0	11.0-28.0	975-1025		
CAPACITOR	GENERAL ELECTRIC	79.0-82.0	4.0-9.0			
X-207	CRYOVAC	76.0-85.0	5.0-8.0			
B~500	HERCULES	82.0-84.0	3.0-5.0			
SK-300-2	TREA	37.0-88.0	5.0-100.0) 1234		
EK-500	HERCULES	87.0 -90 .0	1.0-4.0	1		
NB81-59-99-3	DIAMONT SHAMROCK	10.0-43.0	35.0-74.0	975-1025		
PP-41-6300-4153	EL RE INE	55.0-92.0	11.0-44.0			

(1) Film identified as N6CU, rolled by Revere, is N4C

(2) Rolled by American Can

ومراجع المتحالية والمتحالي والمراجع والمحالية والمحالية والمحالية والمحالية والمحالية والمحالية والمحالية والم

(3) Film suspected to be N600

A summary of the Task II molding trials, Numbers 17 through 73, is contained in Appendix A. The actual molding cycles are contained in Appendix B as Figures II-1 through II-20.

The individual light transmission and haze readings obtained on moldings produced in Task II, Numbers 17 through 73, are contained in Appendix C.

-7 : **- 227** 7 17

The results of the moldings produced in Task II were reviewed with AMMRC and Hercules EK-500, a commercially available biaxially oriented homopolymer polyolefin film, was the material selected for optimization.

As can be seen from Table 8, 12 inch by 12 inch by 20 ounces/foot² moldings produced from the Hercules EK-500 film possessed the following properties.

Light Transmission	> 87%
Haze	<4.0%
Ballistic Resistance V ₅₀	975 - 1025 feet/second (F.P.S.)

Typical properties of the Hercules EK-500 film are shown in Table 9.

TABLE 9

TYPICAL PROPERTIES HERCULES EK-500 FILM

PROPERTY

ŗ

VALUE

SPECIFIC GRAVITY	0.902
TENSILE STRENGTH. PSI	30,000 MACHINE AND TRANSVERSE Directions
TENSILE MODULUS, PSI	350,000 MACHINE AND TRANSVERSE DIRECTIONS
ELONGATION, 1	70-100
LIGHT TRANSMISSION, %	32.0
HAZE, %	· 2.0
WATER ABSORPTION, %	< 0.005
THICKNESS. INCHES	0.001

Task III - Molding Flat Sheet

The objective of this task was the optimization of the molding parameters to convert the oriented EK-500 film into fragment resistant transparent armor.

Sufficient EK-500 film was purchased to complete the contract. The light transmission, haze and orientation release stress was determined on the purchased film. The results obtained are shown in Table 10. The orientation release stress testing was conducted by an independent test laboratory and a copy of the test report is contained in Appendix D.

TABLE 10

EK-500 FILM PROPERTIES

	Property	Result
Αv	erage Light Transmission (%)	93.7
Av	erage Haze (%)	2.2
Or	ientation Release Stress	
0	Maximum Temperature Attained (°F)	324
0	Average PSI, Machine Direction	214
0	Average PS1. Transverse Direction	156

Prior to the process optimization, a study was conducted to determine if crossplying of the EK-500 was necessary, since the EK500 film is biaxially oriented. As previously discussed, cross-plying of the uniaxially oriented polyolefin film, (~4.5:1), was found to be necessary to take advantage of the increased tensile strength produced by the orientation.

Six moldings, (Trial Numbers 74 through 79), 12 inches by 12 inches by 20 ounces/foot², of cross-plied and non-cross-plied EK-500 film were produced and the ballistic limits determined by AMMRC. It was concluded that there was no noticeable difference between the cross-plied and non-cross-plied EK-500 film. Therefore, cross-plying of the EK-500 film was not required.

To optimize the molding parameters for the EK-500 film, an experimental plan was prepared utilizing the Box-Behnken method for variables (Reference 8).

The Box-Behnken design for the variables consists of twelve edge points all lying on a single sphere about the center of the experimental region, plus three replicates of the center point. The Box-Behnken experimental plan establishes the parameters considered optimum.

The range of parameters evaluated to optimize the molding process are as follows:

Temperature:	300°F, 330°F, 360°F
Pressure:	100 psi, 1550 psi, 3000 psi
Time:	1 minute, 30 minutes, 60 minutes

14

Included as Figure 1, is the Box-Behnken design which depicts the parameters established to determine the optimum processing cycling.



TEMPERATURE	°¢	300	330	360
PRESSURE	PSI	100	1550	3000
TIANE	MINUTES	١	30	60

FIGURE I

BOX-BEHNKEN DIAGRAM PARAMETERS ESTABLISHEP TO DETERMINE OPTIMUM PROCESSING CYCLE

「「「「「「」」」」

Included in Appendix E, is a copy of Swedlw, Inc. Engineerinng Report No. 948 "Test Procedure for Determining the Optimum Processing Condition for Transparent Polyolefin Film Armor".

A total of 20 moldings, (Trial Numbers 80 through 99), 12 inches by 12 inches by 20 ounces/foot², were prepared in accordance with Report No. 948. Of these, 16 were submitted to AMMRC for determination of the V_{50} limit.

The results of the light transmission and haze of all 20 moldings, as well as the V_{50} limit of the 16 moldings, are shown in Table 11. In addition, the conditions used for each of the 20 moldings is included.

Figure 2 is the Box-Behnken design which depicts the results obtained on the parameters established, (light transmission, haze and ballistic limit).

シンクション かいか

:

-

a hai ya da

RESULTS OF PROCESS OPTIMIZATION

Trial	Run (1)	Tempera	ture Time	Pressure	Light Trans.	Haze	V 50
Number	Number	(Jo)	(Minutes)	(PSI)	(%)	(%)	(FPS)
80	Q	000	l	1550	84.3/86.2	3.1/5.1	982
81	I	330	30	1550	81.9/84.8	2.3/5.2	(8)
82	£	360 (2)	60	1550	49.7/58.4	·	240
83	01	300	60	1550	82.6/84.4	2.8/5.6	1014
84	∞	330	30	1550	82.3/84.4	3.3/6.7	266
85	15	330	30	1550	80.0/81.3	3.0/6.4	479
86	6	300	30	100	78.5/79.3	6.4/7.7	1155
87	l	330	30	1550	83.6/86.3	2.6/7.0	(3)
88	I	330	30	1550	82.3/85.0	2.7/7.3	988
89	13	350	-	1550	77.3/82.1	5.2/8.5	982
06	2	350	30	200	33.0/72.6	6.5/92.8	924
16	14	330	ļ	500	80.6/83.3	2.8/8.0	566
92	12	330	60	500	Not Me	asured	(3)
93	12	330	60	500	54.7/79.0	8.7/74.8	1007
46	12	330	60	750	81.8/84.5	3.3/6.0	973
95	5	300	30	3000	81.6/83.2	2.9/4.5	186
96	4	300	-	3000	82.4/84.3	2.4/4.6	983
97	11	330	60	3000	80.1/82.5	2.8/7.0	1007
98	7	350	30	3000	55.5/65.2	51.7/88.6	(3)
66	7	350	30	3000	72.3/75.3	6.4/7.3	951

Run number as established by experimental Plan Report No. 948
Melted at 352°F.
Not tested for V₅₀

THE REAL PROPERTY AND THE REAL PROPERTY OF

والمتعادية والمتحد والمحافظ والمحافية والمحافظة والمحافظ والمحافظ والمحافظ والمحافظ والمحافظ والمحافية والمحا



FIGURE 2

BOX-BEHNKEN DIAGRAM RESULTS OF PROCESSING VARIABLES

Of the 4 moldings not ballistically tested, three were evaluated for preliminary resistance to debonding in accordance with ASTM D-756 procedure $E(-57^{\circ}C)$ low temperature). The edges of the moldings were machined to remove edge delaminations. The moldings were measured prior to each cycle and were observed for debonding at the completion of each cycle. The detailed results are contained in Table 12.

RESULTS OF RSISTANCE TO DEBONDING TESTING PER ASTM D-756, PROCEDURE E(-57°C)

Condition	Weight (Gms)	Wiath (Ins)	Length (Ins)	Ctr.	ד ד. ו	hicknes: 2	s (In.) 3	4
Original	473.7	10.83	10.75	.278	. 269	. 275	.275	. 265
First Cycle	474.1	16.73	10.69	.281	. 267	.278	.279	. 270
Second Cycle	474.0	10.73	10.69	. 282	. 268	. 278	. 279	. 271
Third Cycle	474.1	10.72	10.67	. 283	. 269	.278	. 281	. 270
Fourth Cycle	473.8	10.59	10.56	.288	.275	.284	.287	.275
Fifth Cycle	473.9	10.61	10.56	.288	.274	.284	.287	. 276

PANEL NO. 81 (330°F, 1550 PSI, 30 MIN.)

NOTE: Very slight edge debonding after the fifth cycle.

	Weight	Width	Length		TI	hicknes	s (Ins.)
Condition	(Gms)	(!ns)	(ins)	Ctr	1	2	3	4
Original	503.4	10.95	11.91	. 263	. 261	. 252	.243	.254
First Cycle	503.5	10.91	11.83	. 27 4	.263	. 254	.245	.255
Second Cycle	503.5	10.89	11.88	.2 4	.264	. 255	.246	.256
Third Cycle	503.4	10.89	11.86	.264	.263	. 254	.245	.257
Fourth Cycle	503.4	10.36	11.81	.266	.264	. 256	.248	.259
Fifth Cycle	503.3	10.86	11.33	.265	.264	. 256	. 249	.259

PANEL NO. 98 (300°F, 3000 PSI, 30 MIN.)

NOTE: Edge delamination and warpage after first cycle

and the second second

TABLE 12 (CONTD)

Condition	Weight (Gris)	Width (Ins)	Length (Ins)	Ctr	זד ו	rickness 2	(lns.) 3	4
Uriginal	517.1	10.69	11.80	.275	.275	.277	.267	. 267
First Cycle	516.4	10.64	11.72	.278	. 278	.278	.268	. 269
Second Cycle	516.4	10.54	11.70	.279	.278	. 279	.270	.270
Third Cycle	516.3	10.64	11,69	.278	.277	.278	.269	. 271
Fourth Cycle	516.2	10.53	11.56	. 292	. 289	. 286	.276	.285
Fifth Cycle	516.4	10.53	11.55	. 291	. 289	.287	.278	.284

PANEL NO. 92 (330°F, 500 PS1, 60 MIN.)

NOTE: Edge delamination and warpage after first cycle

Location of thickness readings (all panels)



Based on the light transmission, haze and ballistic limit results contained in Figure 2 and Table 11, the preliminary resistance to debonding contained in Table 12 and moldings of EK-500 produced in Task II, the following was selected as the optimum cycle.

Temperature:	+330°F
Pressure:	2000 psi

Time:

Į

30 Minutes

العبه الالتأ

20





FIGURE 3

TYPICAL MOLDING CYCLE

An additional 21 moldings, Trial Numbers 100 through 120, 12 inches by 12 inches by 20 ounces/foot², were prepared using the processing cycle selected as the optimum. These moldings were utilized for testing to the requirements established for molded polyolefin film armor (Table 1 of Task I). Some of the moldings, (#107, 108, 109, 110, 113 and 114), exhibited high haze, originally thought to be due to excessive moisture. However, it was subsequently determined, in Task IV, to have been caused by localized hot spots in the molding tool.

The following tests were conducted by Swedlow, Inc. on the moldings prepared in Task III using the optimum processing cycle.

- c Light transmission and haze
- o Thickness

「中国語語の語言では

- o Deviation of line of sight
- o Interlaminar shear strength
- o Bond tensile strength
- o Resistance to debonding

Additional moldings were prepared using the optimum processing cycle and submitted to AMMRC for ballistics testing.

The results of the Swedlow testing is as follows:

o Light Transmission and Haze

Test procedure: ASTM D-1003

The minimum to maximum range of light transmission and haze for trial numbers 100 through 120 are contained in Table 13.

.

ί.

۰.

LIGHT TRANSMISSION AND HAZE

TESTING AT +75°F PER ASTM D-1003

Trial <u>Number</u>	Light <u>Trans (%)</u>	Haze (%)	Trial <u>Number</u>	Light Trans (%)	Haze (%)
100	72.3/83.3	2.5/9.1	111	77.5/84.7	3.4/5.9
101	74.3/83.4	3.7/6.7	112	79.7/84.4	1.6/4.9
102	79.5/84.9	3.5/6.8	113	72.2/85.1	4.1/63.9
103	80.1/84.5	2.1/4.6	114	75.8/84.9	2.9/56.6
104	78.6/82.9	3.0/5.0	115	81.4/86.9	0.9/3.8
105	78.5/83.3	2.4/5.7	116	82.1/86.0	2.2/4.6
106	77.8/82.7	3.2/5.7	117	82.3/84.6	1.3/4.5
107	81.1/85.0	3.0/11.9	118	82.7/85.9	2.5/6.7
108	79.3/86.2	4.0/25.7	119	81.6/85.0	2.6/4.9
109	81.3/86.7	2.6/12.9	120	81.7/84.8	2.3/4.8
110	62.7/82.7	4.3/91.3			

Canada and the track of the second

o <u>Thickness</u>

Test Procedure: ASTM D-374

Trial Numbers 105, 116, 118 and 120 were selected for determination of thickness.

Table 14 contains the results obtained.

TABLE 14

THICKNESS

TESTED AT +75°F, PER ASTM D-374

PANEL		AVERAGE				
NUMBER		2	3	4	5	THICKNESS (INCHES)
105	.280	.265	. 271	. 291	. 2.48	.271
116	.281	.247	. 291	.276	.261	.271
118	.275	.276	. 261	.279	. 252	. 269
120	.279	.256	.281	.274	. 258	. 270

PANEL NUMBER	THICKNESS V (INCHES)	ARIATION (%)
105	+.020,023	+7,4,-8.5
116	+.020,024	+7.4,-8.9
118	+.010,017	+3.7,-6.3
120	+.011,014	+4.1,-5.2

LOCATION OF THICKNESS READINGS (ALL PANELS)

	2	
5	1	4
	з	

بې<u>مىمە ئۇمۇ</u> يولارمە بىرىمى بەر يەر يەر يەر يەر يەر

1 1

وبماكر والمتحد

Deviation of Line of Sight 0

Test Procedure: ASTM D-881-48.

Trial Numbers 105, 116, 118 and 120 were also selected for determination of deviation of line of sight.

Table 15 cc., tains the results obtained.

TABLE 15

MAXIMUM DEVIATION OF LINE OF SIGHT TESTED PER ASTM D-881-48

PANEL							ANGULA	AR DEVI	ATION	(MINUT	ES) P	ER LOC	ATION				
NUHBER	VERTICAL (1)	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	13	!4	15	16
105	H	-9	- 10	- 7	-6	-11	-9	- 7	-5	-13	-8	-6	-5	-10	-8	- 7	-5
	V	-5	- 5	- 5	-3	-4	-5	- 5	-3	-1	0	0	0	+5	+5	+4	+3
105	н	+5	+7	+5	+4	+3	+4	+3	+2	+1	0	- }	-1	-3	-3	- <u>2</u>	-2
(Rotated 90°)	V	-8	-9	-6	-2	-10	-10	-6	-5	-10	- 10	- 5	-5	-10	-10	- 6	-5
116	H	-6	-4	+1	+3	+7	-3	+2	+6	-6	-4	+1	+5	-5	- 3	+2	+3
	V	-10	-10	-11	-11	-10	-11	-10	-8	-5	-5	-7	-8	-1	- 5	-6	-5
116	H	+10	+11	+15	+13	+6	+11	+10	+9	+5	+4	+3	+7	+6	+1	+4	+5
(Rotated 90°)	V	-6	-5	-1	-2	- 7	-6	0	+3	-6	-6	-1	+2	-5	-5	-1	+2
118	H	-9	-6	-4	-2	-10	-7	-4	-1	-10	-6	-2	-1	-10	- 7	-3	- 3
	V	0	-2	-2	0	-2	-3	-2	-1	+2	+1	0	+4	+5	- 5	+5	+8
118	H	0	0	0	+4	-1	+3	+2	+1	-2	- i	С	-1	-7	-5	-5	-4
(Rotated 90°)	V	-8	-7	-4	-2	-10	-7	-4	-1	-10	- 7	- З	0	-8	-7	-4	-2
120	н	- 7	-4	+1	+1	-10	-6	0	+1	-7	-2	+1	+1	-5	-1	+1	0
	V	- 7	-9	-8	-11	-6	-3	8-	-7	-5	-1	-4	-4	-4	-2	-2	- !
12G	H	+7	+8	+11	+10	+4	+5	+5	+6	+2	+5	+3	+3	+3	+2	+2	+1
(Rotated 90°)	V	-7	- 5	0	+1	-8	- 7	0	+2	-8	-6	0	+2	-7	-5	0	0

Notes: (1) HORIZONTAL - Readings left or right of the vertical zero line, intersecting the horizontal zero line. VERTICAL - Readings above or below the horizontal zero line, intersecting the vertical zero line.



3 4

2

٤

ŧ



- そうなままちょう あろう

Ē	6	-7	8	
9	10	11	(2	
13	۱4	15	16	

o Interlaminar Shear Strength

Test Procedure: Military Specification MIL-P-25690, Paragraph 4.6.9

The specimen configuration used for determination of interlaminar shear strength is shown in Figure 4.



TEST SPECIMEN CONFIGURATION INTERLAMINAR SHEAR STRENGTH

FIGURE 4

Trial Numbers 101, 111, and 114 were selected for interlaminar shear strength testing. Trial Number 114 was included in this determination because of the presence of high haze.

Table 16 contains the results obtained.

INTERLAMINAR SHEAR STRENGTH

TESTING AT +75°F PER MILITARY SPECIFICATION MIL-P-25690, PARAGRAPH 4.6.9

PANEL NUMBER	SPECIMEN NUMBER		INTERLAMINAR <u>SHEAR STRENGTH (PSI)</u>
101	1		1751 1713
	3		1367
	5		1685
		Average:	1659
111	1		1689
	2 3		1572
	4		1517
	5	Aug ca 00 -	1505
		Aver dye.	1000
114	1		980
	2		1168
	4		ć 38
	5		1024
		Average:	951

Although the high haze panel, (No. 114), had approximately forty percent less interlaininar shear strength than the panels without high haze, (No. 101 and 111), the average of 951 PSI was very close to the original target value of 1000 PSI as specified in our proposal 75-0301, paragraph 2.4.

The panels without the high haze had average interlaminar shear strengths of 1606 and 1659 PSI, well above the original target value of 1000 PSI.

o Bond Tensile Strength

In addition to the interlaminar shear strength, bond tensile strength was also determined on molding trial numbers 101, 111, and 114.

The specimen configuration used for determination of bond tensile strength is shown in Figure 5. Backup material was bonded to the molded polyolefin test specimens to accommodate the test fixture.



1111日前になる、「「「「「」」

TEST SPECIMEN CONFIGURATION BOND TENSILE STRENGTH

FIGURE 5

Testing was accomplished at $+75^{\circ}F$ at a loading rate of 200 pounds/minute.

Table 17 contains the results obtained.

Ŀ
TABLE 17

BOND TENSILE STRENGTH

TESTING AT +75°F

PANEL NUMBER	SPECIMEN NUMBER	BOND TENSILE STRENGTH (PSI)	TYPE FAILURE
101	1 2 3 4 5 Average:	137 148 150 170 <u>169</u> 155	Failure of adhesive to backup
111	1 2 3 4 5	141 169 158 166 <u>133</u>	Failure of adhesive to backup
	Average:	153	
114	1 2 3 4 5	49 44 51 40 55	Conesive failure of lamination
	Average:	48	

The bond tensile strength exhibited similar results to the interlaminar shear strength. The high haze panel had approximately seventy percent less bond tensile strength than the panels without high haze.

o <u>Resistance to Debonding</u>

Test Procedure: ASTM D-756, Procedure E (-57°C)

Trial numbers 102, 106, and 115 were selected for resistance to debonding.

Very slight edge delamination was observed after the first cycle on two of the three panels. The third panel did not exhibit any delamination. There was no change to any of the panels at the completion of the five cycles. The detailed results of the debonding testing are contained in Table 18. Table 19 contains the luminous transmittance and haze of the three panels after completion of the resistance to debonding tests.

TABLE 18

RESULTS OF RESISTANCE TO DEBONDING

TESTING PER ASTM D-756, PROCEDURE E(-57°C)

	Weight	Width	Lengtn		Thio	ckness ((INS)		
Condition	(GMŠ)	(INS)	(INS)	Ctr.	1	2	3	4	
Original	570.3	11.89	11.92	.276	. 242	. 257	.286	.273	
First Cycle	570.1	11.80	11.86	. 279	.246	.262	.290	.278	
Second Cycle	569.3	11.83	11.84	.278	.246	.262	.290	.278	
Third Cycle	570.1	11.83	11.86	.278	.246	.252	.289	.279	
Fourth Cycle	571.5	11.86	11.86	.278	.246	.262	. 290	.279	
Fifth Cycle	570.2	11.83	11.86	.276	.247	.262	.290	.278	

PANEL NO. 102

PANEL NO. 106

Condition	Weight (GMS)	Width (INS)	Length (INS)	Ctr.	Thio 1	ckness	(INS) 3	4
Original	567.2	11.89	11.91	.275	.244	.259	. 287	.267
First Cycle	567.1	11.81	11.84	.277	246	.261	. 292	.269
Second Cycle	566.9	11,81	11.83	.278	.246	.261	. 292	.270
Third Cycle	567.2	11.81	11.83	.277	. 246	.262	. 292	.269
Fourth Cycle	567.7	11.81	11.83	.276	.246	.261	.292	. 269
Fifth Cycle	567.3	11.81	11.84	.277	.246	. 261	. 292	.270

NOTE: VERY SLIGHT EDGE DELAMINATION AFTER FIRST CYCLE

TABLE 18 (CONT'D)

PANEL NO. 115

	Weight	Width	Length		Thio	ckness ((INS)	
Condition	(GMS)	<u>(INS)</u>	<u>(INS)</u>	(tr.		2		4
Origin al	570.1	11.89	11.89	. 278	.241	. 253	.287	.274
First Cycle	570.1	11.83	11.89	. 280	.246	. 257	. 291	.278
Second Cycle	569.7	11.83	11.89	. 280	.246	. 257	. 290	.278
Third Cycle	570.4	11.81	11.88	. 280	.246	. 257	. 291	. 278
Fourth Cycle	56 8.8	11.81	11.89	. 280	.246	.256	.291	. 278
Fifth Cycle	570.0	11.81	11.89	. 280	. 245	.257	. 291	.278

NOTE: VERY SLIGHT EDGE DELAMINATION AFTER FIRST CYCLE

I

LOCATION OF THICKNESS READINGS (ALL PANELS)

Princip Latte Latte

1000



31

TABLE 19

LIGHT TRANSMISSION AND HAZE

AFTER RESISTANCE TO DEBONDING

TESTING AT +75°F PER ASTM D-1003

			LOCATION OF READING							
Panel Nu	umber	<u> </u>	2	3	1	5				
102	LT =	79.6	80.1	78.3	78.5	79.4				
	H =	3.6	3.0	3.7	3.9	3.2				
106	LT =	80.7	80.5	79.1	79.2	79.2				
	H =	3.9	4.0	4.6	3.9	4.0				
115	LT =	83.2	82.3	81.3	81.5	81.5				
	H =	2.9	2.9	3.8	3.0	2.8				



Location of light transmission and haze readings

The molded polyolefin armor experienced a light transmission loss of 0.2 to 2.5% and an increase of haze of 0.5 to 1.4%, as a result of the debonding testing.

Previous studies have shown that interlaminar adhesion sufficient to resist debonding is required, but complete fusion into a homogenous mass is undesirable. Resolution of these apparently conflicting requirements was accomplished under Task III efforts.

ţ

a de la companya de l

A summary of the Task III molding trials, Numbers 74 through 120, is contained in Appendix A.

The actual molding cycles are contained in Appendix B as Figures III-1 through III-34.

The individual light transmission and haze readings obtained on each of the moldings, trial numbers 74 through 120, are contained in Appendix C.

Attached as Table 20 are the results obtained on Task III moldings, and are compared to the original program objectives.

TABLE 20

RESULTS OF EK-500 PANELS MOLDED

USING OPTIMUM CONDITIONS

Property	Result	Original Objective		
Light Transmission (1)	74.3 to 86.9%	> 85.0%		
Haze (1)	0.9 to 6.8%	< 3.0%		
Resistance To Debonding	i panel no debonding, 5 cycles (#102)	Minimum of 5 cycles without debonding		
	l panel, very slight debonding after 5th cycle (#81) (~0.060 In)			
	2 panels, very slight debonding after 1st cycle, (-0.060 ln) No change after 5 cycles (#106 & 115)			
Thickness Tolerance	(+) 3.7 to 7.4% (-) 5.2 to 8.9%	+ 5.0%		
Maximum Deviation of Line of Sight	0 to 10 minutes of arc	< 7 minutes of arc		
Interlaminar Shear Strength	951 to 1659 psi	> 1000 psi		
Ballistic Resistance V50	975 to 1025 FPS	Maximum		

(1)Moldings with high haze not included.

33

The original contractual requirement specified that the polyolefin panels were to be molded "net" to prevent delamination induced by a machining opeation. Cutting to dimensions would be permitted if it was demonstrated that such cutting resulted in no edge delamination.

During the Task III effort it was determined that molded polyolefin panels could be machined without causing delamination. Figure 6 shows a typical panel machining operation. To prevent delamination, a 0.125 inch thick sheet of acrylic is placed on each side of the molded panel. Sufficient pressure is applied to prevent slippage. Routing is then accomplished with an 18,000 RPM hand held router using a 0.500 inch diameter, two flute carbide inlaid router bit. As long as the router bit was kept sharp, there was no delamination.



PANEL MACHINING PROCEDURE

FIGURE 6

Task IV - Protective Covers

un er

The objective of this task was the selection and evaluation of materials to be used as protective covers for the molded polyolefin panels.

In its current form, polyolefin lacks good resistance to ultraviolet exposure and is not recommended for continuous outdoor use.

Polyolefin material, like polycarbonate, requires surface protection when subjected to outdoor exposure.

Many films and sheet materials were considered for possible application as protective covers. In order to keep the overall weight of the composite to a minimum, the following materials were selected for evaluation in Task IV.

- o Diamond Shamrock film number NB-81-59-99-5, U.V. stabilized. Nominal thickness 0.0028 inches.
- Polyvinyl Fluoride (PVF) Film, U.V. stabilized. "Tedlar" from DuPont. Nominal thickness 0.001 inches.
- Polymethylmethacrylate (Acrylic) Film, U.V. stabilized. "Korad" from Korad, Inc. a subsidiary of Georgia-Pacific Corp. Nominal thickness 0.003 inches.
- o Abrasion Resistant Coating (A.R.C.).

A total of 17 moldings, Trial Numbers 121 through 137, 12 inches by 12 inches by 20 ounces/foot², were prepared in Task IV.

Trial Numbers 121, 122, 124, and 126 were molded with Diamond Shamrock film NB-81-59-99-5 (U.V. stabilized) on the exterior surface(s) as follows:

Trial Nos. 121 and 122	Two plies on each surface
Trial Nos. 124 and 126	On ply on one surface only

The addition of the Diamond Shamrock film resulted in moldings of excessive haze. Moldings with two plies of film on each surface had average haze values of 32.3 and 29.6 percent, and the moldings with one ply film on one surface only had average haze values of 14.2 and 14.5 percent.

Because of the resulting high haze, the Diamond Shamrock film was deleted from the program.

Trial Number 127 was molded with Tedlar (PVF) film on each surface. The Tedlar film would not bond to the polyolefin film during the molding cycle. One molding was tried, no trial number, with Tedlar (PVF) and Korad (Acrylic) film on each surface. As with Trial Number 127, the film material would not bond to the polyolefin film during the molding cycle.

. 1. **1. 1. 1.** 1.

Because the Tedlar and Korad Films would not bond to the molded polyolefin, it was decided to laminate the film to the polyolefin with an interlayer. Preliminary studies indicated fair adhesion could be achieved with Polyvinyl Butyral (PVB) or Silicone.

Six moldings, Trial Numbers 112, 118, 120, 128, 129 and 130 were utilized for application of protective covers, with an interlayer. Trial Numbers 118 and 120 were surfaced on both sides with an acrylic film, (Korad), 0.003 inches thick, bonded to the molded EK-500 with Polyvinyl Butyral (PVB). The adhesion was fair. During lamination of Trial No. 120, the glass caul broke on one side, with considerable glass adhering to the composite.

Trial Numbers 112 and 128 were surfaced on both sides with a polyvinyl fluoride film (Tedlar), 0.001 inches thick bonded to the molded EK-500 with PVB. The adhesion was fair, although incomplete bonding was encountered. Trial Numbers 129 and 130 were surfaced on both sides with the Tedlar Film, 0.001 inches thick, bonded to the molded EK-500 with Swedlow Silicone. Although the adhesion was better than that obtained with the PVB, the Tedlar film developed wrinkles during the laminating cycle.

Light transmission and haze was measured on the six surfaced moldings and the results are contained in Table 21. The readings were taken in areas of the composite to avoid, as much as possible, unbonded areas, etc. A comparison of the data was made with the molded panels prior to surfacing.

TABLE 21

LIGHT TRANSMISSION AND HAZE

OF PANELS WITH PROTECTIVE COVERS

TESTING AT +75°F PER ASTM D-1003

KORAD/PVB PROTECTIVE COVERS

Panel Number	1	_2	3	_4		6	_7	_8	_9_	(1)
118 LT =	80.9	80.3	79.8	80.2	79.5	79.5	79.4	79.6	80.0	82.7/85.9
H =	9.3	8.4	9.1	8.9	7.4	7.9	8.5	8.7	8.4	2.5/6.7
120 LT = H =	76.1 22.2	- -	-	77.6 19.4	-	-	78.2 14.7	78.7 14.0	78.4 13.7	81.7/84.8 2.3/4.8
		TEI	DLAR/P	B PRO	TECTIV	ECOVE	RS			
112 LT =	81.1	78.4	77.9	80.0	77.9	77.9	79.0	77.9	76.5	79.7/84.4
H =	14.0	18.1	15.4	16.0	16.0	15.8	14.2	15.8	14.6	1.6/4.9
128 LT =	83.0	82.7	82.2	82.6	81.6	80.3	81.3	81.2	80.6	82.8/86.1
H =	12.7	12.7	13.5	13.3	12.9	13.4	12.6	12.0	12.8	3.3/4.7
		TEDL	AR/SILIC	ONE PE	ROTECT		VERS			
129 LT =	79.8	78.6	78.4	78.7	77.1	79.2	77.1	78.6	77.4	82.7/85.8
H =	20.8	16.5	17.4	17.6	17.1	17.9	18.4	17.7	16.8	3.0/4.2
130 LT =	80.7	78.8	77.4	80.5	78.2	77.2	80.1	79.3	79.3	82.8/86.1
H =	19.7	19.9	24.4	16.2	21.5	18.3	17.9	16.1	19.9	3.3/4.7

(1) Minimum to maximum readings of light transmission and haze - prior to application of protective covers.

1	2	3
4	5	6
7	8	٩

į.

Location of light transmission and haze readings

in the second second

Molding trials Number 123, 125, 131 and 132 were coated with Swedlow protective coating SS-6590. All four panels exhibited warpage, due to the method used to support the panels during cure. The protective coating had reasonably good adhesion to the molded polyolefin.

a sheatan integration an

Light transmission and haze was measured on the four protective coated moldings and the results are contained in Table 22.

TABLE 22

n ang watan sa

2112 C. 199

LIGHT TRANSMISSION AND HAZE

OF PROTECTIVE COATED PANELS

TESTING AT +75°F PER ASTM D-1003

LOCATION OF READING

Panel Number	1	_2	3	4	5	_6	7	8	9	(1)
123 LT =	88.0	87.2	86.4	85.1	87.7	85.5	84.8	84.8	86.2	83.2/85. ^L
H =	2.6	2.5	2.4	2.4	2.4	2.7	2.7	2.2	2.2	3.0/4.0
125 LT =	86.2	85.9	86.1	85.5	84.8	86.1	86.8	86.2	87.5	82.8/84.2
H =	2.3	3.0	2.7	2.0	2.0	1.8	2.2	2.2	2.2	2.5/3.2
131 LT =	87.3	85.0	84.1	82.7	83.4	85.6	85.7	83.9	84.0	82.6/86.3
H =	1.5	1.3	1.3	1.7	1.4	1.3	1.7	1.7	2.0	2.3/4.9
132 LT =	85.1	83.0	83.1	83.2	82.4	84.8	85.5	84.4	84.2	81.0/84.9
H =	2.3	5.4	2.9	2.3	5.2	1.8	1.6	1.8	1.7	3.1/6.2

(1) Minimum to maximum readings of light transmission and haze - prior to application of protective coating.



.

Location of light transmission and haze readings

All the molded polyclefin panels with Korad and Tedlar protective covers experienced a decrease in light transmission and an increase in haze, whereas all the molded polyclefin panels with the protective coating experienced an increase in light transmission and a decrease in haze.

Five molded polyolefin panels, 12 inches by 12 inches by 20 ounces/foot², with surface protection, were submitted to AMMRC for evaluation. Three panels had Korad and Tedlar protective covers and two had a protective coating.

An examination of the five protected panels, and the data contained in Tables 21 and 22, resulted in the selection of the coating as the means of protecting the full-size windows to be produced in Task VI.

A summary of the Task IV molding trials, Numbers 121 through 137, is contained in Appendix A.

The actual molding cycles are contained in Appendix B as Figures IV-1 through IV-10.

The individual light transmission and haze readings obtained on each of the moldings, Trial Numbers 121 through 137, are contained in Appendix C.

It appears that the high haze of moldings 134, 135, 136 and 137 was a result of localized hot spots during molding. A second thermocouple was used in molding Number 137 in the location of the high haze of moldings 134, 135 and 136. As shown in Appendix A, Task IV and Appendix B, Figure IV-10, the high haze area reached a maxiumum temperature of 9°F above the control area.

The localized hot spots were apparently a result of the molding tool, since the haze pattern tended to follow the water cooling pattern.

However, since the requirement for 12" x 12" panels was fulfilled, rework of the molding tool was not conducted.

Task V - Process Specifications

The objective of this task was the preparation of Process Specifications that describe the selected starting materials and detail the procedures for converting oriented film into bonded sheet of optimal ballistics, optical and debonding characteristics.

The following specifications were prepared, based on the data generated in Tasks I through IV, and are included in Appendix E.

Engineering Report No. 990

"Material Procurement Specification - Polypropylene Film for Transparent Armor"

This specification establishes the material requirements to be acceptable for the production of transparent film armor and provides the receiving procedure and test methods to be employed in assuring conformance.

Engineering Report No. 991

"Process Specification-Production of Transparent Polyolefin Film Armor"

This specification describes the materials and procedures required for converting polyolefin film into bonded sheet.

The following drawings were prepared during the performance of this contract and are included in Appendix F.

Swedlow Number 77050

Assembly-Chase Mold (12"x12") - AMMRC. Transparent Armor Test Plaques.

Swedlow Number 80025

Assembly-Chase Mold-AMMRC. Transparent Armor Windows.

In addition, the following drawing is included in Appendix F for reference purposes.

AMMRC CD-1

Transparent Polypropylene Film Windows.

Task VI - Production of Film and Bonded Sheet

The objective of this task was to produce film and molded sheet in accordance with the process specification generated in Task V.

A chase mold with inside dimensions of $16" \times 27"$ was fabricated in accordance with Swedlow Drawing 80025. Since it had been previously determined that water cooling of the mold was not required to produce clear moldings, such cooling was not incorporated in the tool.

A total of 19 moldings, Trial Numbers 138 through 156, were prepared in accordance with Engineering Report Number 991.

Trial Numbers 138 and 139, which were 12 inches by 12 inches by 20 ounces/foot², were used to verify the molding cycle. Both moldings were clear, indicating satisfactory molding conditions. The individual light transmission and haze readings obtained on molding Trial Numbers 138 and 139 are contained in Appendix C.

Trial numbers 140 through 156 were 16" x 27" moldings, from which triangular windows per AMMRC drawing CD-1 could be obtained. Each 16" x 27" molding was large enough to obtain two windows. Trial numbers 140 through 149 were nominal

0.094 inch thick, $(7.12 \text{ ounces/foot}^2)$, and trial numbers 150 through 156 were nominal 0.313 inch thick, $(23.71 \text{ ounces/foot}^2)$.

As reported in Task IV, it was determined that the full-size triangular windows would be coated with a protective coating.

Molding trials 140, 141, 144, 147, 149 and 156 had varying defects such as delamination, wrinkles and dimples which made them unsuitable as windows. These moldings were used for protective coating evaluations.

The moldings to be utilized as windows, moldings 142, 143, 145, 146, 148, 150, 151, 152, 153, 154 and 155 were coated, in the full 16" x 27" size, with Swedlow's protective coating SS-6590. After cozting and curing both sides, triangular windows per AMMRC drawing CD-I, as shown in Figure 7, were machined from each molding. Each molding yielded two windows, except molding No. 151, where only one window could be obtained due to slippage during machining.



AMMRC DRAWING CD-1

FIGURE 7

Light transmission and haze was measured on the 21 individual CD-1 triangular windows and the results are contained in Table 23.

41

「東京大学にいた」

TABLE 23

LIGHT TRANSMISSION AND HAZE

OF TRIANGULAR WINDOWS

TESTING AT +75°F PER ASTM D-1003

Panel	Nominal	Location of Readings						
Number	Thickness (Ins.)		_1	_2	3	4		
142-1	0.094	LT = H =	89.8 2.0	91.1 3.4	91.2 3.2	88.4 3.1		
142-2	0.094	LT = H =	89.5 2.2	89.6 2.4	89.1 4.8	88.0 2.0		
143-1	0.094	LT = H =	90.6 2.3	90.5 4.4	90.4 2.6	89.3 2.4		
143-2	0.094	LT = H =	90.5 2.7	90.4 2.4	90.5 3.1	89.8 2.2		
145-1	0.094	LT = H =	90.7 1.9	91.1 2.6	89.9 2.4	89.5 2.7		
145-2	0.094	LT = H =	90.0 3.0	90.5 3.2	91.0 3.0	89.6 2.0		
146-1	0.094	LT = H =	90.1 2.6	90.2 2.7	90.6 2.9	89.7 2.8		
146-2	0.094	LT = H =	90.5 2.8	90.8 3.8	90.6 3.6	89.6 3.2		
148-1	0.094	LT = H =	88.5 4.3	89.8 5.3	88.9 4.1	88.0 5.2		
148-2	0.094	LT = H =	89.4 2.8	90.2 2.2	90.1 1.9	88.6 2.9		
150-1	0.313	LT = H =	83.5 4.1	84.4 4.0	84.5 3.8	83.2 3.6		
150-2	0.313	LT = H =	84.1 3.3	84.4 3.6	84.6 4.4	83.4 5.3		
151-1	0.313	LT = H =	83.8	84.C 4.6	84.6 5.1	83.8		

42

• •

•

• :

TABLE 23 (CONT'D)

Papel	Nominal	Location of Readings						
Number	Thickness (Ins.)	_1	_2	3				
152-1	0.313	LT = 85.0 H = 5.5	84.9 5.7	85.1 6.2	84.4 4.8			
152-2	0.313	LT = 85.0 H = 4.9	85.7 5.6	84.9 5.0	84.6 5.5			
153-1	0.313	LT = 85.6 H = 5.0	85.1 4.9	84.1 5.4	84.6 5.1			
153-2	0.313	LT = 85.5 H = 5.0	85.2 5.2	85.4 5.4	85.7 5.1			
154-1	0.313	LT = 84.7 H = 4.5	85.2 5.9	85.7 4.9	83.7 4.3			
154-2	0.313	LT = 84.4 H = 2.8	83.7 3.7	84.6 4.0	83.2 2.6			
155-1	0,313	LT = 84.9 H = 4.8	86.3 5.2	84.8 4.9	84.2 4.9			
155-2	0.313	LT = 84.8 H = 5.1	85.0 5.8	84.2 5.1	83.8 5.1			

The 21 individual CD-1 triangular windows were dimensionally inspected for conformance to AMMRC drawing CD-1. The results obtained are contained in Table 24.

TABLE 24

DIMENSIONAL RESULTS OF TRIANGULAR WINDOWS

Panel	Th	ickness	i (Inche	s)	I	Dimensio	ons (Inc	ches)			
Number	1	2	3	4 Rec	<u>1t. 24.60</u>	13.63	0.50	1.00	<u>0.31R</u>	0.50R	<u>1.03R</u>
142-1	.100	.080	.087	.116 .09	24.51	13.55	.38	.95	ok	ok	ok
142-2	.103	.089	.090	.119 .09	24.55	13.58	.40	.98	ok	ok	ok
143-1	.095	.087	.099	.115 .09	94 24.52	13.55	.40	.89	ok	ok	ok
143-2	.104	.090	.091	.114 .09	94 24.50	13.54	.40	.93	ok	ok	ok
145-1	.096	.087	.091	.112 .09	94 24.49	13.60	.40	.97	ok	ok	ok
145-2	.095	.085	.095	.111 .09	94 24.50	13.60	.40	1.00	ok	ok	ok
146-1	.090	.083	.087	.107 .09	94 24.51	13.58	.44	.95	ok	ok	ok
146-2	.092	.091	.093	.109 .09	94 24.54	13.57	.45	.97	ok	ok	ok
148-1	.091	.094	.098	.111 .0	34 24.50	13.55	.47	1.00	ok	ok	ok
148-2	.096	.089	.100	.121 .0	94 24.53	13.58	.40	.94	ok	ok	ok
150-1	.291	.280	.302	.314 .3	13 24.50	13.56	.36	.86	ok	ok	ok
150-2	. 307	.288	.282	.330 .3	13 24.54	13.55	.42	.94	ok	ok	ok
151-1	.292	.292	.289	.324 .3	13 24.51	13.58	.40	.95	ok	ok	ok
152-1	. 297	.285	.293	.329 .3	13 24.53	13.60	.40	.95	ok	ok	ok
152-2	.302	.302	.297	.333 .3	13 24.53	13.61	.40	.95	ok	ok	ok
153-1	.318	.308	.312	.348 .3	13 24.49	13.57	.42	.95	ok	ok	ok
153-2	.325	.300	.311	.348 .3	13 24.51	13.55	.40	.93	ok	ok	ok
154-1	.305	.292	.291	.331 .3	13 24.51	13.60	.40	.95	ok	ok	ok
154-2	.307	.309	.307	.338 .3	13 24.53	13.57	.41	.95	ok	ok	ok
155-1	.324	.310	.310	.350 .3	13 24.51	13.55	.41	. 89	ok	ok	ok
155-1	.316	.302	.326	.337 .3	13 24.51	13.54	.41	.90	ok	ok	ok

والمحافظ والمحافظ والمرابعة والمتقال والمنافع والمحافظ والمرابع والمحافظ والمرابع

أسعم ومناد

44

i • • •

2.14

() mar



Location of light transmission, haze and thickness readings

The following 20 CD-1 triangular windows were delivered to AMMRC.

- o Ten windows nominal 0.094" thick, $(7.12 \text{ ounces/foot}^2)$. Two each Trial No. 142, 143, 145, 146 and 148.
- o Ten windows nominal 0.313'' thick, $(23.71 \text{ ounces/foot}^2)$. Two each Trial No. 150, 152, 153, 154 and 155.

In addition, 15 rolls, 0.001" x 32" wide of Hercules EK-500 Film was delivered to AMMRC. The total net weight was 860 pounds.

A summary of the Task VI molding trials, Numbers 138 through 156, is contained in Appendix A.

The actual molding cycles are contained in Appendix B as Figures VI-1 through VI-19.

CONCLUSIONS

Based on the results obtained during the performance of this program, the following conclusions can be reached.

- o The basic objective of this program, the determination of the optimum processing condition for oriented polyolefin film, has been successfully accomplished.
- o The manufacturing technology has been established for the production of transparent polyolefin film armor having acceptable levels of light transmission, haze, interply strength, surface protection, optical deviation, machinability and ballistic performance.
- As a direct result of the process optimization developed during this program, Swedlow produced triangular shaped helicopter windows for evaluation by AMMRC. The production of these windows demonstrated the validity of the production process and the feasibility of process scale up from the 12 inch by 12 inch by 20 ounces/ft² size.
- A range of sizes and thicknesses are now capable of being produced in molded oriented polyolefin.

Ż

Miles Links

RECOMMENDATIONS

As a result of the work conducted under this contract, the following areas have been identified where further development activity should be considered.

- o Improvement of the ultra-violet resistance of the oriented film.
- o Investigate additional protective covers and protective coatings.
- o Improvement of the bonding capability of the protective covers and protective coatings.
- o Determine practical limits of production, (thickness and size), and effects on optical qualities and ballistic limits.

A States VILA

DELIVERED ITEMS

1

During the performance of this contract, Task I through Task VI, the following items have been delivered by Swedlow, Inc. to AMMRC.

TASK

I

Π

ITEM

2 Moldings, 12" x 12" x 20 oz/ft² of N400 Reference Filmm (#15 and #16).

- 2 Layups, 14" x 14" x 20 oz/ft² of N400 Reference Film. (Crossplies, unmolded).
- 33 Moldings, $12'' \times 12'' \times 20 \text{ oz/ft}^2$. 2 each N600 (A.C.)(#21 and #23) 2 each Identified as N600 (Rev.), (#25 and #26), are N400 3 each AT61 (#22,#29 and #34) 2 each B503 (#18 and #19) 2 each P 2101 (#32 and #33) 2 each X207 (#37 and #39) 2 each P81B (#38 and #49) 2 each G.E. (#40 and #46) 3 each B500 (#41, #44 and #48) 3 each Identified as N400II (#45, #47 and #52), suspected to be N600 4 each SK300 (#57, #59 #60 and #61) 2 each Dia. Shamrock (#65 and #66) 2 each EK500 (#70 and #71) 2 each El Rexene (#69 and #72)
- 15 Layups, 12" x 12" x 20 oz/ft². (Cross-plies, unmolded)
 1 each P2102, N400 II
 (Suspected to be N600),
 N600 (A.C.), N600 (Rev.)(is N400) B503,
 AT61, G.E., X207, P818, B500,
 N400, SK300, Dia. Shamrock,
 EK500 and El Rexene.
- Moldings, 12" x 12" x 20 oz/ft² of EK 500 Film.
 (#76 through #80, #82 through #86, #88 through #91, #93 through #97, #99, #104, #117 and #119,

Ш

I۷

۷

٧I

Layups, 12" x 12" x 20 oz/ft².
(Unmolded)
1 Cross-plied, 1 not cross-plied.

Engineering Report No. 948 "Test Procedure for Determining The Optimum Processing Condition For Transparent Polyolefin Film Armor".

5 Moldings, 12" x 12" x 20 oz/ft². of EK 500 Film.
2 with SS-6590 protective coating (#131 and #132).
3 with protective covers (#118, #128 and #130).

Engineering Report No. 990 "Material Procurement Specification -Polypropylene Film for Transparent Armor".

> Engineering Report No. 991 "Process Specification - Production of Transparent Polyolefin Film Armor".

- 20 Triangular windows per AMMRC Drawing CD-1.
- 10 Windows 0.094" thick.
 (2 each #142, #143, #145, #146 and #148).
- 10 Windows 0.313" thick. (2 each #150, #152 through #155).

860 pounds of biaxially oriented EK-500 film. (15 rolls 0.001" thick by 32" wide)

REFERENCES

- 1. Swedlow Technical Proposal 76-0301 dated August 20, 1975 as amended by 76-0301.8 dated January 8, 1976.
- 2. Contract Number DAAG46-76-C-0034, effective date March 30, 1976, with amendment numbers P00001 and P00002.
- 3. Progress Report Number 1 dated June 1, 1976 through Number 28 dated March 31, 1981.
- 4. Alesi, A.L., Ames, R.P., Gagne, R.A., Litman, A.M. and Prifti, J.J., "New Materials and Construction for Improved Helmets", Army Materials and Mechanics Research Center, Watertown, Massachusetts, AMMRC MS 75-9, November 1975.
- 5. Prifti, J.J., DeLuca, E. and Alesi, A.L. "Hardened Tuned-Walled Plastic Radomes for Military Radars (U)," Army Materials and Mechanics Research Center, Watertown, Massachusetts.
- 6. Federal Standard 209 Clean Room and Work Station Requirements, Controlled Environment.
- 7. ASTM Standards Methods of Testing.
- 8. Box, G.E.P. and Behnken, D. W. "Some New Three Level Designs for the Study of Quantative Variables", Technometrics 2, 1960.

- 9. Davies, O.L., Editor, "The Design and Analysis of Industrial Experiments", Longman Group Limited, London and New York. Second Edition, 1978.
- 10. Military Specification MIL-P-25690A "Plastic, Sheets and Parts, Modified Acrylic Base, Monolithic, Crack Propagation Resistant".

APPENDIX A

÷.

Ę

I

7

SUMMARY OF MOLDING TRIALS

TASK I	-	Trial	Numbers	1 through 16
TASK II	-	Trial	Numbers	17 through 73
TASK III	-	Trial	Numbers	74 through 120
TASK IV	-	Trial	Numbers	121 through 137
TASK VI	-	Trial	Numbers	138 through 156

. - Charles and see al.

TASK I

PREPARATION OF REFERENCE FILM AND SHEET

Trial Numbers 1 through 16

ί.

TASK I

PREPARATION OF REFERENCE FILM AND SHEET

SUMMARY OF MOLDING TRIALS

TRIAL NUMBER

PROPERTY	-	2	m	4	5	6	7	8	6	10	=	12
Film Type	N400	N400	N400	N400	N400	N400	N400	N400	N400	N600 ¹	N400	N500 ¹
Number of Plies	200	212	240	240	236	238	239	252	252	001	252	100
Drying Temp. (°F)	220	220	160	160	160	160	190/205	200		200	R.T.	R.T.
Drying Time (Hrs.)	5.5	6.5	21	40	45	63	2.5	9		9	Q	9
Vacuum (Hrs.)	No	No	12	40	45	63	2.5	6 @ R.T.	8 1	6 @ R.T.	6@R.T.	6 W K.f.
Pressure (Psi)	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000	8	2000	2000	2000
Heat Up (Minutes)	24	27	•	24	22	24	29	25	1	25	15	15
Dwell (Minutes)	แ	S	-	10	ŝ	9	60	01	1	15	10	10
Maximum Temp. (°F)	328	330	354	327	319	317	319	320	1	322	318	318
Thickness (In.)	.235	.2602	.170/	.245/ .303	.220/	.220/	.210/	.150	1	.230	.135	.105
Light Trans. (%)	12	15	30	20	32	36	20	43/56	ļ	35/42	47/55	57/62
Date	6/28	6/29	8/4	8/5	8/5	8/6	8/11	8/18	1	8/25	8/26	8/27
¹ Film identified	as Herci	ules N60	0, Rolle	d by Reve	ire, ts	N400						

.

CO₂ cooled Temperature overrun - part badly flowed. Extruded through thermocouple opening. Oven override during drying cycle n .

• • • • •

1

•

.

TASK I (Cont) PREPARATION OF REFERENCE FILM AND SHEET

SUMMARY OF MOLDING TRIALS

		TRIAL NUMB	ER	
PROPERTY	13	14	15	16
Film Type	B-503	N-400	N-400	N-400
Number of Plies	242	240	232	232
Drying Temp. (°F)	R.T.	R.T.	R.T.	R.T.
Drying Time (Hrs.)	6	9	9	6
Vacuum	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Pressure (Psi)	2000	2000	2000	2000
Hea⁺ Up (Minutes)	35	25	35	30
Dwell (Minutes)	10	15	15	15
Maximum Temp. (°F)	290	314	314	314
Thickness (In.)	0.150	ı	ł	ı
or				
Weight (oz/ft²)	ı	21.2	20.24	20.53
Light Trans. (%)	76/80	30/40	40/53	40/48
Haze (%)		75/80		
Date	9-2	9-28	9-28	9-28

-

TASK II

EFFECT OF FILM CHARACTERISTICS

Trial Numbers 17 through 73

TASK II

EFFECT OF FILM CHARACTERISTICS

SUMMARY OF MOLDING TRIALS

			TRIAL	NUMBER		
PROPERTY	11	18	19	20	21	22
Film Type	B-503	B-503	B-503	N-600 ¹	N-600 ¹	AT-61
Number of Plies	226	246	226	184	184	254
Drying Temp. (°F)	R.T.	R.T.	R.T.	R.T.	R.T.	R.T.
Drying Time (Hrs.)	Q	9	Q	24	24	24
Vacuum	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Pressure (Ps1)	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000
Heat Up (Minutes)	25	30	25	20	16	14
Dwell (Minutes)	10	15	25	8	12	14
Maximum Temp. (°F)	293	292	293	322	327	330
Weight (oz/ft²)	20.74	21.02	20.42	20.51	20.7	20.06
Light Trans. (%)	83.6/ 89.2	84.7/ 87.5	85.5/ 86.7	88.8/ 94.2	87.6/ 91.3	63.7/ 73.5
Haze (%)	3.9/7.8	4.0/4.6	3.0/4.3	4.3/6.5	4.9/8.3	38.7/46.2
Date	9-29	9-29	9-29	10-29	10-29	10-29

,

• • •

• **1**

l

TASK II (Cont.) Page 2 EFFECT OF FILM CHARACTERISTICS SUMMARY OF MOLDING TRIALS

P2102 20.35 R.T. 23.0/ 25.9 11-3 80.7/ 83.2 140 30 20 Yes 2000 323 24 12 R. T. £-11 AT-61 18.34 250 69.5/ 74.7 34.8/ 40.9 16 2000 29 Yes 30 324 ω 250 18.86 AT-61 R. T. 11-3 68.0/ 75.2 37.6/ 41.6 28 5 Yes 2000 322 21 ŝ 20.66 21.7/ 38.7 73.6/ 88.0 311.5 R.T. 11-2 N600² 585 Gms 96 2000 23 27 Yes ω TRIAL NUMBER V600² R. T. 21.37 23.3/ 35.2 76.6/ 90.8 585 Gms 26 96 Yes 2000 16 27 317 11-2 20.64 96.5/ 100.0 17.2/ 25.5 328.5 N600² R. T. 580 Gms 72 2000 25 Yes 16 10 1.4/6.3 20.37 87.2/ 90.1 331.5 N600¹ R. T. 1-11 184 24 72 Yes 2000 16 Ξ 4.9/7.5 N600¹ 20.38 R. T. 88.4/ 89.3 23 184 72 Yes 2000 18 330 σ 11-1 Drying Time (Hrs.) Maxinum Temp. (°F) Drying Temp. (°F) (%) (%) Heat Up (Minutes) Number of Plies (or Unit Weight) Dwell (Minutes) Weight (oz/ft²) Pressure (Psi) Light Trans. Film Type PROPERTY Vacuum Haze Date

TASK II (Cont.) Page 3 EFFECT OF FILM CHARACTERISTICS SUMMARY OF MOLDING TRIALS

ļ.

. . .

.

					TRIAL NUM	BER						
DBUDFRTY	31	32	33	34	35	36	37	38	39	40	41	42
	01100	P2102	P2102	AT-61	AT-61	G. E.)	(-207	P-81-B	X-207	G. E. f	3-500	N400 ³
rıım iype Number of Plies	140	140	116	250	250	242	264	222	264	242	220	306
(or Unit Weight)	F	Ē	R, T,	R. T.	R. T.	R. T.	R. T.	R. T.	R. T.	R. T.	R. T.	R. T.
Urying temp. (''')		336	96	504	504	17	19	23	66	70	17	20
Drying Ime (Ars.)	000		Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Vacuum	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000
Pressure (PSI)	26	16	18	18	22	20	16	14	15	15	91	13
Heat Up (minutes)		2 7		9	13	ω	8	12	12	11	12	14
Dwell (Minutes)	2 .		321 5	321.5	330	328	327.5	326.5	328	327	326	326.5
Maximum lemp. (°F)	323.5 90 00	250 20 3(0.18 0.18	18.9	18.8	20.07	19.9	20.7	20.04	19.82	20.9	20.3
weight (oz/rt ⁻) Light Trans. (%)	20.20 79.3/ 81.7	78.6 78.1	/ 79.4/ 81.0	72.7/ 74.5	66.4/ 73.0	/ 79.6/ 81.4	, 78.0/ 80.4	71.5/ 74.0	76.1/ 78.4	80.5/ 82.3	/ 82.9/ 8 4.0	86.4/ 87.5
Haze (X)	23.8/ 26.9	23.3 26.5	/ 23.1/ 24.5	33.7/ 36.2	35.1, 42.2	/ 8.3/ 9.1	, 4.8/ 5.9	6.6/ 10.8	6.3/ 7.6	5.4	4.2	11.2/ 16.8
Date	12-6	12-6	12-7	12-7	12-7	12-8	12-8	12-8	12-9	12-9	12-14	12-14

TASK II (Cont) Page 4 EFFECT OF FILM CHARACTERISTICS SUMMARY OF MOLDING TRIALS

.

t

;

					TRIA	L NUMBER					
PROPERTY	43	44	45	46	47	48	49	50	51	52	53
Film Type	P-81-B	B-500	N400 ³	с. Е.	N4003	B-500	p-81-8	X-207	N400 ³	N400 ⁵	B-5 00
Number of Plies (or Unit Weight)	588 Gms	214	302	264	300	220	222	264	300	300	240
Drying Temp. (°F)	R. T.	R. T.	R. T.	R. T.	R. T.	R. T.	R. T.	R. T.	R. T.	R. T.	R. T.
Drying Time (Hrs.)	22	42	45	66	68	69	88	06	12	25	27
Vacuum	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Pressure (Psi)	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000
Heat Up (Minutes)	14	16	17	16	15	13	16	15	14	15	15
Dwell (Minutes)	10	01	12	8	10	14	10	12	13	12	14
Maximum Temp. (°F)	325.5	327	328	328	328	327.5	327	326	328	329	329
Weight (oz/ft²)	20.6	20.6	20.4	19.6	20.3	20.4	20.4	20.4	20.4	20.2	20.5
Light Trans. (%)	72.6/ 73.5	82.7/ 83.0	86.2/ 87.4	79.6/ 80.6	87.4/ 88.2	82.4/ 83.3	72.5/ 73.7	79.2/ 84.6	84.1/ 85.7	85.3/ 87.5	83.7/ 84.1
Haze (%)	8.6/ 10.5	4.1/ 5.2	14. 8/ 23.5	4.2/ 4.9	20.9/ 25.5	3.9/ 4.4	7.8/~ 8.6	6.3/ 7.4	20.0/ 26.5	19.6/ 28.1	3.3/ 4.3
Date	12-14	12-15	12-15	12-20	12-20	12-20	12-21	12-21	12-28	12-28	12-28

TASK II (Cont) Page 5 EFFECT OF FILM CHARACTERISTICS SUMMARY OF MOLDING TRIALS

				TRIAL N	JMBER					
PROPERTY	54	55	56	57	58	59	60	61	62	
Film Type	SK-300-2	SK-300-2	SK-300-2	SK-300-2	SK-300-2	SK-300-2	SK-300-2	SK-300-2	SK-300-2	
Number of Plies (or Unit Weight)	06	06	06	06	06	06	06	06	06	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Drying Temp. (°F)	R. T.	R. T.	R. T.	R. T.	R. T.	R. T.	R. T.	R. T.	R. T.	
Drying Time (Hrs.)	61	21	45	51	22	25	49	51	70	
Vacuum	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	
Pressure (Psi)	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000	
Heat Up (Minutes)	16	22	22	21	19	15	16	16	16	
Owell (Minutes)	12	14	20	14	9	ω	8	8	12	
Maximum Temp. (°F)	329.5	340	356.6	349.5	345	344	343.3	344	343	
eight (oz/ft²)	20.4	20.45	20.6	20.5	20.3	20.4	20.3	20.2	20.5	
.ight Trans. (%)	86.2/ 88.2	85.4/ 87.2	37.3/ 39.7	65.0/ 69.5	81.8/ 83.6	82.4/ 83.8	83.3/ 84.8	83.3/ 84.1	83.9/ 87.1	
iaze (%)	7.0/ 10.8	7.7/ 9.4	99.0/ 100	2 4 .5/ 27.3	11.4/ 14.5	6.7/ 8.0	5.8/ 6.7	6.0/ 8.3	7.0/ 7.9	
late	1-5	1-5	1-6	1-6	1-12	1-12	1-13	1-13	1-14	

;

1111

•

- • i

1 1 1

1

Ĩ

TASK II (Cont) Page 6 EFFECT OF FILM CHARACTERISTICS SUMMARY OF MOLDING TRIALS

•

1

1

67.4/ 71.5 9-28 570 Gms. 20.1 0 R.T. 326 2000 Yes 20 14 D.S. 60 68 9-27 568 Gms. 91.5 14.7 20.0 R.T. 328 Yes 2000 25 12 Е.R. 40 67 53.6/ 71.6 9-27 21.2 570 Gms. 20.0 R.T. 323 2000 18 Yes 17 D.S. 99 38 NUMBER TRIAL 35.4/ 44.4 32.5/ 9-27 575 Gms. 20.3 R.T. 320 20 2000 ω Yes D.S. 65 36 20.7/ 43.0 580 Gms. 73.6 9-26 18.6 R.T. 332 D.S.⁵ 2000 15 10 Yes 64 14 13.5/ 18.5 87.7/ 91.5 575 Gms. 9-26 20.4 R.T. 346 15 2000 15 Yes 63 ER " 12 Drying Time (Hours) Maximum Temp. (^OF) Drying Temp. (^OF) Heat Up (Minutes) (% Light Trans. (%) Number of Plies (or Unit Weight) Weight (oz/ft²) Dwell (Minutes) Pressure (Psi) Film Type PROPERTY Vacuum Haze Date

69 70 71 72 73 $E.R.$ $E.R.$ $E.S_{50}$ $E500$ $E1$ $R.T$ <th></th> <th></th> <th></th> <th>TRIAL NUMBER</th> <th></th> <th></th>				TRIAL NUMBER		
F Pites E. R. E K-500 E K-1 E K-500 E K-500 E K-1 E K-1 E K-500 E K-500 E K-7		0y	70	11	72	73
F Pites 570 Gms. 771 m. R. T.			EK-500	EK-500	E. R.	EK-500
Weight) 568 dms. 500 dms. 500 dms. R_1T	e F Plies	E. N.	CH C	570 Gms.	572 Gms.	570 Gms.
emp. (^{0}F) R.T. R.T. R.T. R.T. R.T. R.T. R.T. 10 ime (Hrs) 62 64 66 108 110 res Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes $(ps1)$ 2000 2001 2011 </td <td>Weight)</td> <td>568 Gms.</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>р. Т.</td> <td>R.T.</td>	Weight)	568 Gms.			р. Т.	R.T.
me (Hrs) 62 64 00 Yes Ye	emp. (^O F)	R.T.	R.T.	R.1. 66	108	011
Yes Yes <td>ime (Hrs)</td> <td>62</td> <td>64</td> <td>00</td> <td></td> <td>Yes</td>	ime (Hrs)	62	64	00		Yes
(psi) 2000 2000 2000 2000 2000 (Minutes) 17 19 17 14 (Minutes) 18 12 15 12 12 Temp. (^{O}F) 335 330.5 332 351 348 Temp. (^{O}F) 335 330.5 332 351 348 Temp. (^{O}F) 335 330.5 332 351 348 Temp. (^{O}F) 335 330.5 332 351 348 Temp. (^{O}F) 335 332 351 348 Temp. (^{O}F) 335 351 348 86.7 ass. (^{O}F) 88.8 88.8 88.8 86.7 86.7 ans. (S) 88.8 87.2 88.8 60.0 36.2 3.4/8.6 (S) 11.2 1.8/3.6 38.2 54.0 60.1 86.7 86.7 S 88.8 88.8 88.8 88.8 86.7 60.0 60.1 60.1 60.1 60.1 62.1 62.1 62.1<		Λος	Yes	Yes	tes	
(psi) 2000 $cuod$ 17 19 17 14 (Minutes) 17 19 17 12 12 12 (Minutes) 18 12 15 15 351 348 Temp. (^{O}F) 335 330.5 332 351 348 Temp. (^{O}F) 335 330.5 332 351 348 Temp. (^{O}F) 335 30.5 332 351 20.1 $^{27}/ft^2$) 20.0 20.1 20.1 20.1 20.1 $^{27}/ft^2$) 20.0 20.1 20.1 20.1 20.1 $^{27}/ft^2$) 20.0 20.1 20.1 20.1 20.1 $^{27}/ft^2$) 20.0 $^{21}/ft^2$ $^{21}/ft^2$ $^{24}/ft^6$ $^{60.0}/ft^6$ $^{44.0}/ft^6$ $^{111.2}/ft 0/1.5 1.8/3.6 ^{44.0}/ft^6 ^{44.0}/ft^6 ^{44.0}/ft^6 (g) 11.2/ft 0.71.5 1.8/3.6 ^{44.0}/ft^6 ^{10-3}/ft^6 g_{20} 11.2/ft 1.8/3.6 ^{44.0}/ft^6 ^{44$				2000	2000	2000
(Minutes) 17 19 17 19 17 12 335 330.5 330.5 331 351 348 <td>(psi)</td> <td>2000</td> <td>0007</td> <td>ŗ</td> <td>17</td> <td>14</td>	(psi)	2000	0007	ŗ	17	14
Image 12 15 12 15 12 351 348 Temp. (^{0}F) 335 330.5 332.5 332 351 348 Temp. (^{0}F) 335 330.5 332.5 332 351 348 $^{22}/ft^2$) 20.0 20.1 20.14 20.1 20.1 $^{22}/ft^2$) 20.0 20.1 20.14 20.1 20.1 $^{22}/ft^2$) 88.8/ 87.2/ 87.5/ 60.0 84.8/ rans. (x) 88.8/ 87.2/ 88.8 60.0 84.8/ 21 18/3.6 91.8/3.6 54.7/ 86.7 86.7 21 11.2/ 0/1.5 1.8/3.6 38.2/ 3.4/8.6 31 11.2/ 0/1.5 1.8/3.6 38.2/ 3.4/8.6 21 11.2/ 0/1.5 1.8/3.6 38.2/ 3.4/8.6 21 11.2/ 0/1.5 1.8/3.6 38.2/ 3.4/8.6 22 9-28 9-28 9-28 10-3 10-3 21	(Minutes)	17	61	/1	- C	12
Inutes)10330.5332351348Temp. (^{0}F)335330.5332.5332351348 $2z/ft^2$)20.020.120.1420.120.1 $2z/ft^2$)20.020.120.1420.120.1 $2z/ft^2$)20.020.120.1420.120.1 $2z/ft^2$)20.020.120.1420.120.1 zz/ft^2)88.887.5/87.5/54.7/84.8/rans. (x)88.8/87.5/87.5/50.086.7 $ans.$ (x)88.8/87.5/87.5/50.086.7 (x) 11.2/0/1.51.8/3.638.2/3.4/8.6 (x) 18.40/1.51.8/3.638.2/3.4/8.6 (x) 18.40/1.51.8/3.63.2/9.5 (x) 19.40/1.51.8/3.63.2/9.5 (x) 11.20.10/1.5<		C F	12	15	12	3
Temp. (^{0}F) 335330.5330.5330.5330.5330.5330.5330.120.120.120.120.1 $zz/ft^2)$ $z0.0$ $z0.1$ $z0.14$ $z0.14$ $z0.1$ $z0.1$ $z0.1$ $z0.1$ $zz/ft^2)$ $z0.0$ $z0.1$ $z0.14$ $z0.14$ $z0.1$ $z0.1$ $z0.1$ $zrowszrowszrowszrowszrowszrowszrowszrowsrans.(z)zrowszrowszrowszrowszrowszrowsrans.(z)zrowszrowszrowszrowszrowszrowsrans.(z)zrowszrowszrowszrowszrowszrows(z)zrowszroszroszroszroszroszroszros(z)zroszroszroszroszroszroszroszros(z)zroszroszroszroszroszroszroszros(z)zroszroszroszroszroszroszroszros(z)zroszroszroszroszroszroszroszros(z)zroszroszroszroszroszroszroszros(z)zroszroszroszroszroszroszroszros$	finutes)	Ø	1	000	351	348
zz/ft ²) 20.0 20.1 20.14 20.1 zz/ft ²) 20.0 20.1 87.5/ 54.7/ 84.8/ rans. (%) 88.8/ 87.2/ 87.5/ 54.7/ 84.8/ rans. (%) 88.8/ 87.5/ 54.7/ 84.8/ 86.7 rans. (%) 88.8/ 87.5/ 57.6 50.0 86.7 ans. (%) 88.8/ 87.5/ 51.8/3.6 54.0 86.7 (%) 11.2/ 0/1.5 1.8/3.6 38.2/ 3.4/8.6 (%) 11.2/ 0/1.5 1.8/3.6 38.2/ 3.4/8.6 (%) 11.2/ 0/1.5 1.8/3.6 38.2/ 3.4/8.6 9.28 9-28 9-28 10-3 10-3 9-28 9-28 9-28 10-3 10-3 0.5 0.600 rolled by American Can 10-3 10-3 adiomifed as Hercules N-600, rolled by Revere, is N400 5 5 5 midentified as Hercules N-400 Clear rolled by Revere 5 5 5 adiom Designation Type III) suspected to be N600 5	Temp. (^O F)	335	330.5	336		20.1
D2/ft ⁻) 54.7/ 84.8/ D2/ft ⁻) 88.8 87.5/ 54.7/ 84.8/ rans. 92.0 89.8 89.8 88.8 86.7 rans. 92.0 89.8 89.8 88.8 86.7 86.7 rans. 92.0 89.8 89.8 88.8 86.7 86.7 (x) 11.2/ 0/1.5 1.8/3.6 38.2/ 3.4/8.6 (x) 11.2/ 0/1.5 1.8/3.6 38.2/ 3.4/8.6 (x) 18.4 0/1.5 1.8/3.6 38.2/ 3.4/8.6 9-28 9-28 9-28 10-3 10-3 10-3 9-28 9-28 9-28 10-3 10-3 10-3 9-28 9-28 9-28 9.28 10-3 10-3 cules N-600 rolled by American Can 9-28 9-28 10-3 10-3 cules N-600 rolled by American Can 9-28 9-28 10-3 10-3 ridentified as Hercules N-4000 rolled by Revere is N400 5 Diamond Shamrock Film No. NB-81-59-9 adlow Designa		0 U	20.1	20.14	20.1	
rans. (#) 88.8/ 89.8 89.8 60.0 80.7 92.0 39.2/ 88.8 60.0 80.7 (#) 11.2/ 0/1.5 1.8/3.6 44.0 3.4/8.6 44.0 10-3 9-28 9-28 10-3 10-3 10-3 9-28 9-28 9-28 10-3 10-3 10-3 10-3 cules N-600 rolled by Revere, is N400 5 Diamond Shamrock Film No. NB-81-59-9 m identified as Hercules N-600, rolled by Revere is N400 5 Diamond Shamrock Film No. NB-81-59-9 m identified as Hercules N-400 Clear rolled by Revere is N400 5 Diamond Shamrock Film No. NB-81-59-9)z/ft [_])	20.02	1	07 61	54.7/	84.8/
 (%) 11.2/ 18.4 (%) 11.2/ 18.4 (%) 11.2/ 18.4 (%) 11.2/ 18.4 (%) 11.2/ 18.4 (%) 11.2/ 44.0 (%) 10-3 (%)	rans. (%)	88.8/ 02 0	87.2/ 89.8	88.8	60.0	90.7
9-28 9-28 9-28 9-28 9-28 10-3 10-3 9-28 9-28 10-3 9-28 9-28 9-28 10-3 9-28 9-28 10-3 9-28 10-3 9-28 10-3 9-28 10-3 10-3 10-3 10-3 10-3 10-3 10-3 10-3	(%)	11.2/	0/1.5	1.8/3.6	38.2/ 44.0	3.4/8.0
9-28 9-28 9-28 9-28 9-28 P-41-6300-4153 P-41-6300 P-41-6400 P		18.4			10-3	10-3
cules N-600 rolled by American Can Im identified as Hercules N-600, rolled by Revere, is N400 ⁵ Diamond Shamrock Film No. NB-01-33-3 Im identified as Hercules N-400 Clear rolled by Revere wedlow Designation Type II) suspected to be N600		9-28	9-28	6-28	4 Fl Rexene Film	No. PP-41-6300-4153
im identified as Hercures N-400 Clear rolled by Revere im identified as Hercules N-400 Clear rolled by Revere wedlow Designation Type II) suspected to be N600	cules N-600 r	olled by Americ	an Can on rolled by Revere	e, is N400	5 Diamond Shamro	k Film No. NB-81-33-3
	im identified im identified vedlow Designa	as mercures mercures as Hercules N-4 at the II s at the II s	00 Clear rolled by 1 uspected to be N600	levere .		

FFFCT OF FILM CHARACTERISTICS 5

. .

1 i

•

.

41 e 1

]

....

TASK III

MOLDING FLAT SHEET

ŝ

Trial Numbers 74 through 120

TASK III

i

MOLDING FLAT SHEET

SUMMARY OF MOLDING TRIALS (HERCULES EK-500 FILM)

TRIAL NUMBER

÷

ł

PROPERTY	74	75	76	11	78	62	80	81	82	83
Number of Plies (or Unit Weight)	570 GMS									
Drvina Temp. (°F)	R.T.									
Drving Time (Hours)	36	38	011	115	300	304	168	171	216	220
Vacuum	Yes									
Pressure (Psi)	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000	1550	1550	1550
Heat IIn (Minutes)	20	27	13	21	21	24	27	42	(1)	25
mall (Minutes)	2 UL	14	1	8	ස	15	4	32	t 1	60
Wath (marcs)	330	331.5	331.5	324.5	321	328	304	331	352	304
Hatmun temp. ()		20.1	20.1	20.2	20.1	20.1	20.1	20.2	10.1	20.1
Hergine (02/10)	78 2/83.4	80.5/83.3	80.6/83.8	81.6/84.1	82.1/84.3	82.5/83.9	84.3/86.2	81.9/84.8	49.7/58.4	82.6/84.4
	4.1/25.4	3.3/5.7	2.6/5.8	2.4/5.4	4.0/4.5	4.5/5.8	3.1/5.1	2.3/5.2	î L	2.8/5.6
Date	6-8	6-8	6-11	6-11	6-18	6-18	6-27	6-27	6-28	6-28

Î

のなな

TASK III (Cont) Page 2 MOLDING FLAT SHEET SUMMARY OF MOLDING TRIALS (HERCULES EK-500 FILM)

•

Ì.

ĺ

.

TRIAL NUMBER

PROPERTY	8	85	86	87	88	68	60	16	92
Number of Plies			ETO CHC	SAC CMS	570 GMS	570 GMS	570 GMS	570 GMS	570 GMS
(or Unit Weight)	570 GMS	sma n/c			23000				
Drving Temp. (°F)	R.T.	R.T.							
Drvina Time (Hours)	244	200	200	720	450	400	400	400	60
Varilitie	Yes	Yes							
Pressure (Psi)	1550	1550	001	1550	1550	1550	500	500	500
Heat Up (Minutes)	35	31	25	27	35	44	30	35	40
Minutes)	30	30	30	31	30	-	30		60
Wavimum Temp (°E)	331	332	306	331.5	332	348.5	349(3)	331.5	333
Watcht (02/ft ²)	20.1	20.0	20.1(2)	20.3	20.1	20.1	20.1	20.1 ⁽⁴⁾	20.1
light Trans. (%)	82.3/84.4	80.0/81.3	78.5/79.3	83.6/86.3	82.3/85.0	77.3/82.1	33.0/72.6	80.6/83.3	-(5)
Haze (%)	3.3/6.7	3.0/6.4	6.4/7.7	2.6/7.0	2.7/7.3	5.2/8.5	6.5/92.8	2.8/8.0	-(5)
Date	6-29	6-29	6-29	8-7	8-8	8-9	8-9	8-9	8-13
TASK III (Cont) Page 3 MOLDING FLAT SHEET SUMMARY OF MOLDING TRIALS

(HERCULES EK-500 FILM)

			TRIAL NUP	1 BER			
- PROPERTY	93	94	95	96	97	98	66
Number of Plies (or Unit Weight)	570 GMS	570 GMS	570 GMS	570 GMS	570 GMS	570 GMS	570 GMS
Drying Temp. (°F)	R.T.	R.T.	R.T.	R.T.	R.T.	R.T.	R.T.
Drying Time (Hours)	60	100	180	180	200	200	260
Vacuum	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Pressure (Ps1)	500	750	3000	3000	3000	3000	3000
Heat Up (Minutes)	37	50	18	19	45	45	30
Dwell (Minutes)	60	60	30		60	30	30
Maximum Temp. (°F)	332	332	306	302	330	350 ⁽³⁾	350
Welght (Oz/Ft ²)	20.1 ⁽⁴⁾	20.1	20.1	19.9	20°Ú	19.2	19.9
Light Trans. (%)	54.7/79.0	81.8/84.5	81.6/83.2	82.4/84.3	80.1/82.5	55.5/65.2	72.3/75.3
Haze (%)	8.7/74.8	3.3/6.0	2.9/4.5	2.4/4.6	2.8/7.0	51.7/88.6	6.4/7.3
Date	8-13	8-15	8-22	8-22	8-24	8-24	8-27

•••

• •

•

•

•

• • • • •

• •

ľ

Î

DING FLAT SHEET		
nt) Page 4 MOLDI	OLDING TRIALS	<-500 FILM)
TASK III (Co	SUMMARY OF M	(HERCULES EK

TRIAL NUMBER

DRADFRTY	100	101	102	103	104	105
Number of Plies (or limit Mainht)	570 Gms					
(UT UNITE WEIGHT)	R.T.	R.T.	R.T.	R.T.	R.T.	R.T.
Drving Time (Hours)	+ 008	+ 009	+ 008	800 +	+ 009	600 +
Vacility	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Presentre (pet)	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000
Heat In (Minutes)	20	20	15	15	15	15
neat op (mmaco) Man≑ac)	R	30	30	30	30	30
Unell (ninuces/	339	338	334	333	334	333
Maximum lemp. ('') Wałaht (0,/5+ ²)	20.1	20.1	20.1	20.1	20.0	20.0
licht Trans. (%)	72.3/83.3	74.3/83.4	79.5/84.9	80.1/84.5	78.6/82.9	78.5/83.3
Haze (%)	2.5/9.1	3.7/6.7	3.5/6.8	2.1/4.6	3.0/5.0	3.2/5.7
Date	2-28	2-28	2-29	2-29	2-29	2-29

ì

TASK III (Cont) Page 5 MOLDING FLAT SHEET

SUMMARY OF MOLDING TRIALS

(HERCULES EK-500 FILM)

NUMBER	
TRIAL	

PROPERTY	106	107	108	109	110	=	112	113
Number of Plies	5.70 fame	570 Gms						
(or unit weight) Druing Temp (°F)	8.T.	R.T.						
Drving Time (Hours)	600 +	36	36	40	140 +	+ 09	80 +	+ 0/
Vacuum	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Drecelline (Pct)	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000
Heat In (Minutes)	01	10	10	10	10	20	10	10
mar of minaco	9. UK	30	30	30	30	30	40	45
		666	335	334	335	338	337	337
Maximum lemp. ('r')	30C 20 0	20-1	20.1	20.1	20.1	20.1	20.0	20.1
Weight (UZ/Ft)	0.02	R1 1/85_0	79.3/86.2	81.3/86.7	62.7/82.7	77.5/84.7	79.7/83.7	72.2/85.1
Light Irans. (%)	11.0/04.1	3.0/11.9	4.0/25.7	2.6/12.9	4.3/91.3	3.4/5.9	1.6/4.9	4.1/63.9
haze (*) Date	3-3	3-5	3-5	3-5	3-10	3-10	3-10	3-11

- •

. :

•

•

1.1.1

+----

TASK III (Cont) Page 6 MOLDING FLAT SHEET SUMMARY OF MOLDING TRIALS

(HERCULES EK-500 FILM)

					TRIAL NUMBE	¥		
PR()PERTY	114	115	116	117	118	119	120
Numbe (or L	er of Plies Unit Weight)	570 Gms	570 Gms	570 Gms	570 Gms	570 Gms	570 Gms	570 Gms
Dryin	ig Temp. (°F)	R.T.	R.T.	R.T.	R.T.	R.T.	R.T.	R.T.
Dryin	ng Time (Hours)	+ 06	6 0 +	+ 09	+ 09	+ 08	80 +	400 +
Vacuu	E	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Press	ure (Psi)	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000
Heat	Up (Minutes)	10	30	15	15	15	15	10
Dwell	(Minutes)	40	30	30	30	30	30	30
Maxim	wm Temp (°F)	335	339	338	338	338	338	339
Weigh	t (0z/Ft ²)	20.1	20.1	20.1	20.1	20.1	20.1	20.1
Light	Trans. (%)	75.8/84.9	81.4/86.9	82.1/86.0	82.3/84.6	82.7/85.9	81.6/85.0	81.7/84.8
Haze	(%)	2.9/56.6	0.9/3.8	2.2/4.6	1.4/4.5	2.5/6.7	2.6/4.9	2.3/4.8
Date		3-12	4-3	4-3	4-3	4-4	4-4	4-4
(1) (2)	Objective temperature, 36 Shrank to 10 11/16 x 11 1,	0°F. Melt at /16 during mo	352°F. Jding.					
243	Started to melt. Shrank to 11 3/4 x 11 3/4 Caul plate left off - L.T.	during moldi . and haze no	ing. ot measured.					

ï

ī

TASK IV

PROTECTIVE COVERS Trial Numbers 121 through 137

ł

. . .

				ROPERTY	<pre>humber of Plies or Unit Weight, GMS)</pre>	hrying Temp. (°F)	hrying Time (Hour	acuum	ressure (Pst)	eat Up (Minutes)	well (Minutes)	aximum Temp. (°F	eight (oz/ft²)	ight Trans. (%)	aze (%)	te
				121	570	R.T.	-s) 390+	Yes	2000	15	30) 339	20.0	76.7/ 79.9	¹ 26.8/ 37.1	6-10
				122	570	R.T.	380+	Yes	2000	15	30	334	20.0	79.6/ 81.7	¹ 27.8/ 31.9	6-10
	S I			123	570	R.T.	400+	Yes	2000	15	30	334	20.1	83.2/ 85.4	3.0/ 4.0	6-12
TASK	PROTECTIV	(HERCULES EK		124	570	R.T.	4004	Yes	2000	15	30	333	20.1	82.2/ 84.2	112.2/ 16.1	6-12
<u>I</u>	E COVERS LDING TRIALS		TRIAL NUMBER	125	570	R.T.	4004	Yes	2000	15	30	333	20.1	82.8/ 84.2	2.5/ 3.2	6-13
			~	- 126	570	R.T.	4004	Yes	2000	15	30	334	20.1	80.5/ 82.9	12.4/ 16.9	6-13
				127	570	R.T.	ê Ç	Yes	2000	15	30	334	20.1	83.0/ 86.8	6.1/ 7.6	6-18
				128	570	R.T.	+00+	Yes	2000	15	30	338	20.1	82.8/ 86.1	3.3/ 4 .7	6-1
				129	570	R.T.	4004	Yes	2000	15	30	334	20.1	82.7/ 85.8	3.0/ 4.2	6-1

-

•

••

•

- .

•

PROTECTIVE COVERS	
2	
Page	
(Cont)	
2	
TASK	

KG TRI	FILM)
MOLDI	EK-500
MRY OF	CULES
SUR	(HER

		135
	MBER	134
	TRIAL NU	133
		132
		131
RIALS	H)	130
ARY OF MOLDING TI	ICULES EK-500 FILI	DERTY

PROPERTY	130	131	132	133	134	135	136	137
Number of Plies (or Unit Weight,	570	570	570	570	570	570	570	570
GMS) David and Tomm (°E)	R T	R.T.						
		4004	400+	400+	450+	450+	450+	450+
Urying lime (Hrs.)	- DO+ :			Уас	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Vacuum	Yes	les				0000	0006	2000
Pressure (Psi)	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000	0007	F000
Heat Up (Minutes)	15	15	15	20	15	15	15	15
Mell (Minutes)	30	30	30	30	30	30	30	30
Mavimum Temm (°E)	335	336	345	332	340	346	334	339/330 ²
Hainht (n2/ft ²)	20.0	20.0	20.0	20.6	20.0	20.1	20.1	20.1
Light Trans. (%)	82.6/ 86.5	82.6/ 86.3	81.0/ 84.7	84.1/ 86.5	80.4/ 85.4	65.7/ 84.8	72.8/ 84.4	75.3/ 84.4
Haze (%)	2.3/4.0	2.3/4.9	3.1/6.2	2.5/5.2	2.2/31.2	3.0/41.7	2.4/59.2	2.9/38.9
Date	01-7	7-10	11-2	11-7	7-14	7-14	7-14	7-14

¹ Incorporated Diamond Shamrock UV film on each surface. NOTES:

² Two thermocouples placed in molding.

TASK VI

1

PRODUCTION OF FILM AND BONDED SHEET Trial Numbers 138 through 156

IASK VI	

PRODUCTION OF FILM AND BONDED SHEET

SUMMARY OF MOLDING TRIALS

(HERCULES EK-500 FILM) TRIAL NUMBER

PROPERTY	138	139	140	141	142	143	144	145	146	147	148
Number of Plies (or Unit Weight, GMS)	570	570	96	94	105	104	105	105	105	105	105
Drying Temp. (°F)	R.T.	R.T.	R.T.	R.T.	R.T.	R.T.	R.T.	R.T.	R.T.	R.T.	R.T.
Drying Time (Hrs)	50+	60+	400+	400+	400+	400+	400+	400+	400+	400+	400+
Vacuum	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Pressure (Psi)	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000
Heat Up (Minutes)	35	35	20	30	20	20	20	15	20	15	15
Dwell(Minutes)	30	30	10	30	30	30	30	30	30	30	30
Maximum Temp.(°F)	341	338	349	336	341	338	334	336	332	337	337
Weight (oz/ft²)	20.1	20.1	1	I	I	1	I	L	1	-	-
Light Trans. (%)	83.2/ 86.1	82.7/ 85.6	en	ŋ	88.0/ 91.2	89.3/ 90.6	ຕ	89.5/ 91.1	89.6/ 90.8	m	88.0/ 90.2
Haze (%)	3.2/ 4.6	2.4/ 5.7	er)	m	2.0/ 4.8	2.2/ 4.4	m	1.9/ 3.2	2.6/ 3.8	m	1.9/ 5.3
Date	8-25	8-26	11-30	12-1	12-2	12-2	12-2	12-3	12-3	12-3	12-4

!

•

PRODUCTION OF FILM AND BONDED SHEET
Page 2
TASK VI (Cont)

TRIALS	
MOLDING	L
Ы	-
SUMMARY	

HERCULES EK-500 FILM			I	RIAL NUMBER				
ROPERTY	149	150	151	152	153	154	155	156
umber of Plies or Unit Weight,	105	324	324	324	324	324	324	324
GMS) hvving Temp (°F)	R.T.	R.T.	R.T.	R.T.	R.T.	R.T.	R.T.	R.T.
hynng Time (Hrs)	400+	400+	500+	500+	500+	500+	500+	500+
	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
ressure (Psi)	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000	2000
leat Up (Minutes)	20	15	20	15	20	15	15	15
Well (Minutes)	30	30	30	30	30	30	30	30
Aaximum Temp.(°F)	336	342	335	340	333	336	334	3 39 ,
Veiaht (oz/ft²)	I	2	2	2	2	2	2	N 1
.ight Trans.(%)	ŋ	83.2/ 84.6	83.8/ 84.6	84.4/ 85.7	84.1/ 85.7	83.2/ 85.2	83.8/ 86.3	v
1376 (%)	e	3.3/5.3	4.3/5.1	4.8/6.2	4.9/5.4	2.6/5.9	4.8/5.8	
Jate	12-4	12-5	12-8	12-9	12-9	12-10	12-10	12-10
VOTES: ¹ Moldin ² Moldin ³ Light	lg size:](lg Size:] transmissi	6" x 27", Molde 6" x 27", Molde on and haze not	d to a nomin d to a nomin measured.	al thickness ^{Ia} ! thickness Molding unsu used for A.R	of 0.094". of 0.313". itable for t . coating tr	riangular wi ials.	, swobn	

APPENDIX B

MOLDING CYCLES

TASK I	-	Figures I-1 through I-5
TASK II	-	Figures II-1 through II-20
TASK III	-	Figures III-1 through III-34
TASK IV	-	Figures IV-1 through IV-10
TASK VI	•	Figures VI-1 through VI-19

يلى



LUG-11 DETZ 11 20.

Ģ



LUGENE DIETZGEN CO. Made III I & A

> 340-20 DIETZGEN GHAPTI PAPUR 20 - 20 PER INCH

22

-



ļ

EUGENE DILTZUEN CO. In G

анстрантики диантардии 20 Х. — И М.

Ē



340-20 DILTZGLN CHAPH PAPER 20 X 10 PER INCH



··- ---

. IHVS LI X ZU FER INCO

a 3



EUGENE DILTZAKN GO. Manlen u 5 a

Ξ



ELIMENE OLETZGEN CO. Made in o 5 a

Jaurzia sakizuka laisean Pisika 20 X 20 PER INDA

Ξ



LINGENE ULE IZEEN CO MADE JULIS -

NU 340 ZU DIETZGEN URAMI PAMIK "D X 2 - 100



M LELEUTER. Mational Inacing Papen Indianapolis Indiana



ENULAR DR LEGEN LU.

JAN 20 ORLZORN DESIG PALSA PLASTORE INDU

Ξ



MTLI LUYNE Matigman thaling fairen Mutianabut te prulama

NU 23011424 20120 PER INCH



AUTAL TOT OF PALEN

1101

. . .

a second s



1 h

E

MTALETYNE National Inacino, Papila Indianapol is Indiana





0 **4**

IC PAN INCH

30

11011040

MILLAUNE Nationai Tracing Papen Ndionae Tracing Mulana



.....



W TLI LUTHI National Iraling Paper Mdianafolis Indiana

11

20120

NO 2JUILED





NO 33UIT63U \$UL40 P10 MCH

WTLLEUVNA National Tracing Papen Ndtahapolid, Sudiána



DIETZGEN CURPONATIVI

UTILIZU DIETZBEN GHAPIT PAPER OLX R. R. R.

Ξ



1.16 1.2 (15 14 - - - 1411-1) MATHINA 1.111 11 11 4 - -

H 20 OLLIDIN GRAPH PAPEN 20 X 20 PLR NUCH

PID BALL BU





DIETZBEN DGRPOMATIUN

NU. 340-20 061206N UKADA PAPEN 20 × 20 PEN 0001



ЧГ.



.....

DILIZGEN CONPONATION

NU 340-20 DIETZGEN UHAPU PAPEN 20 x 20 per ingn


DIETZDEN EDHFORATION

Ξ



DILIZGEN CONPONATION

340-20 DIETZGEN UKAPH PAPEN 20 × 20 PEN INCH

D Z



....

DIETZGEN CORPONATION

DIFTERN DRAFT FAPER 3





ŝ



DIETTGEN CORPORATION

340-20 DILTZGEN GHAPLE PAPER J X 2 INC

gu



DIEIZUEN CORPOHATION

340 20 DILTZGEN UNAMI PAPER 20 x 20 PEN INUK



DIE (ZUEN CORPORATION

3-10-20 DIETZBEN GRAPH PAPER 0 X R IN

Ē



1

ULTZGEN CONFONATION

2 11 20 DIETZGEN LINAPU PATLIK 20 x 20 PEH INCH

011

_



DIETZBEN CORPONATION

PUL 340-20 DIETZGEN GRAPH PAPER DX: RIN-



01117060 1008000000

340 20 DIET2GEN GRAPH PAPER 20 X 20 PER INGH



<u>ا</u>د م

A Lord-an, Lar

DILIZULU CONFURATION

340 20 DILTZUEN URAFTI PAPER UX: ZINI



DIETZGEN COMPONATION

111-7



CILTZGEN DORPOHATION

JAD-ZU DIETZUEN GRAPH PAPEN U X 2 - KINI

Ξ



DIETZUEN CORPORATION

NO 340-20 DIETZGEN GRAPH PAPER 20 x 20 per inem

.



1117-5-1 COPPOINT 1 14

٦

OLDUCTULN C PAR

10 Dates (De



DIETEGEN COMPONATION

NU 340 20 DIETZKEN URAPH PAPER 20 X 20 PEN (NDH



DIET CONTATH

2 Z



DIETZGEN COMPUNATION

ND 340-20 DIETZGEN GNAPH PAPER 20 x 20 PEN INCH

ł



UNITERATION CORPORATION

I-V-J

ó



DIETZGEN CUNPORATION

340-20 DIETZUEN URAPH PAPLH 20 x 20 PLM INDH



Ч

0.0

141

õ





TI DIE TON GITTE HAP

.



Nu 1/21-12, 20 x 20 tu 1kuch 10h Nine heury, eich 3h hine occentud Nine A statz Co., Sun hunchsco Minde in U.S.A.

-3-



No. 1721-12, 20 2 2015, 1 buth 10th fire hears, with 5th fire incented the America Co., Subj. 2 2 200 Mude in U.S.A.

	*****	FIGURE III-26				
	1	100000 111 20				
P	*****					L
	***		<u></u> T	······································		H
	<u></u>					
	<u> </u>					
┝ ┑ ┥╡┥┥╶┑┥┙┥<mark>╞╢┥┥</mark>╺╌┙╸┨╍┿╸						······································
and an an an and a state provide state						+++++
		Station and state				
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	*****					·····
	*****					- THE
	1					
╘╌╍╴┊╌╾┦╼┫┥┫╍╺╴╛╼╍╴╡╌╌═	*****	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++				
	to an a lot of the second s					
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	i				
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·					
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	<u> </u>				
		····				
						-14 ²
	<u> </u>	the second s				
		<u></u>				
	F F	F				/
		1				
The play	<u></u>					
••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	······································	4				
		1				
		+				

		<u></u>				

		1				
		<u></u>			·····	
		+				
					×	
the second s					Ź	
						1
						1
Ő ,						r 5
						r ž
					\$ <u></u>	
						1
					S)	
						r š F
SCALZEN FOLKO						
NISCAMELEN T SIC MOU						
ANNS CONCENT ROLVOU	10-5-10-5-0+					
Antischarth the the work						
NALICA TIME CARACTER T						
TRANS CONCERNIT SCOLMO						
TRANSPORT TO NO						
TRANISCARA T SO WO						
	ο - γ					
	0-3-3-5-0-3-3-3-3-3-3-3-3-3-3-3-3-3-3-3-					

1

i

<u>،</u>

recorded and according to the accented by the accented by the back of the back

 \sim

. -

-`0-



11ET 711

> ۱¥۲

Ę



DILIZUEN CUNPORATIUN Haun III U MA

040-20 DILTZGEN GRAPIT PAPER 20 x 20 PER INDI

Ē



.



DILTZGEN COMPONATION

340 20 DIETZGEN GRAPH PAPER 20 X 20 PEN INDA



011 1 1310

4ATU

U LN . I HA



Sec. 11



PILTZING COMMINATIO

TI DIT IN IS PAIN

n stand a second state of the test of the second second second second second second second second second second



DIETZGEN CONFONATION

ни. 340-20 DILTZGEN БИАРН РАРЕК 20 x 20 РЕМ INCH

÷



DIETZAEN CORPOHATION

ī

*** 1.00 --




ATIL:

112

1131

Ĩ

P

ş





DIETZGEN COHPONATION

110 340-20 DIETZGEN GRAPH PAPEN 20 x 20 PER INCH





NU 340-20 DILTZUEN GHAPI: PAPLR 20 × 20 PLH INGH



1.184 DIE 4 GF

5

1713

٦



のためのないであるというないのであるとう

DIET266N CORPUNATION

NO 340 20 0161266N 6RAPH PAPEN 20 X 20 PER INCH



• • • • •

DI DI N I PAL

ç



DIETZGEN GONPONATION

 $\sum_{i=1}^{n}$

NU. 340-20 DIETZGEN UMAPH PAPER 20 X 20 PER INCH



46.1323

SWEEN T BELLING TAXAL 321





EXENCTOR NEW LANGEMEN

an Berne mart had and real state in a state of the second second second second second second second second second

ŗ



K-E NUMER & SOLA CO MANA



4. 1.23

от на стания С на

3 III 3 N.



and the second se

46 1323

KE NUTTEL COSTACT AND INCIDE



4(+ 1 · 3

·≞ ₩..



HOE REUTER A SSEN CO MINIMUM





K-E RUMPEL & SAMAL AN INTO HIS

.

4



4. . 23



KE KAR CERTIC A BUILD





H

46 1323

KE REAL OF DE HALL AN WEATEN







463

ŝ

-

ų



1.4

46 1323

KUPFER A SSERIES MARINES



- 11

 $\hat{}$

46

ų.

• `

APPENDIX C

2.5

INDIVIDUAL LIGHT TRANSMISSION AND HAZE READINGS

.

TASK	Ι	-	Trial	Number	14		
TASK	II	-	Trial	Numbers	17	through	73
TASK	III	-	Trial	Numbers	74	through	120
TASK	I۷	-	Trial	Numbers	121	through	137
TASK	٧I	-	Trial	Numbers	138	and 139)

Ţ	Ά	S	Κ		L
-	_	_	_	-	_

-

LIGHT TRANSMISSION AND HAZE TESTING AT +75°F PER ASTM D-1003

Trial			Location of Readings					
Number	Film		1	2	3	4	5	
14	N400	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	37.0 78.2	37.7 74.9	35.1 80.4	40.0 76.2	29.9 78.5	

J	5	2	
4	Ĵ	3	

Location of Readings

Ţ	Ά	S	Κ	Ι	I
_		_	_		

· · · · · ·

-17

÷.

LIGHT TRANSMISSION AND HAZE TESTING AT +75°F PER ASTM D-1003

Trial		Location of Readings						
Number	Film		<u> </u>	2	33	4	5	
17	B- 503	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	89.2 6.2	83.6 4.7	85.5 7.8	86.4 4.2	85.7 3.7	
18	B-503	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	86.4 4.4	84.7 4.1	87.5 4.6	86.5 4.2	86.1 4.0	
19	B-503	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	86.4 3.0	85.5 3.5	86.1 4.3	85.7 3.0	86.7 3.0	
20	N600(AC)	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	90.3 5.7	88.8 5.6	94.2 4.3	88.8 6.5	89.1 5.1	
21	N600(AC)	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	89.2 8.3	89.0 8.1	88.7 7.7	87.6 7.1	91.3 4.9	
22	AT 61	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	69.6 43.8	63.7 46.2	73.5 39.5	71.2 38.7	67.9 42.9	
23	N600(AC)	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	88.4 6.6	88.5 7.5	89.3 5.7	88.7 6.1	89.0 4.9	
24	N600(AC)	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	87.2 1.4	88.9 6.2	88.9 6.1	89.5 5.1	90.1 6.3	
25	N600(R) (1)	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	25.5 100	22.8 97.1	20.9 98.1	17.2 96.4	19.0 100	
26	N600(R) (1)	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	35.2 90.8	35.2 76.6	29.0 86.8	23.3 77.7	25.3 79.9	
27	N600(R) (1)	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	38.1 88.0	38.7 81.6	27.7 73.6	21.7 81.8	28.3 75.2	
28	AT 61	L.T. (3) Haze (%)	68.0 41.6	69.5 39.9	73.5 39.4	75.2 37.6	73.2 38.5	
29	AT 51	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	69.5 40.9	72.9 37.8	73.8 34. 8	74.7 34.9	70.4 38.4	
30	P 2102	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	81.2 23.4	83.2 23.0	80.7 25.9	80.9 25.4	80.8 25.3	
31	P 2102	L.⊺. (%) Haze (%)	79.3 25.0	81.7 23.8	80.7 26.2	79.7 26.9	80.8 24.7	
32	P 2102	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	78.6 23.3	81.1 23.9	80.1 24.5	79.6 24.5	80.0 26.5	
33	P 2102	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	79.4 23.8	80.0 23.7	80.8 24.5	80.6 23.1	81.0 24.0	

TASK II - Cont Page 2 LIGHT TRANSMISSION AND HAZE TESTING

Trial							
Number	Film		1	2	3	4	5
34	AT-61	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	74.0 33.7	72.9 34.9	72.7 35.9	74.5 35.2	72.7 36.2
35	AT-61	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	73.0 35.1	72.9 36.1	67.4 38.3	66.4 37.6	67.7 42.2
36	G.E.	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	80.7 8.4	80.0 9.1	81.4 8.6	79.6 8.4	80.7 8.3
37	X-207	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	78.0 5.5	79.4 4.8	78.3 5.4	78.4 5.3	80.4 5.9
38	P-81B	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	74.0 6.6	72.2 8.1	72.0 8.5	72.3 7.4	71.5 10.8
39	X-207	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	76.8 6.3	77.8 6.3	77.1 7.5	76.1 6.9	78.4 7.6
40	G.E.	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	80.6 6.5	82.3 5.4	80.5 6.9	81.2 6.8	82.2 8.3
41	B-500	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	83.8 3.4	83.2 4.0	82.9 3.8	84.0 3.4	83.5 4.2
42	N-400 II (2)	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	87.5 15.3	86 .8 12.2	87.0 16.8	86.4 14.8	87.3 11.2
43	P-81-B	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	72.7 9.8	73.1 9.2	72.6 8.6	73.2 10.5	73.5 10.4
. 44	8-500	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	82.7 4.8	82.7 4.2	82.9 4.3	83.0 4.1	83.0 5.2
45	N-400, II (2)	L.T. (☆) Haze (※)	86.2 23.5	87.4 17.8	87.3 14.8	86.4 15.7	86.6 22.0
45	Capacitor	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	80.6 4.2	80.4 4.9	80.2 4.2	79.6 4.8	80.2 4.4
47	N-400, II (2)	L.T. (☆) Haze (%)	88.2 23.2	87.4 24.9	87.5 20.9	88.2 21.1	88.1 25.5
48	B-500	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	83.3 4.2	82.9 4.0	82.4 4.4	82.4 4.3	82.5 3.9
49	P-31-B	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	73.7 7.8	72.7 8.2	72.5 8.6	73.1 8.1	72.9 7.9
50	X-207	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	81.6 6.3	80,6 6.9	79.2 7.4	79.8 7.4	79.8 6.3
51	N400, II (2)	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	84.1 24.3	85.2 22.3	85.7 20.0	85.1 23.3	84.6 26.5

1

]

A second and share and the second second

TASK	II -	Cont	Page	23	
LIGHT	TRA	NSMISSI	ON AND	HAZE	TESTING

Trial				Loc	ation of R	eadings						
Number	Film		1	2	3	4	5	ا				
52	N-400, II (2)	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	87.5 19.8	87.4 23.2	85.3 28.1	87.0 21.9	86.9 24.0					
53	B-500	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	84.1 3.3	83.7 4.3	84.0 3.5	84.1 3.6	84.0 3.3					
54	SK-300	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	88.0 7.0	87.9 9.2	86.2 10.8	88.2 7.5	88.1 8.0					
55	SK-300	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	86.3 8.5	86.7 9.4	85.4 8.3	87.2 7.7	86.0 8.0					
56	SK-300	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	39.7 99.0	37.7 100.0	37.3 100.0	37.4 99.0	38.5 99.0					
57	SK-300	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	65.0 25.2	66.8 27.3	69.5 24.5	67.6 26.3	68.3 24.5					
58	SK-300	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	82.3 11.4	83.6 12.5	81.8 14.5	82.7 13.8	82.1 12.7					
59	SK-300	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	83.0 7.3	82.4 8.0	83.1 6.7	83.8 7.6	82.6 6.9					
60	SK-300	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	83.8 6.2	84.2 5.8	83.3 6.7	84.8 6.1	84.5 6.6					
61	SK-300	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	83.3 6.8	83.8 6.0	84.1 7.5	83.6 8.3	84.0 7.1					
62	SK-300	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	86.0 7.0	85.1 7.7	83.9 7.9	85.8 7.8	87.1 7.8					
63	El Rexene	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	90.3 13.5	90.0 15.2	87.7 18.5	91.0 16.1	91.5 15.0					
64	Dia. Shamrock	L.T. (祭) Haze (종)	33.5 73.6	43.0 73.6	32.2 73.6	20.7 73.6	42.7 73.6					
65	Dia. Shamrock	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	41.5 35.4	38.5 39.4	39.0 44.1	37.3 40.4	32.5 44.4					
66	Dia. Shamrock	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	0 69.4	0 69.1	10.5 61.7	21.2 53.6	0 71.6					
67	El Rexene	L.T. (3) Haze (3)	-	91.5 14.7	-		-					
68	Dia. Shamrock	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	0 71.4	0 70.6	0 71.5	0 71.1	0 67.4					
59	El Rexene	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	91.3 12.3	92.0 11.2	91.5 14.7	88.8 13.5	89.5 18.4	:				

*

TASK II - Cont Page 4 LIGHT TRANSMISSION AND HAZE TESTING

Trial	5 · 3			Location of Readings				
number	F11m		1	2	3	4	5	
70	EK-500	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	89.8 1.5	87.7 0	88.0 1.3	87.7	87.2	-
71	EK-500	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	87.7 1.8	88.3 2.6	88.5 2.6	88.8 2.6	87.5 3.6	
72	El Rexene	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	58.8 38.8	55.2 43.0	54.7 44.0	57.5 43.4	60.0 38.2	
/3	EK-500	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	84.8 3.7	85.8 3.4	85.7 4.4	86.7 5.2	85.0 8.6	

(1) Film identified as N600 (R), oriented by Revere, is N400(2) Suspected to be N600 film

i



Location of Readings

Judgements and Baury

TASK 111

1

and the second sec

्यात्राच्यात्रात्रः अन्त्रविद्याः विद्यान्त्रियाः विद्यान्त्रः स्वयान्त्राः स्व

LIGHT TRANSMISSION AND HAZE
TESTING AT +75°F PER ASTM D-1003
(HERCULES EK-500 FILM)

Trial		Location of Reading						
Number	- <u></u>	1	2	3	4	5		
74	L.T. (%)	83.4	79.3	81.3	78.2	79.6		
(Hazy Area)	Haze (%)	6.3	21.8	23.2	25.4	20.6		
74	L.T. (%)	82.7	23.4	83.2	82.7	83.3		
(Clear Area)	Haze (%)	5.7		5.0	4.1	4.5		
75	L.T. (%)	83.3	82.1	81.1	80.9	80.5		
	Haze (%)	5.7	5.5	4.4	3.3	3.3		
76	L.T. (%)	82.0	81.2	82.7	83.8	80.6		
	Haze (%)	5.8	3.9	5.1	5.3	2.6		
77	L.T. (☆)	83.2	83.7	84.1	83.0	81.6		
	Haze (%)	4.2	4.7	5.4	4.4	2.4		
78	L.T. (%)	82.4	84.3	83	82.7	82.1		
	Haze (%)	4.3	4.1	4.0	4.5	4.5		
79	L.T. (%)	83.3	83.9	82.5	83.5	82.9		
	Haze (%)	4.5	5.3	5.1	5.8	4.8		
80	L.T. (%)	85.3	86.2	86.2	86.0	84.3		
	Haze (%)	4.0	5.1	4.2	5.0	3.1		
81	L.T. (%)	84.2	84.8	84.3	83.2	81.9		
	Haze (%)	4.5	5.2	5.2	4.6	2.3		
82	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	58.4 Hi	51.2 gh Haze -	55.6 Not Measur	49.7 red	51.2		
83	L.T. (%)	83.9	84.1	84.2	84.4	82.6		
	Haze (%)	5.4	5.1	5.6	5.0	2.8		
84	L.T. (%)	83.0	84.4	83.6	82.8	82.3		
	Haze (%)	5.4	6.7	4.8	3.9	3.3		
85	L.T. (≋)	80.7	81.3	80.6	81.3	80.0		
	Haze (%)	3.4	4.6	6.4	4.9	3.0		
86	L.T. (%)	79.1	79.3	79.1	78.9	78.5		
	Haze (%)	6.4	7.7	5.6	7.5	6.7		
37	L.T. (%)	85.I	84.1	85.3	86.3	83.6		
	Haze (%)	4.8	5.9	7.0	6.4	2.6		
88	L.T. (‰)	83.9	84.1	84.7	85.0	82.3		
	Haze (%)	6.7	7.3	6.1	5.2	2.7		
89	L.T. (%)	82.1	78.8	77.9	79.7	77.3		
	Haze (%)	5.2	8.5	7.8	8.2	5.2		

.

TASK I	II -	Cont	Page	e 2
LIGHT_TRANSMISSION AND HAZE				

(HERCULES EK-500 FILM)

Trial

egenesis at s

Location of Reading

Number		1	2	3	4	5
90	L.T. (%)	62.7	72.6	60.0	33.0	60.6
	Haze (%)	19.7	6.5	26.7	92.8	26.0
91	L.T. (%)	83.3	82.3	82.1	82.7	80.6
	Haze (%)	8.0	5.5	3.9	4.7	2.8
92	L.T. (%) Haze (%)	Cau L.T	l Plate Le . and Haze	ft Off not measu	red	
93	L.T. (急)	57.4	54.7	64.1	79.0	61.7
	Haze (%)	69.0	74.8	42.2	8.7	51.0
94	L.T. (%)	84.5	83.8	83.2	83.2	81.8
	Haze (%)	5.2	6.0	5.6	5.7	3.3
95	L.T. (~)	83.1	83.2	82.9	83.0	81.6
	Haze (3)	4.3	4.5	4.4	4.2	2.9
96	L.T. (%)	83.8	84.3	83.5	84.3	82.4
	Haze (%)	4.6	4.0	4.2	4.2	2.4
97	L.T. (%)	82.5	82.4	81.4	81.3	80.1
	Haze (%)	7.0	6.0	4.7	4.5	2.8
98	L.T. (%)	64.6	55.5	57.1	65.2	57.7
	Haze (%)	60.1	82.7	88.6	51.7	72.6
99	L.T. (%)	74.5	74.0	74.0	75.3	72.3
	Haze (%)	6.4	7.0	6.5	7.3	6.6

TASK III - Cont Page 3 LIGHT TRANSMISSION AND HAZE (HERCULES EK-500 FILM)

7

LOCATION OF LIGHT TRANSMISSION

AND HAZE READINGS

(PANELS 74-99)

1		2
4	5	3
TASK III - Cont Page 4

LIGHT TRANSMISSION AND HAZE

(HERCULES EK-500 FILM)

8.

PANEL					LOCATION	OF READ	ING			
NUMBER			2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9
100	LT≍	82.1	72.3	75.9	82.8	74.6	74.3	83.3	75.5	78.2
	H≑	4.5	9.1	5.1	3.1	7.0	4.9	2.5	3.7	4.1
101	LT=	83.4	78.0	77.6	82.6	75.6	74.3	80.5	76.0	75.2
	H=	4.1	6.3	6.7	3.7	6.2	5.8	3.8	4.6	5.4
102	LT=	84.9	82.7	83.5	82.7	80.1	79.6	82.3	79.5	79.6
	H=	5.1	6.4	6.8	4.6	3.6	3.5	4.8	3.9	4.0
103	LT=	84.4	82 2	81.6	84.5	80.1	80.9	84.1	81.7	81.4
	H=	4.5	4.4	4.6	4.0	3.1	3.5	2.7	2.1	2.7
104	LT=	82.7	79.7	79.4	82.0	78.6	79.0	82.9	79.0	79. 6
	H=	5.0	4.4	4.б	4.2	3.9	4.2	4.7	3.6	3.0
105	LT=	83.3	80.5	79.3	81.9	78.5	78.5	82.0	78.9	79.5
	H≈	5.7	4.8	5.4	4.3	3.9	4.4	3.9	3.4	2.4
106	LT=	82.7	79.3	79.4	82.1	77.8	78.0	82.3	79.0	78.7
	H=	4.6	5.7	5.6	4.1	4.4	3.9	3.8	3.2	4.5
107	LT=	85.0	84.2	84.6	82.9	81.1	83.5	83.0	82.6	82.8
	H=	5.0	4.3	4.7	10.6	11.9	5.3	7.7	5.8	3.0
108	LT=	81.7	79.3	79.3	82.4	80.4	80.7	83.4	83.4	86.2
	H=	14.6	25.7	25.5	18.7	21.5	22.0	4.7	4.0	5.0
109	LT=	84.3	82.6	85.2	83.3	82.9	85.0	81.3	23.4	86.7
	H=	4.6	8.3	4.5	9.7	3.8	2.6	12.9	5.4	3.3
110	էT=	82.7	82.7	81.3	68.3	62.7	72.6	71.2	66.4	74.0
	H=	4.3	4.5	4.8	49.7	91.3	14.0	4.7	30.1	9.5
111	LT=	84.2	79.9	79.0	78.1	77.5	79.0	84.7	79.6	80.5
	H=	3.7	3.6	4.7	3.4	3.5	3.8	4.3	4.0	5.9
112	LT≖	83.0	81.0	79.7	82.7	80.5	80.6	84.4	83.7	83.5
	H≈	4.9	4.0	4.0	2.5	2.4	3.3	2.2	1.6	2.8
113	LT=	85.1	83.6	75.5	75.1	74.6	74.2	78.3	73.5	72.2
	H=	5.6	4.1	45.2	43.2	55.5	43.7	21.0	63.9	58.9
114	LT=	83.6	84.6	83.0	77.1	75.8	80.5	84.9	83.1	84.4
	H=	4.9	2.9	3.4	49.1	56.6	27.4	3.8	7.1	3.6
115	LT=	83.8	82.5	81.4	84.0	81.8	82.0	86.9	82.6	83.5
	H=	3.8	3.4	3.7	2.7	1.7	3.0	2.4	0.9	19

.

TASK II	I - Co	ont Pa	ige 5							
LIGHT T	RANSMIS	SION AND	HAZE							
(HERCUL PANEL	ES EK-S	500 FILM))		LOCATION	OF READ	ING			
NUMBER		1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9
116	LT=	86.0	82.7	82.8	85.8	82.1	82.1	84.9	82.2	82.7
	H=	4.6	3.0	4.0	3.6	2.9	3.3	2.9	2.2	3.6
117	LT=	84.3	83.5	84.6	83.2	82.3	84.4	83.4	82.8	83.3
	H=	4.5	3.9	2.6	3.4	2.6	3.3	3.3	2.1	1.4
118	LT=	85.9	84.8	85.3	84.5	82.7	84.0	84.0	84.0	84.7
	H=	5.6	5.2	6.7	4.5	2.5	4.7	4.5	3.3	3.7
119	LT=	84.3	81.9	84.1	84.2	81.6	83.4	85.0	84.4	84.5
	H=	4.3	3.2	4.8	4.3	2.5	4.0	4.9	3.4	2.9
120	LT=	84.5	83.7	84.8	83.9	81.8	84.6	81.7	82.7	84.7
	H=	4.4	2.8	4.8	3.5	2.3	3.6	3.4	3.1	3.6

LOCATION OF LIGHT TRANSMISSION AND HAZE READINGS , (PANELS 100 - 120)

l	2	я
4	5	6
7	8	9

TASK IV

	TESTING AT +75°F PER ASTM D-1003 (HERCULES EK-500 FILM) LOCATION OF READING									
Pane	Number		2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9
121	LT =	78.1	79.0	79.9	77.0	76.7	78.6	77.2	77.3	79.0
	H =	33.5	30.2	26.8	35.6	37.1	30.5	34.4	32.6	30.3
122	L.T =	81.7	80.5	79.7	80.5	79.6	79.6	80.3	80.2	79.7
	H =	28.1	28.7	31.9	30.1	29.7	30.2	28.8	27.8	31.0
123	LT =	85.1	84.1	83.5	85.0	83.6	83.2	85.4	84.1	83.9
	H =	3.9	4.0	3.8	3.0	3.3	3.6	3.4	3.4	3.2
124	LT =	84.2	83.6	32.9	83.4	82.5	82.2	83.2	82.2	82.0
	H =	12.2	13.7	16.1	13.2	14.6	14.5	14.1	14.2	15.2
125	LT =	83.4	82.8	83.3	83.6	83.0	84.2	84.2	83.3	83.5
	H =	3.2	31	2.9	2.8	2.7	2.5	2.6	2.6	2.5
125	Lī =	81.1	80 <i>.</i> 5	80.6	81.7	80.8	81.3	82.9	82.5	32.5
	H =	14.5	14.9	14.9	15.2	14.9	16.9	12.4	13.7	13.0
127	LT =	86.8	85.2	85.4	86.0	83.2	83.0	86.0	84.0	83.8
	H =	6.5	6.6	6.9	6.1	6.3	7.6	6.5	6.3	7.3
128	LT =	86.1	84.2	84.5	85.7	82.8	83.5	85.9	83.7	85.7
	H =	3.3	3.7	4.3	3.3	4.0	3.7	4.7	4.2	4.7
129	LT =	85.8	84.2	85.0	85.3	82.7	83.5	83 .9	83.5	85.7
	Н =	3.1	4.1	3.7	3.3	3.2	3.0	3.3	3.6	4.2

LIGHT TRANSMISSION AND HAZE

TASK IV Cont Page 2

P 400

(HERCULES EK-500 FILM)

1			•			LOCATIO	ON OF REAL	DING			
Pane	<u>! Number</u>	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	
130	LT =	86.2	83.4	82.6	85.9	82.7	83.4	86.5	84.0	83.0	
	H =	3.3	3.5	2.3	3.3	2.4	3.7	3.6	3.5	4.4	
131	LT =	86.3	83.6	83.9	86.2	82.6	83.5	84.3	83.2	84.7	
	H =	3.6	2.3	3.1	4.1	3.3	3. 9	2.5	3.3	4.9	
132	LT =	84.5	81.9	82.1	83.8	81.0	83.5	84.9	82.8	84.7	
	H =	4.6	5.1	3.8	3.6	6.2	3.6	3.6	3.1	3.7	
133	LT =	86.3	85.0	84.5	86.5	84.1	84.1	86.1	84.2	84.4	
	H =	3.6	5.2	2.5	3.8	4.8	3.0	3.4	2.7	2.6	
134	LT =	84.3	80.4	81.9	84.5	81.6	82.7	85.4	83.4	84.7	
	H =	3.8	31.2	8.0	3.1	9.2	4.3	3.1	2.2	4.0	
135	LT =	84.8	78.2	83.5	83.5	69.8	80.8	82.9	65.7	70.7	
	11 =	3.5	19.6	3.2	3.0	38.1	3.2	3.3	41.7	39.5	
136	LT =	82.8	72.8	79.6	82.5	75.0	80.7	83.5	81.8	84.4	
	H =	3.2	59.2	13.3	4.1	53.3	10.6	3.5	5.0	2.4	
137	LT =	83.7	75.3	77.5	83.9	75.4	77.4	84.4	80.3	82.4	
	H =	3.0	38.9	15.7	3.1	35.4	16.2	2.9	14.5	3.3	

LOCATION OF LIGHT TRANSMISSION AND HAZE READINGS (ALL PANELS)

1	2	З
4	5	6
7	8	٩

LIGHT TRANSMISSION AND HAZE

TASK	٧I

	LIGHT TRANSMISSION AND HAZE								
	TESTING AT +75°F PER ASTM D-1003								
			(ILENCOL		Locati	on of Rea	dings		
Panel Number	· 1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9
138 LT =	86.1	84.4	84.6	85.8	83.2	83.6	85.2	83.8	84.7
H =	3.4	3.6	4.2	3.2	4.0	3.6	4.3	3.9	4.6
139 LT =	85.6	84.2	84.0	84.3	82.7	83.5	85.0	84.3	84.3
H =	5.7	4.4	4.4	4.2	2.4	4.0	4.4	4.2	4.5

1	2	3
4	5	6
7	8	9

F.

Location of Light Transmission and Haze readings.

يەت يەرىپىيە باللىك بەركىتىنىڭ ئ<mark>ۇمىر</mark>ى بەركىتىك بەركىتى بەركى

TASK II

Crown Zelierbach AT-61 Hercules N-400 (Rolled by Am. Can) Hercules N-600 (Rolled by Revere) (Is N400 Film) Hercules N-600 (Rolled by Am. Can) Hercules B-503 Toyoba P2102 Cryovac X-207 Hercules N-400, Type II (Suspected to be N600 Film) Mobil Bicor 240-B1 (P-81-B) General Electric Capacitor Grade Hercules B-500 Trea SK 300-2 Diamond Shamrock NB-81-59-3 Hercules EK-500 El Rexene PP-41-6300-4153



APPROVED ENGINEERING TEST LABORATORIES / 1536 EAST VALENCIA / FULLERTON, CALIFORNIA 92631 / TEL. (714) 879-6110 A NATIONAL TECHNICAL BERVICES COMPANY

TESTED FOR

١,.

Swedlow, Inc. 12242 Western Ave. Garden Grove, California 92645 Report No. 677-1399-1 P.O. No. 21898 Date: 7 September 1976

Attention: R. Shelton

1.0 TEST SAMPLE

One Plastic Film Material marked Crown Zellerbach #AT-61 (Comp. rolled by American Can Co. at 230°F)

2.0 TEST PERFORMED

Orientation Release Stress per ASTM D1504-70

3.0 TEST RESULTS

3.1 Tested Parrallel To Arrow

Specimen No.	Maximum Temperature attained, °F	Release Stress, psi	Remarks
1	250	593	(See Note 1)
2	250	567	(See Note l)
3	250	579	(See Note 1)
4	250	525	(See Note 1)
5 Average	250	<u>498</u> 552	(See Note 1)

3.2 <u>Test Perpendicular</u> to Arrow

Specimen No.	Maximum Temperature attained, °F	Release Stress, <u>psi</u>	Remarks
1	250	Nil	(See Note 2)
2	250	Nil	(See Note 2)
3	250	Nil	(See Note 2)
4	250	Nil	(See Note 2)
5	250	Nil	(See Note 2)

OTHER DIVISIONS

LOS ANGELES DIVISION / 5320 WEST JOETH STREET / LOS ANGELES (ALIECANIA 300+, / (2)3: 276 3762 VALLEY DIVISION / 9531 CANGGA AVENUE / CHATSWORTH CALIECANIA 913)1 . (2)32 271 6326 SAUGU DIVISION / 20182 W GOLDEN TAIANGLE AD / SAUGUS CALIECANIA 913)5 . (2)32 274 6384 CALIEGANIA TEST LABS DIV / 1433 POTREMO AVE / SC EL MONTE CALIECANIA 9135 . (2)33, 743 6655 50 EL MONTE DIV / 1433 POTREMO AVENUE / SC EL MONTE CALIECANIA 9133 . (2)33, 444 935



APPROVED ENGINEERING TEST LABORATORIES

Note 1: Specimen returned to about the original shape and dimensions upon cooling to room temperature.

Note 2: No load indication on 0-1 lb. range (1 division = 0.01 lb.)

APPROVED ENGINEERING TEST LABORATORIES

<u>Francis Pickell, Sr.</u> Francis Pickell Sr., Project Engineer

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 3rd day of October 29, 1976.



Betty Matteson, Notary Public in and for the County of Orange, State of California. My commission expires October 29, 1977.



FPROVED ENGINEERING TEST LABORATORIES

Note 1: Specimen returned to about the original shape and dimensions upon cooling to room temperature.

Note 2: No load indication on 0-1 lb. range (1 division = 0.01 lb.)

APPROVED ENGINEERING TEST LABORATORIES

Francis Pickell Sr., Project Engineer

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 3rd day of October 29, 1976.



Betty Matteson, Notary Public in and for the County of Orange, State of California. My commission expires October 29, 1977.

dkl



- APPROVED ENGINEERING TEST LABORATORIES / 1536 EAST VALENCIA / FULLERTON, CALIFORNIA 92631 / TEL. (714) 879-6110 A NATIONAL TECHNICAL BERVICES COMPANY

TESTED FOR

Swedlow, Inc. 12242 Western Ave. Garden Grove, California 92645

Sec.

S. A.

Report No. 677-1399-2 P.O. No. 21898 Date: 7 September 1976

٠.

Attention: R. Shelton

1.0 TEST SAMPLE

One Plastic Film Material marked Hercules N400 (Comp. rolled by American Can Co. at $244^{\circ}F$).

2.0 TEST PERFORMED

Orientation Release Stress per ASTM D1504-70

3.0 <u>TEST</u> RESULTS

3.1 Tested Parrallel To Arrow

Specimen	Maximum Temperature attained, °F	Release Stress, psi	Remarks
l	250	800	(See Note 1)
2	250	911	(See Note 1)
3	250	811	(See Note 1)
4	250	835	(See Note 1)
5 Average	250	<u>835</u> 838	(See Note 1)

3.2 Test Perpendicular to Arrow

Specimen No.	Maximum Temperature attained, °F	Release Stress, psi	Remarks
1	250	Nil	(See Note 2)
2	250	Nil	(See Note 2)
3	250	Nil	(See Note 2)
4	250	Nil	(See Note 2)
5	250	Nil	(See Note 2)

OTHER DIVISIONS

LOS ANGELES DIVISION / 5320 WEST JOATH STREET ALOS RUCELES CALLORISE DOD		
VALLEY DIVISION / HIST CANOGA AVENUE / CHATSWORTH CALIFURNIA THE	• 2 /	(2) 3: 74 3707
SAUGUS DIVISION / 20088 W COLDEN TRIANCEL AD / SAUGUS CALIFORNIA 91350	;	48051 219 8184
CALIFORMA TEST LABS DIV / 1412 POTAF NO AVE / SO EL PUNTE CA 11723	i	1213. 283 8465
SO. FL MONTE DIV. / JAJI POTRERO AVINUE / SO EL MONTE CALH COMA \$1733	1	12131 444 9511



APPROVED ENGINEERING TEST LABORATORIES / 1536 EAST VALENCIA / FULLERTON, CALIFORNIA 92631 / TEL. (714) 879-6110 A NATIONAL TECHNICAL BERVICES COMPANY

TESTED FOR

Swedlow, Inc. 12242 Western Ave. Garden Grove, California 92645 Report No. 677-1399-3 P.O. No. 21898 Date: 7 September 1976

Attention: R. Shelton

1.0 TEST SAMPLE

One Plastic Film Material marked Hercules N600 (Comp. rolled by Revere)

2.0 TEST PERFORMED NOTE: Film identified as N600 Revere, is N400

Orientation Release Stress per ASTM D1504-70

- 3.0 TEST RESULTS
- 3.1 Tested Parrallel To Arrow

Specimen	Maximum Temperature attained, °F	Release Stress, psi	Remarks
1	250	496	(See Note 1)
2	250	506	(See Note 1)
3	250	550	(See Note 1)
4	250	551	(See Note 1)
5 Average	250	<u>541</u> 529	(See Note 1)

3.2 Test Perpendicular to Arrow

Specimen <u>No.</u>	Maximum Temperature attained, °F	Release Stress, psi	Remarks
1	250	Nil	(See Note 2)
2	250	Nil	(See Note 2)
3	250	Nil	(See Note 2)
4	250	Nil	(See Note 2)
5	250	Nil	(See Note 2)

OTHER DIVISIONS

LOS ANCELES GIVISION / 5320 WEST 3041H STREET / LOS ANGELES CALIFORNIA 40045 / 2013- 71 (320) VALLEY DIVISION / 5531 CANOGA AVENUE / CHATSHURTHER CALIFORNIA 41350 / (131) 31 (843) SAUGUS DIVISION / 2008E W GULOEN TRIANGLE MO , STUGUE CALIFORNIA 41350 / (105, 20) 818 (64) CALIFORNIA 1151 (44) 20 (100, 20) 818 (44) 810 (100, 20) 818 (45) 818 (45) 818 (45



APPROVED ENGINEERING TEST LABORATORIES

Note 1: Specimen returned to about the original shape and dimensions upon cooling to room temperature.

Note 2: No load indication on 0-1 lb. range (1 division = 0.01 lb.)

APPROVED ENGINEERING TEST LABORATORIES

Francis Pickell Sr., Project Engineer

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 3rd day of October 29, 1976.



Betty Matteson. Notary Public in and for the County of Orange, State of California. My commission expires October 29, 1977.

dkl



APPROVED ENGINEERING TEST LABORATORIES / 1536 EAST VALENCIA / FULLERTON, CALIFORNIA 92631 / TEL. (714) 879-6110 A NATIONAL TECHNICAL RERVICES COMPANY

And in case of the local division of the loc

TESTED FOR

Swedlow, Inc. 12242 Western Ave. Garden Grove, california 92645 Report No. 677-1399-4 P.O. No. 21898 Date: 7 September 1976

Attention: R. Shelton

1.0 TEST SAMPLE

One Plastic Film Material marked Hercules N660 (Comp. rolled by American Can Co. at 224°F)

2.0 TEST PERFORMED

Orientation Release Stress per ASTM D1504-70

3.0 TEST RESULTS

3.1 <u>Tested Parallel To Arrow</u>

Specimen No.	Maximum Temperature _attained, °F	Release Stress, psi	Remarks
1	275	404	(See Note 1)
2	275	360	(See Note 1)
3	275	480	(See Note 1)
4	275	480	(See Note 1)
5 Average	275	<u>450</u> 435	(See Note 1)

3.2 <u>Test Perpendicular to Arrow</u>

Specimen No.	Maximum Temperature attained, °F	Release Stress, psi	Remarks
1	275	Nil	(See Note 2)
2	275	Nil	(See Note 2)
3	275	Nil	(See Note 2)
4	275	NiJ.	(See Note 2)
5	275	Nil	(See Note 2)

OTHER DIVISIONS

LOS ANGELES DIVISION /	STO WEST JORTH STREET / LOS ANGELES, CALIFORNIA BODAS / 17	131 276 3202
WALLEY DIVISION / 35	S CANOGA AVENUE / CHAISWORTH, CALIFORNIA \$1311 / 12	13 341-0630
SAUGUS DIVISION / 2098	W COLDEN TRIANGLE RD / SAUGUS, CALIFORNIA \$1350 / 18	051 759 8184
CALIFORNIA TEST LAUS	IV / JA32 POTALAD AVE / SO EL MONTE LA STATE / ()	13) 783 8465
SO. EL MONTE DIV. / 14	I PUTAERO AVENUE / SO EL MONTE CALIFORNIA \$1733 / 12	1131 444 9511



- Specimen returned to about the original shape and dimensions Note 1: upon cooling to room temperature.
- Note 2: No load indication on 0-1 lb. range (1 division = 0.01 lb.)

APPROVED ENGINEERING TEST LABORATORIES

Francis Pickell Sr., Project Engineer

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 3rd day of October 29, 1976.



Matteson, Notary Public in and for the County of Orange, State of California My commission expires October 29, 1977.

dkl



·····

PEROVED ENGINEERING TEST LABORATORIES / 1535 EAST VALENCIA / FULLERTON, CALIFORNIA 92631 / TEL. (714) 879-6110 A NATIONAL TECHNICAL BERVICES COMPANY

TESTED FOR

Swedlow, Inc. 12242 Western Ave. Garden Grove, California 92645 Report No. 677-1399-5 P.O. No. 21898 Date: 7 September 1976

- Attention: R. Shelton
 - 1.0 TEST SAMPLE

One Plastic Film Material marked Hercules B503 (Bi-Axially oriented by Hercules)

2.0 TEST PERFORMED

Orientation Release Stress per ASTM D1504-70

- 3.0 TEST RESULTS
 - 3.1 Tested Parrallel to Arrow

Specimen No.	Maximum Temperature attained, °F	Release Stress, psi	Remarks
1	325	311	(See Note 1)
2	325	316	(See Note 1)
3	325	290	(See Note 1)
4	275	- 209	(See Note 2)
5 Average	325	<u>318</u> 289	(See Note 2)

3.2 Test Perpendicular to Arrow

Specimen No.	Maximum Temperature attained, °F	Release Stress, psi	Remarks
1	325	287	(See Note 1)
2	325	267	(See Note 1)
3	325	221	(See Note 1)
4	295	126	(See Note 2)
5 Averace	290	<u> 123 </u> 205 .	(See'Note 2)

DINER D VISIONS



APPROVED ENGINEERING TEST LABORATORIES

- Note 1: Specimen returned to about the original shape and dimensions upon cooling to room temperature.
- Note 2: Specimen ruptured upon attainment of maximum release stress.

APPROVED ENGINEERING TEST LABORATORIES

Francis Putriel, La. Francis Pickell Sr., Project Engineer

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 3rd day of October 29, 1976.



Betty Matteson, Notary Public in and for the County of Orange, State of California. My commission expires October 29, 1977.



. ROYED ENGINEERING TEST LABORATORIES / 1536 EAST VALENCIA / FULLERTON, CALIFORNIA 92631 / TEL (714) 879-6110

TESTED FOR

Swedlow, Inc. 12242 Western Ave. Garden Grove, California 92645

Report No. 677-1738-1 P.O. No. 23437 Date: 17 January 1977

Attention: R. Shelton

1.0 TEST SAMPLE

One plastic Film Material marked Toyoba P-2102.

2.0 TEST PERFORMED

Orientation Release Stress per ASTM D1504-70 (*)

3.0 TEST RESULTS

3.l Test Parallel To Arrow

Specimen No.	Maximum Temperature Attained, °F	Release Stress, psi
1	310	126
2	312	133
3	310	124
4	314	132
5	316	139
Average		131

3.2

Tested Perpendicular To Arrow

Specimen No.	Maximum Temperature Attained, °F	Release Stress, psi
1	314	128
2	312	126
3	310	122
4	312	117
5	318	262(**)
Average		151

OTHER DIVISIONS

LOS ANGELES DIVISION / 3320 WEST 104TH STREET / LOS ANGELES, CALIFORNIA 90045 / (213) 776 3202 VALLEY DIVISION / 9551 CANOGA AVENUE / CHATSWORTH, CALIFORNIA 91311 / (213) 341 0630 SAUGUS DIVISION / 2018 W GOLDEN TRIANGLE RO / SAUGUS, CALIFORNIA 91310 / (803) 228 4184 CALIFORNIA TEST LABS DIV. / 1427 POTRERO AVE. / SO EL MONTE (CA 91233) / (213) 228 4484 SO, EL MONTE DIV. / 1431 POTRERO AVENUE / SO, EL MONTE, CALIFORNIA 91333 / (213) 248 4484





- (*) Except air medium was used
- (**) Two additional specimens were tested, one in same general area as specimen No. 5 and the other one six inches away from specimen No. 5. The results on both tests were simular to the results obtained for specimen No. 5.

QU 12

APPROVED ENGINEERING TEST LABORATORIES

Francis Pickell

Project Engineer

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 17th day of January 1977.



Betty Matteson, Notary Public in and for the County of Orange, State of Catifornia. My commission expires October 29, 1977.

dkl



A NATIONAL TECHNICAL SERVICES COMPANY

TESTED FOR

• •

Swedlow, Inc. 12242 Western Ave. Garden Grove, California 92645 Report No. 677-1738-2 P.O. No. 23437 Date: 17 January 1977

Attention: R. Shelton

1.0 TEST SAMPLE

One plastic Film Material marked Cryovac X207.

2.0 TEST PERFORMED

Orientation Release Stress per ASTM D1504-70 (*)

- 3.0 TEST RESULTS
- 3.1 Test Parallel To Arrow

SpecimenNo	Maximum Temperature Attained, °F	Release Stress, psi
1	334	285
2	333	221
3	334	250
4	332	242
5	330	237
Average		247

3.2

Tested Perpendicular To Arrow

Specimen No.	Maximum Temperature Attained, °F	Release Stress, psi
1	280	524
2	273	545
.3	276	510
4	274	427
5	274	488
Average		499

OTHER DIVISIONS

LOS ANGELES DIVISION / 3320 WEST 304TH STREET / LOS ANGELES, CALIFORNIA 90045 / (2)3) 735 3202 VALLEY DIVISION / 9551 CANUGA AVENUE / CHATSNC NTH, CALIFORNIA 91311 / (2)3) 341 0830 SAUGUS DIVISION / 20188 W. GOLDEN TRIANGLE RO / SAUGUS CLIFORNIA 91310 / (8051 23) 48184 CALIFORNIA TEST LABS DIV. / 1432 POTRERO AVE. / 30 CL MONTE, CA 91733 / (8)32 129 4485 30. EL MONTE DIV. / 1431 POTRERO AVENUE / 50, CL MONTE, CALIFORNIA 81735 / (2)31 44 9511



APPROVED ENGINEERING TEST LABORATORIES

(*) Except air medium was used

APPROVED ENGINEERING TEST LABORATORIES

Francis Pickell Sr., P.E.

Project Engineer



Subscribed and sworn to before me this 17th day of January 1977.



Betty Matteson, Notary Public in and for the County of Orange, State of California. My commission expires October 29, 1977.

dkl



F DYED ENGINEERING TEST LABORATORIES / 1536 EAST VALENCIA / FULLERTON, CALIFORNIA 92631 / TEL. (714) 879-6110 A NATIONAL TECHNICAL BERVICES COMPANY

TESTED FOR

Swedlow, Inc. 12242 Western Ave. Garden Grove, California 92645 Report No. 677-1738-3 P.O. No. 23437 Date: 17 January 1977

Attention: R. Shelton

1.0 TEST SAMPLE

One plastic Film Material marked Hercules N400, Type II.

2.0 TEST PERFORMED NOTE: Film suspected to be N600

Orientation Release Stress per ASTM D1504-70 (*)

- 3.0 TEST RESULTS
- 3.1 Test Parallel To Arrow

Specimen No.	Maximum Temperature Attained, °F	Release Stress, psi
1	206	466
2	205	428
3	204	489
4	204	490
5	205	470
Average		469

3.2 Tested Perpendicular To Arrow

Specimen No.	Maximum Temperature Attained, °F	Release Stress, psi
1	250	13
2	260	14
3	262	32
4	260	36
5	262	<u>14</u>
Average		21.8

OTHER DIVISIONS

LOS ANGELES DIVISION / 3330 WEST JOATH STREET / LOS ANGELES, CALIFORNIA 90045 / (213) 776 3702 VALLEY DIVISION / 8531 CANOGA AVENUE / CHATSWORTH, CALIFORNIA 81313 / (213) 341 0830 SAUGUS DIVISION / 20888 W GOLDEN TRIANGLE AD. / SAUGUS, CALIFORNIA 81350 / (805) 298 8184 CALIFORNIA TEST LABS DIV. / 3432 POTREFO AVE. / SO EL MONTE, CA 91733 / (213) 248 855 SO, EL MONTE DIV. / 3431 POTREFO AVENUE / SO. EL MONTE, CALIFORNIA 9133 / (213) 248 951;

PROVED ENGINEERING TEST LABORATORIES

Except air medium was used (*)

APPROVED ENGINEERING TEST LABORATORIES

Francis Pickell, h Francis Pickell Sr., P.E.

Project Engineer



Subscribed and sworn to before me this 17th day af January 1977.



Betty Matteson, Notary Public in and for the County of Orange, State of California. My commission expires October 29, 1977.

2 -

dk1

ι.



PENUYED ENGINEERING TEST LABORATORIES / 1536 EAST VALENCIA / FULLERTON, CALIFORNIA 52631 / TEL. (714) 879-6110 A NATIONAL TECHNICAL BERVICED COMPANY

TESTED FOR

Swedlow, Inc. 12242 Western Ave. Garden Grove, California 92645 Report No. 677-1738-4 P.O. No. 23437 Date: 17 January 1977

Attention: R. Shelton

1.0 TEST SAMPLE

One plastic Film Material marked Mobil Bicor #240-Bl.

2.0 TEST PERFORMED

Orientation Release Stress per ASTM D1504-70 (*)

- 3.0 TEST RESULTS
- 3.1 Test Parallel To Arrow

Specimen No.	Maximum Temperature Attained, °F	Release Stress, psi
1	332	85
2	329	75
3	330	72
4	329	69
5	330	70
Average		74

3.2

Tested Perpendicular To Arrow

Specimen No.	Maximum Temperature Attained, °F	Release Stress, psi
1	326	330
2	328	347
3	324	320
4	326	331
5	326	322
Average		330

OTHER DIVISIONS

(05 ANGELES DIVISION / 5320 WEST JOATH STREET / LOS ANGELES, CALIFORNIA 90045 / [213] 776 3202 VALLEV DIVISION / 9551 CANOGA AVENUE / CHATSWORTH, CALIFORNIA 91311 / [213] 341-0830 SAUGUS DIVISION / 20988 W COUDEN TRIANCLE RD / SAUGUS, CALIFORNIA 91330 / [1805] 229 8145 CALIFORNIA TEST WEBS DIV. / 1432 POTERED AVE. / SO EL HONTE, CALIFORNIA 91732 / [213] 243 445 SO, EL MONTE DIV. / 1435 POTAERD AVENUE / SO EL MONTE, CALIFORNIA 91732 / [213] 444 9531





(*) Except air medium was used

APPROVED ENGINEERING TEST LABORATORIES

Francis Pickell Francis Pickell Sr.,

Project Engineer

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 17th day of January 1977.



Betty Matteson, Notary Public in and for the County of Orange, State of California. My commission expires October 29, 1977.

dkl



OVED ENGINEERING TEST LABORATORIES / 1536 EAST VALENCIA / FULLERTON, CALIFORNIA 92631 / TEL. (714) 879-6110

4.781

TESTED FOR

67 -

Swedlow, Inc. 12242 Western Ave. Garden Grove, California 92645 Report No. 677-1738-5 P.O. No. 23437 Date: 17 January 1977

マント・シート シート 日子子 イン

Attention: R. Shelton

1.0 TEST SAMPLE

One plastic Film Material marked G.E. Capacitor Grade.

2.0 TEST PERFORMED

Orientation Release Stress per ASTM D1504-70 (*)

3.0 TEST RESULTS

3.1 Test Parallel To Arrow

Specimen No.	Maximum Temperature Attained, °F	Release Stress, psi
1	325	204
2	328	184
3	326	175
4	327	201
5	326	186
Average		190

3.2

Tested Perpendicular To Arrow

Specimen No.	Maximum Temperature Attained, °F	Release Stress, psi
1	323	331
2	319	323
3	321	331
4	319	311
5	322	<u>323</u>
Average		324

OTHER DIVISIONS

-

LUS ANGELES DIVISION / 5320 WEST JOATH STREET / LUS ANGELES, CALIFORNIA 90045 / (2) 3) 176-3202 VALLEY DIVISION / 9553 CAHOGA AVENUE / CHATSWORTH, CALIFORNIA 9333 / (2) 3) 341-0830 SAUGUS DIVISION / 20948 W GOLDEN TRINNGLE RO. / SAUGUS, CALIFORNIA 93350 / (8051 259-8184 CALIFORNIA TEST LABS DIV. / 1435 POTRERO AVE. / 50 EL MONTE, CALIFORNIA 5133 / (2) 3) 353 8465 SO EL, MONTE DIV. / 1431 POTRERO AVEHUE / SO. EL MONTE, CALIFORNIA 5133 / (2) 3) 444 9513



PROVED ENGINEERING TEST LABORATORIES

(*) Except air medium was used

APPROVED ENGINEERING TEST LABORATORIES N. N.

Francis Francis Pickell Sr., P.E.

Project Engineer



QU 1224

Betty Matteson, Notary Public in and for the County of Orange, State of California. My commission expires October 29, 1977.

- 2 -

dk1

۲



.PPROVED ENGINEERING TEST LABORATORIES / 1536 EAST VALENCIA / FULLERTON, CALIFORNIA 92631 / TEL. (714) 879-6110 A NATIONAL TECHNICAL SERVICES COMPANY

TESTED FOR

Swedlow, Inc. 12242 Western Ave. Garden Grove, California 92645

Report No. 677-1738-6 P.O. No. 23437 Date: 17 January 1977

Attention: R. Shelton

1.0 TEST SAMPLE

One plastic Film Material marked Hercules B500.

2.0 TEST PERFORMED

Orientation Release Stress per ASTM D1504-70 (*)

- 3.0 TEST RESULTS
- 3.1 Test Parallel To Arrow

Specimen No.	Maximum Temperature Attained, °F	Release Stress, psi
l	330	295
2	335	288
3	333	288
4.	334	290
5	332	281
Average		288

3.2

Tested Perpendicular To Arrow

Specimen No.	Maximum Temperature Attained, °F	Releas e Stress, psi
1	325	303
2	328	308
3	324	286
4	325	290
5	322	301
Average		298

OTHER DIVISIONS

LOS ANGELES DIVISION / 3320 WEST 104TH STREET / LOS ANGELES, CALIFORNIA 80645 / (313) 774 3202 VALLEY DIVISION / 9551 CANOGA AVENUE / CHATSHORTH, CALIFORNIA 91331 / (713) 341 0430 SAUGUS DIVISION / 20848 W GOLOLIN TRIANGLE AD / SAUGUS, CALIFORNIA 91330 / (105) 229 8184 CALIFORNIA TEST LABS DIV. / 1432 POTRERO AVE. / SO EL MONTE, CA 91733 / (113) 721 9134 50. EL MONTE DIV. / 3431 POTRERO AVENUE / SO EL MONTE, CALIFORNIA 91733 / (213) 444 9511



(*) Except air medium was used

APPROVED ENGINEERING TEST LABORATORIES

Francis Pickell Sr., P.E

Project Engineer

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 17th day of January 1977.



QU 1224

ile

Betty Matteson, Notary Public in and for the County of Orange, State of California. My commission expires October 29, 1977.

dkl

- 2 -



TESTED FOR

Swedlow, Inc. 12242 Western Ave. Garden Grove, California 92645 Report No. 677-1738-7 P.O. No. 23437 Date: 17 January 1977

· *** · ** **

- Attention: R. Shelton
 - 1.0 TEST SAMPLE

One plastic Film Material marked Trea SK 300-2

2.0 TEST PERFORMED

Orientation Release Stress per ASTM D1504-70 (*)

3.0 TEST RESULTS

3.1 Test Parallel To Arrow

Specimen No.	Maximum Temperature Attained, °F	Release Stress, psi
1	326	488
2	326	502
3	327	473
4	325	478
5	328	488
Average		486

3.2

Tested Perpendicular To Arrow

Specimen No.	Maximum Temperature Attained, °F	Release Stress, psi
1	316	5.6
2	318	5.6
3	316	5.8
4	316	5.3
5	316	3.4
Average		5.1

OTHER DIVISIONS

LOS HNGELES DIVISION / 5320 WEST 104TH STREET / LOS ANGELES, CALIFORNIA 90045 / 12131 726 3202 VALLEY DIVISION / 9551 CANOGA AVENUE / CHATSWORTH, CALIFORNIA 91313 / 12131 341 0830 SAUGUS DIVISION / 20588 W. GOLDEN TRIANGLE RO, / SAUGUS, CALIFORNIA 91350 / 18033 229 8184



(*) Except air medium was used



Project Engineer

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 17th day of January 1977.



Betty Matteson, Notary Public in and for the County of Orange, State of California. My commission expires October 29, 1977.

dkl

- 2 -



APPROVED ENGINEERING TEST LABORATORIES / 1536 EAST VALENCIA / FULLERTON, CALIFORNIA 92631 / TEL. (714) 879-6110 A NATIONAL TECHNICAL SERVICES COMPANY

TESTED FOR

Swedlow, Inc.	Report No. 877-3066-1
12122 Western Ave.	P.O. No. 31466
Garden Grove, California 92642	Date: 18 September 1978

1.0 TEST ITEM

One Plastic Film Material Marked Diamond Shamock #NB-81-59-3.

2.0 TEST PERFORMED

Orientation Release Stress per ASTM D150420, except air medium was used.

3.0 TEST RESULTS

3.1 Tested Parallel to Direction of Isotrophy

Specimen <u>No.</u>	Maximum Temperature Attained, °F	Orientation alease Stress, psi
1	276	706
2	274	738
3	265	663
4	257	586
5	260	588
Average	266	656

3.2 Tested Normal To Direction of Isotrophy

1	275	1.2
2	273	1.1
3	270	.8
4	272	1.5
5	270	1.2
Average	272	1.2
_		

APPROVED ENGINEERING TEST LABORATORIES

Francis Pickell Sr.,

OTHER DIVISIONS

Project Engineer



- GARDEN

. Puter la

dk l

LOS ANGELES DIVISION / 5320 WEBT 104TH STREET / LOS ANGELES (AL ALTERNATION / 5320 WEBT 104TH STREET / LOS ANGELES (AL ALTERNATION / 5551 CANOGA AVENUE / CHATSWORTH, ALTERNATION / 5751 AT (820 / 2000) / 2000 / 20



.....

APPROVED ENGINEERING TEST LABORATORIES / 1536 EAST VALENCIA / FULLERTON, CALIFORNIA 92631 / TEL. (714) 879-8110 A NATIONAL TECHNICAL SERVICES COMPANY

TESTED FOR

Manager and the state of the

and the second second

Swedlow, Inc. Report No. 877-3066-2 P.O. No. 31466 12122 Western Ave. Garden Grove, California 92642 Date: 18 September 1978

1.0 TEST ITEM

One Plastic Film Material Marked Hercules #EK500

2.0 TEST PERFORMED

> Orientation Release Stress per ASTM D150420, except air medium was used.

3.0 TEST RESULTS

3.1 Tested Parallel to Direction of Isotrophy

	Specimen No.	Max mum Temperature Atc ined, °F	Grientation Release Strefar [L	
	1	5	262	
	2	325	263	
	3	330	275	
	4	332	239	
	5	335	242	
	Average	331	254	
3.2	Tested Norma	l To Direction of Isotrophy		
	1	312	321	
	2	329	284	
	3	320	270	
	4	325	276	
	5	322	299	
	Average	322	290	
APPROV	ED ENGINEERIN	G TEST LABORATORIES	IONAL	
4	· P.			
Tha	ncis Inc	keep h.		
Franci	s Pickell Sr.	, P.E.		
Projec	ct Engineer	S. QUAN	J' and a	
	OTHER DIVISION	" OF O	ALIFU	
dkl	LOS ANGELE Valley Divi Saugus Divi	SOLVISION / 3320 WEST 104TH STREET / LOS ANUELES CALTONIA 13310 1310N - 1955 CANDOA AVENUE - CHATSWURTH CALTONIA 1331 1310N - 2018 N GOLDEN TRIANGLE AD SAUGLES CALTONIA 11330	/ (805) 259-0194	

CALIFORNIA TEST LASS DIV / 1432 POTNERU AVE / SU EL MONTE LA 91733 / 12131 263 8465 SO EL MONTE DIV / 1431 POTRERO AVENUE : SO EL MONTE CALIFORNIA 91733 / 12131 444-9511



APPROYED ENGINEERING TEST LABORATORIES / 1538 EAST VALENCIA / FULLERTON, CALIFORNIA 92631 / TEL. (714) 879-6110 A NATIONAL TECHNICAL SERVICES COMPANY

TESTED FOR

Swedlow, Inc. Report No. 877-3066-3 12122 Western Ave. P.O. No. 31466 Garden Grove, California 92642 Date: 18 September 1978

1.0 TEST ITEM

One Plastic Film Material marked El Rexene #PP-41-6300-4153

2.0 TEST PERFORMED

> Orientation release stress per ASTM D150420, except air medium was used.

3.0 TEST RESULTS

3.1 Tested Parallel to Direction of Isotrophy

Specimen <u>No.</u>	Maximum Temperature Attained, °F	Orientation Release Stress, psi
1	293	60 6
2	295	681
3	290	633
4	285	556
5	290	597
Average	291	615

3.2

Tested Normal To Direction of Isotrophy

Specimen No.	Maximum Temp Actained, °F	erature	Orientation Release Stress	, psi
1	305		1.8	
2	300		.9	
3	300	ROFESSIO	. 8	
4	295	D PICK	1.1	
5	305	12 6 · · · ·		
Average	301	Sig Iz	S E 1.2	
APPROVED ENGINEER	ING TEST LABORATORIES			
Francis P	ickell &			
Francis Pickell Si	C., P.E.	AL	TEORI	
Project Engineer	510 N S	OF CA		
dkl Saudus	ELES DIVISION / 5320 WEST JOATH STREET / LOS ANGEL DIVISION / 9531 CANOGA AVENUE , CHATSWORTH, DIVISION / 20988 W GOLDEN TRIANGLE RD (SAUGUS C NIA TEST LABS DIV / 1432 POTRERO AVENUE - 50 EL MONTE, ONTE DIV / 1431 POTRERO AVENUE - 50 EL MONTE,	ES, CALIFORNIA 40043 / CALIFORNIA 9 51 ALIFORNIA 91 330 / MONTE, CA 91 133 / CALIFOPNIA 91 733 /	-2:2:2:7:76.3202 -2:2:2:7:76.3202 -2:2:2:7:76.320 -2:2:2:7:76.320 -2:2:2:7:76.3202	



APPROVED ENGINEERING TEST LABORATORIES / 1836 EAST VALENCIA / FULLERTON, CALIFORNIA 92831 / TEL. (714) 879-6110 A NATIONAL TECHNICAL BERVICES COMPANY

TESTED FOR

Swedlow, Inc.			Report N	o. 977-3	505
12122 Western	Ave.		P.O. No.	34943	
Garden Grove,	California	92645	Date: 2	6 March	1979

1.0 TEST ITEM

One Plastic Film Material marked Hercules EK-500

2.0 TEST PERFORMED

Orientation release stress per ASTM D1504-70, except air medium was used.

3.0 TEST RESULTS

Tested Parallel	to directiron of Isotro	ophy
Specimen No.	Maximum Temperature attained, °F	Orientation Release Stress, psi
1	323	224
2	320	219
3	320	212
4	322	205
5	324	209
Average	322	214

3.2

Specimen No.	Maximum Temperature attained, °F	Orientation Release Stress, psi
l	318	162
2	322	164
3	320	152
4	318	153
5	320	150
Average	320 PROFESS	10A. 156
	LO PICA	

APPROVED ENGINEERING TEST LABORATORIES

Francis Pickell Sr., P.E.

OTHER DIVISIONS

Project Engineer

5	CUS PICAEL
	S. QUALITY IN
	F OF CALIFOR
+Q€L	ES, CALIFORNIA 90045 / (213) 776-3203

dkl

LOS ANGELL'S DIVISION / 5320 WEST 104TH STREET / LOS ANGELES, CALIFORNIA 50045 / (213) 776-3202 VALLEY DIVISION / 5551 CANOGA AVENUE / CHATSWORTH, CALIFORNIA 51311 / (213) 541 0630 SAUGUS DIVISION / 20585 W. GOLDEN TRIANGLE RO. / SAUGUS, CALIFORNIA 51360 / (405) 259-4184 CALIFORNIA TEST LABS DIV. / 1432 POTRERO AVENUE / 50. EL MONTE, CA 51733 / (213) 283-445 50. EL MONTE DIV. / 1431 POTRERO AVENUE / 50. EL MONTE, CALIFORNIA 5133 / (213) 444-511

APPENDIX E

SPECIFICATIONS

Engineering Report No. 948 - Test Procedure for Determining the Optimum Processing Condition for Transparent Polyolefin Film Armor

Engineering Report No. 990 - Material Procurement Specification - Polypropylene Film for Transparent Armor

Engineering Report No. 991 - Process Specification -Production of Transparent Polyolefin Film Armor £

·		Swedlow Inc. Garden Gro	ve, Calif.			
DATE OF	2/28/79	Swedlow Inc	. S	NUMBER	948	
PREPART	R. Shelton R. Shelton REVISEDEN 4/1/		-	CLASSIFICAT	10N	
- A - B	C. Gibson 479	ENGINEERING REP	ORT	STAMP IF PR	OPRIETARY	
с						
D						
REN	VISION INFORMATION (D VISION "A" - Dated App	ATES, ETC.) LIST AMENDM	ENTS HERE			
		SWEDLOW APPRO	VALS			
REVISION	CHECKED BY	SWEDLOW APPRO	VALS		APPROVAL	
REVISION	CHECKED BY CAF ilm - 3/1/79 C. GjASOB - 3/1/79 C. GjASOB - 4/1/79	SWEDLOW APPRO	VALS		APPROVAL	
REVISION A	CHECKED BY C. Gjason 2/1/79 C. Gjason 1/3/79 C. Gibson 1/3/79	SWEDLOW APPRO APPROVAL C. Lingle R. Shelton 4-13-78	APPROVAL		APPROVAL	
A B	Снескео ву С. Gjason 2/1/79 С. Gjason 2/1/79 С. Gibson 9/3/79	SWEDLOW APPRO APPROVAL C. Lingle R. Shelton 4-13-78	APPROVAL		APPROVAL	
A E C	снескер ву 201 il 3/1/79 С. Gibson - 4/3/79 С. Gibson	SWEDLOW APPRO	APPROVAL		APPROVAL	
A B C D	Снескео ву Сляда 3/1/79 С. Gibson 1/3/79 С. Gibson	SWEDLOW APPRO	VALS		APPROVAL	
A B C	снескер ву 201 il.27 - 3/1/79 С. Gibson - 4/3/79 С. Gibson	SWEDLOW APPRO APPROVAL C. Lingle R. Shelton 4-13-78 CUSTOMER APPROVAL 51				
A B C D	Снескер ву 2. Gibson - 3/1/79 С. Gibson - 9/3/79 С. Gibson	SWEDLOW APPRO APPROVAL C. Lingle R. Shelton 4-13-79 CUSTOMER APPROVALS (APPROVAL	IF REQUIRED		APPROVAL	
A B C D	Снескер ву С. Gjhson 3/1/79 С. Gibson 1/3/79 С. Gibson 1/3/79	SWEDLOW APPRO	IF REQUIRED		APPROVAL	
A B C D acvision A	Снескер ву С. Gjhap - 2/1/79 С. Gibson	SWEDLOW APPRO	IF REQUIRED)			
A B C D A E S A B	Снескер ву С. Gjbson 2/1/79 С. Gibson 1/3/79 С. Gibson 2/1/79 С. Gibson 2/1/79	SWEDLOW APPRO	IF REQUIRED)		APPROVAL	
A B C D A A B C	Снескер ву С. Gjbson 2/1/79 С. Gibson 1/3/79 С. Gibson 1/3/79 С. Снескер ву	SWEDLOW APPRO	IF REQUIRED			

!.
TABLE OF CONTENTS

SCOPETITLE		PAGE
1.0	SCOPE	1
2.0	REFERENCES	1
3.0	BACKGROUND	۱
4.0	PROCEDURE	3

1.0 SCOPE

This procedure establishes the method to be used by Swedlow in determining the optimum processing conditions, with a minimum number of experiments, for Transparent Polyolefin Film Armor.

The procedure to be used will be a two factorial experimental plan where three factors (temperature, pressure and time) are evaluated at three different levels.

2.0 REFERENCES

- i. Contract Number DAAG-46-76-C-0034, Amendment Number P00001.
- Box, G.E.P. and Behnken D.W. "Some New Three Level Designs for the Study of Quantitative Variables", Technometrics <u>2</u>, pp 455-475 (1960).
- 3. The Design and Analysis of Industrial Experiments, Second Edition, Edited by O. L. Davies.

3.0 BACKGROUND

Prior to any experimental work, parameters were established by AMMRC as guidlines for Task III, (Ref. 1., paragraph F-2.2.3.2). These preliminary guidelines are shown in Table 1.

TABLE 1

PRELIMINARY GUIDELINES FOR TASK III

	ITEM	UNITS	LOW	<u>HIGH</u>
a)	Temperature	° _F	300	380
Ь)	Pressure	PSI	100	8000
c)	Time	Minutes	20	60

We believe that these molding guidelines should be modified to a more meaninful span. Tests to date indicate that molding at 300° F does not allow lamination to take place, while 380° F is in the melt region allowing excessive flow and loss of clarity. Results of the moldings of EK 500 film for Task II indicates that increasing temperature generally decreases the light transmission and increases the haze. This can be seen in Figure 1. It can also be noted that the maximum light transmission and minimum haze are obtained when the maximum molding temperature is slightly below the crystalline melting point of the EK 500 film, which is 333°F.



The range of pressure desired seems to be excessive, especially since a two level factorial program loses accuracy rapidly as the range of parametric variation increases.

It also seems that the time element could be reduced. Adequate adhesion, commensurate with ballistics resistance, has been obtained with somewhat less time at temperature.

PROCEDURE 4.0

Based on the data obtained to date with molding EK500 film, and a discussion with the C.O.R., we have established a new ---set of guidlines, resulting in the Box-Behnken Design, (Paragraph 11.2, of Ref. 2), shown in Table 2. (Table 2 reflects the new range of independent variables as agreed upon. ¢

TABLE 2

INDEPENDENT VARIABLES

	ITEM	UNITS	LOW	MIDDLE	<u>HIGH</u>
a)	Temperature	°F	300	330	360
bγ	Pressure	PSI	100	1550	3000
c)	Time	Minutes	1	30	60

DEPENDENT VARIABLES

	ITEM	UNITS	TEST METHOD
d)	Light Transmission	0/ 10	ASTM-D-1003
e)	Haze	61 10	ASTM-D-1003
f)	Ballistics	v ₅₀	MIL-STD-662
g)	Interlaminar Shear	PSI	MIL-P-25690, Para: 4.6.9
h)	Resistance to Debonding	-	ASTM-D-756, Proc. E. (-57 ⁰ C)
i)	Deviation	Minutes of Arc	ASTM-D-881-48
j)	Thickness	Inches	ASTM-D-374

The set of

As a result, the "Experimental Schedule", shown in Table 3, is proposed. (This experimental schedule follows that shown in Table 11.1a of Ref. 2).

TABLE 3

RUN NUMBER	TEMPERATURE	PRESSURE (PSI)	TIME (MINUTES)
1	330	1550	30
2	360	100	30
3	360	1550	60
4	300	3000	1
5	300	3000	30
6	300	1550	1
7	360	3000	30
3	330	1550	30
9	300	100	30
10	300	1550	60
וו	330	3000	60
12	330	100	60
13	360	1550	1
14	330	100	1
15	330	1550	30

EXPERIMENTAL SCHEDULE

The run data will be recorded on run sheets shown in Figure 2.

At the completion of one test sequence, (runs i thru 15 of Table 3), the samples will be measured for the dependent variables d) and e) of Table 2. The molded samples will then be delivered to AMMRC for ballistics evaluation. These results (including ballistics), will then be analyzed, informally, and if necessary, adjustment of some factor levels will be made or individual points will be moved slightly.

Based on the results obtained, a second test sequence may be made. If a second test sequence is necessary, the samples will be evaluated as described above.

The results obtained from the one or two test sequences will provide a basis for selecting an optimum molding cycle. The data will be recorded as shown in Table 4.

RUN NUMBER	a TEMP	b PRESS	C TIME	d LIGHT TRANS	e HAZE	f BALLISTICS
1	0	0	0			
2	+	-	0			
3	+	0	+			
4	-	+	-			
5	-	+	0			
6	-	0	••			
7	+	+	0			
8	0	0	0			
9	-	-	0			
10	-	0	+			
11	0	+	+			
12	0	-	+			
13	+	0	-			
14	0	-	~			
15	0	Ο	Ω			

TABLE 4

The optimum molding cycle will be selected as follows. (Paragraph 11.5 of Ref. 2).

 A three-dimensional cube will be drawn, in perspective, and the observed d), e), and f) values will be entered at the appropriate points. The points where the observed response is highest and lowest will be noted.

 The point or points at which the best combination of responses is found will be identified. The corresponding a), b), and
c) combinations should be good estimates of the best operating conditions of the process.

1

and a second

and With a second

ブード はっちょう ちょういんり

The selected cycle, (optimum), will be utilized to produce approximately six moldings. Three will be tested by Swedlow to the requirements of Table 2, dependent variables d), e), g), h), i), and j); and three will be delivered to AMMRC for ballistics testing (Table 2, f).

-5-

PRESS LAMINATION REPORT - EK500 FILM

- , ·

F

TRANSPARENT POLYOLEFIN FILM ARMOR

CONTRACT NUMBER DAAG-46-76-C-0034

UNIT NO		UNIT	SIZE		PRESS	DATE	
CROSS PLY	DATA-PLIES				_BY		
(OR UNIT WEIGHT	·			_GMS.		
DRYING CYC	LE-VACUUM			TIME		_TEMP	
PRESS CYCLI	E-PLATEN TEMP_				PRESS NO.		
	PRESSURE				PSI		
MOLDING DA	TA-EXPERIMENTA	RUN NO.					
TIME	PSI	TEMP	TIME		PSI		TEMP
		- 					
Remarks		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·					
LAMINATE-W	EIGHT		GMS			LBS	$/\mathrm{FT}^2$

FIGURE 2



ENGINEERING REPORT NO. 990

MATERIAL PROCUREMENT

SPECIFICATION

PCLYPROPYLENE FILM FOR TRANSPARENT ARMOR

Prepared For

Army Materials and Mechanics Research Center (AMMRC) Watertown, Mass. 02172

Contract Number DAAG-46-76-0-0034, Amendment Number P00002

コート・デナイ あい、ブラボチッチィット・コードも、ひたうないがり

FOREWORD

This Material Procurement Specification was prepared by Swedlow, Inc. under Army Materials and Research Center, (AMMRC), Contract Number DAAG-46-76-(-0034, Amendment P00002.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION	TITLE	PAGE
1.0	SCOPE	1
2.0	REFERENCES	1
3.0	REQUIREMENTS AND TEST METHODS	1
4.0	RECEIVING INSPECTION	1
5.0	ACCEPTANCE	٦
6.0	RETEST	1
7.0	REJECTION	2
TABLE 1	ORIENTED POLYPROPYLENE FILM, REQUIREMENTS AND TEST METHODS	3
	APPROVED MATERIALS.	4

ii

1.0 SCOPE

1.1 This specification is for use in the procurement of clear, colorless, heat-set biaxially oriented polypropylene homopolymer film. It specifies the requirements the material must meet to be acceptable for the production of transparent film armor and provides the receiving inspection procedure and test methods to be employed in assuring conformance to the requirements of this specification.

2.0 REFERENCES

- 2.1 ASTM Standards Methods of Testing.
- 3.0 REQUIREMENTS AND TEST METHODS
- 3.1 The biaxially oriented polypropylene film, as received, shall conform to the requirements of Table 1.
- 3.2 Conformance to the requirements of Table 1 will be determined by the test methods shown in the same table.
- 4.0 RECEIVING INSPECTION
 - NOTE: Do not handle polypropylene film with bare hands. Use clean, disposable, polyethylene gloves at all times.
- 4.1 Two samples of the film material will be taken from one roll and one sample will be delivered to the test laboratory for evaluation.
- 4.2 Evaluation will consist of the tests and methods shown as Items 1 through 9 in Table 1.
- 4.3 If the first film sample meets the requirements of Items 1 through 9 of Table 1, the second sample will be sent to an outside qualified test laboratory for determination of the Orientation Release Stress, Item 10 of Table 1.
- 5.0 ACCEPTANCE
- 5.1 After arrival, the film shall be impounded until released by the Receiving Inspection Department.
- 5.2 Upon release of the Acceptance Report from the test laboratory, the Receiving Inspection Department shall approve release of the film for production.

6.0 RETEST

- 6.1 If the film sample fails to meet all the requirements of Table 1, a second sampling may be taken.
- 6.2 If the second film sampling passes all the requirements of Table 1, the film shall be approved as noted in Section 5.0.

7.0 <u>REJECTION</u>

• .

7.1 Failure of the second film sample to meet all the requirements of Table 1 shall be cause for rejection.

THE PROPERTY AND A DESCRIPTION

Page 3

the second and a second s

TABLE 1

ORIENTED POLYPROPYLENE FILM

REQUIREMENTS AND TEST METHODS

Item	Property	Test Method	Requirement
1	Thickness, Inches	ASTM D-374	0.001 (1)
2	Melting Point, °C (°F)	ASTM D-2217	167 (332.6) (1)
3	Specific Gravity	ASTM D-792	0.902 (1)
4	Water Absorption, 🖇	ASTM D-570	< 0.005
5	Light Transmission, %	ASTM D-1003	>91.0
6	Haze, %	ASTM D-1003	< 2.0
7	Tensile Strength, PSI	ASTM D-882, Method A	30,000 Machine (1) and Transverse
8	Tensile Modulus, PSI	ASTM D-882, Method A	350,000 Machine (1) and Transverse
9	Elongation, %	ASTM D-882, Method A	70-100
10	Orientation Release Stress Temperature, °F Release Stress, PSI	ASTM D-1504 300 Minimum 200 Minimum 150 Minimum	machine, transverse

(1) Manufacturers' tolerance apply.

APPROVED MATERIALS

.

.

Product	Manufacturers Designation	Source
Clear, Colorless, Heat-set, Biaxially Oriented Polypropylene Homopolymer Film	EK-500	Hercules Inc. Film Division Wilmington, Delaware 19899

man and the second of the Carter and

Page 4

72.



بالصابات بجابتهم فرفتهم والمرجوع والع

ENGINEERING REPORT NO. 991

PROCESS SPECIFICATION

PRODUCTION OF TRANSPARENT

POLYOLEFIN FILM ARMOR

Prepared For

Army Materials and Mechanics Research Center (AMMRC) Watertown, Mass. 02172

Contract Number DAAG-46-76-C-0034, Amendment Number P00002

FOREWORD

This Process Specification was prepared by Swedlow, Inc. under Army Materials and Mechanics Research Center, (AMMRC), Contract Number DAAG-46-76-C-0034, Amendment P00002.

i

TABLE OF CONTENTS

i

SECTION	TITLE	PAGE
1.0	SCOPE	1
2.0	REFERENCES	1
3.0	REQUIREMENTS - FILM	١
4.0	REQUIREMENTS - MOLDED SHEET	1
5.0	MATERIALS	2
6.0	EQUIPMENT	3
7.0	MANUFACTURING PROCESS	3
8.0	PACKAGING/DELIVERY	7

TABLES AND FIGURES

TABLE 1	MOLDED POLYOLEFIN FILM ARMOR, REQUIREMENTS AND TEST METHODS	8
FIGURE 1	ROLL SET UP FOR FILM TAKEOFF	9
FIGURE 2	MOLDING ASSEMBLY	9
FIGURE 3	PRESS LAMINATION REPORT EK-500 FILM	10

and the second state of the second state of the

Page 1

1.0 <u>SCOPE</u>

Configuration (second second

- 1.1 This process specification describes the materials and procedures required for converting polyolefin film into bonded sheet having good ballistic, optical and resistance to debonding characteristics.
- 2.0 REFERENCES
- 2.1 Drawings
- 2.1.1 AMMRC

CD-1 Transparent Polypropylene Film Windows

W. AMERICA

2.1.2 Swedlow

77050 Assembly-Chase Mold (12" x 12") - AMMRC Transparent Armor Test Plaques

- 80025 Assembly-Chase Mold AMMRC Transparent Armor Windows
- 2.2 Other

ASTM Standards - Methods of Testing Federal Standard 209 - Clean Room and Work Station Requirements, Controlled Environment.

- 3.0 REQUIREMENTS FILM
- 3.1 A clear, colorless, heat-set, biaxially oriented polypropylene homopolymer film meeting the requirements of Material Procurement Specification ER-990.
- 4.0 REQUIREMENTS MOLDED SHEET
- 4.1 After converting, the molded sheet shall conform to the Requirements of Table 1.
- 4.2 Conformance to the requirements of Table 1 will be determined by the test Methods shown in the same table.
- 4.3 The molded sheet shall be free of delamination.
- 4.4 Optical defects such as inclusions, wrinkles, roll flaws, die lines or orange peel shall not be grouped in such a manner as to cause vision impairment.
- 4.5 The maximum deviation, line of sight, shall not exceed the limit shown in Table 1 except for an area within two inches of the trimmed edge, where such requirements shall be disregarded.

. الله 10 مثل الك**لية بالحد والمتناهم م**

5.0 MATERIALS

- 5.1 The following material shall become the finished product.
- 5.1.1 Clear, biaxially oriented polypropylene film as described in paragraph 3.1.

5.1.2 A transparent abrasion resistant protective coating.

Source: See paragraph 7.5.6

5.2 The following materials are not incorporated into the finished product, but are required for part preparation.

5.2.1 Bleached cheesecloth -

Source: Industrial Textiles Los Angeles, Ca.

5.2.2 Capron 80, 0.002 inch thick, 80 inch wide roll.

Source: Allied Chemicals Los Angeles, Ca.

5.2.3 Vacuum Bag Sealer. Vac-Seal Type 1191 (Zinc Chromate, green, 1/8 inch by 1/2 inch by length).

Source: Hastings Plastics Santa Monica, Ca.

5.2.4 Isopropyl Alcohol, reagent grade.

Source: Van Waters and Rogers Norwalk, Ca.

5.2.5 Masking Tape. 3M 209, Permacel P-70, or equal.

5.2.6 Gloves, polyethylene, disposable.

5.2.7 Masking Paper: St. Regis WPL-3

Source: St. Regis, Sherman Division Los Angeles, Ca. 5.2.8 Vacuum Bleeder Material. NN 121 synthetic cloth.

> Source: J. P. Stevens, Inc. Garfield, New Jersey

- 6.0 EQUIPMENT
- 6.1 Vacuum Pump
- 6.1.1 A heavy duty vacuum pump, capable of maintaining a minimum of 24 inches of mercury vacuum, shall be required as part of the drying equipment.
- 6.2 Laminating Mold.
- 6.2.1 The laminating mold shall be of aluminum construction in accordance with the design in drawings 77050 and 80025.
- 6.3 Polish Plates.
- 6.3.1 Chrome on Brass, mirror finish one side.

Source: Weiland America Inc. Orange, New Jersey

- 6.4 Anti-Static Bar.
- 6.4.1 3M Number 210 or equal.
- 6.5 Anti-Static Air Nozzle.
- 6.5.1 3M Number 902 or equal.
- 7.0 MANUFACTURING PROCESS
 - NOTE: 1. Do not handle polyolefin film or molded sheet with bare hands. Use clean, disposable, polyethylene gloves at all times.
 - 2. Film layup, mold and press polish plate cleaning, and assembly for molding shall be accomplished in a clean room, class 100,000 or better, in accordance with Federal Standard 209.
- 7.1 Film Layup.
- 7.1.1 Withdraw a roll of EK-500 film from stores and have slit to the required size. (A minimum of two inches greater than the final molded size has been found acceptable.)
- 7.1.2 One method of roll set-up for film takeoff is illustrated in Figure 1.

قدر ا

diesel the tid for it's a hindless internation

7.1.3 Wind a convenient number of plies of EK-500 film on a winding mandrel. (Fifty plies has been found to be a convenient number). Lay the EK-500 film on a clean piece of EK-500. Continue the winding and layup until the required number of plies are attained as shown below. Between successive layups blow off the film using an anti-static air nozzle.

Nominal Thickness (Inches)	Weight Ounces/Square Foot	Approximate Number of Plies of EK-500	
0.264	20.0	264	
0.094	7.12	94	
0.313	23.71	313	

When laying up the film, add ten plies of film to each side. These extra plies of film are to aid in preventing contamination and are removed prior to molding.

- 7.1.4 When the required number of plies has been attained, cover wrap the unit with clean, dry EK-500 film.
- 7.2 Deaeration.
- 7.2.1 Place wrapped unit on a flat plate. Place bleeder material around the edge of the unit.
- 7.2.2 Adhere vacuum bag sealer tape number 1191 to the plate approximately two inches outside and around the bleeder material.
- 7.2.3 Cut a piece of capron film at least six inches oversize, and lay up on top of the unit.
- 7.2.4 Remove the waxed release paper from the vacuum sealer tape and adhere the capron film to fit loosely over the unit. Make pigtails where there is excess capron.
- 7.2.5 Apply vacuum, 20-24 inches of Mercury, for a minimum of eight hours.
- 7.3 Trimming.
- 7.3.1 After deaeration, use a power shear and trim the wrapped, compressed unit to the required molding size. (The molding size is 0.031 inches less than the inside dimension of the mold.)

Leave the protective EK-500 film on the unit during trimming. Take all precautions to prevent contamination.

- 7.3.2 After trimming, immediately rewrap unit with clean, dry EK-500 film.
- 7.4 Drying.

- 7.4.1 Repeat paragraphs 7.2.1 through 7.2.4.
- 7.4.2 Apply vacuum, 20-24 inches of Mercury, for a minimum of twelve hours.
- 7.4.3 Care must be taken to keep stack edges square.

TT fin 'n night 'n "t internet i 'n ander internet internet internet internet internet internet internet intern Internet inte

- 7.5 Preparation for Molding.
- 7.5.1 Polish plates.
- 7.5.1.2 Thoroughly clean the press polish plates. Blow off all foreign material with an anti-static air nozzle. Clean the press polish plate with clean cheesecloth saturated with Isopropyl Alcohol. Wipe with clean dry cheesecloth and repeat.
- 7,5.2 Mold.
- 7.5.2.1 Thoroughly clean the mold using the same procedure as described in paragraph 7.5.1.2.
- 7.5.3 Assembly
- 7.5.3.1 Place one press polish plate in the bottom portion of the mold, polish surface up.
- 7.5.3.2 Remove the unit of EK-500 from under vacuum and transport to the clean room for stripping and/or weighing.
- 7.5.3.3 Remove the protective EK-500 film and the required number of plies evenly from each side, to achieve the nominal thickness/weight as shown in paragraph 7.1.3.
- 7.5.3.4 Place the EK-500 unit on the press polish plate.
- 7.5.3.5 Position a thermocouple wire in the unit, mid-stack, no more than one-fourth inch in from the edge. Secure to the mold with masking tape.
- 7.5.3.6 Place the second press polish plate on top of the unit, polish surface down.
- 7.5.3.7 Place the top portion of the mold on the top press polish plate. (A sectional view of the molding assembly is shown in Figure 2).
- 7.5.4 Molding
 - NOTE: All molding data to be recorded every five minutes on a run sheet as shown in Figure 3.

Page 6

- 7.5.4.1 Load the assembly into a cold press. (Platen temperature $\leq 100^{\circ}$ F).
- 7.5.4.2 Attach the thermocouple wire to the potentiometer.
- 7.5.4.3 Close the press and set the pressure to 2000 PSI.
- 7.5.4.4 Turn on the steam to the press platens until the mid-stack temperature reaches + 330° F. Maintain a mid-stack temperature of + 330° F, + 5° F -0°F for thirty minutes.
- 7.5.4.5 Turn the steam pressure off and hold for ten minutes.
- 7.5.4.6 Force cool the assembly by passing water through the press platens until the mid-stack temperature is < 100°F.
- 7.5.4.7 Release pressure and remove mold from the press.
- 7.5.4.8 Remove molded EK-500 unit from mold and identify with a serial number.
- 7.5.5 Quality Control.

ł

ij

A CONTRACTOR OF A CONTRACTOR O

- 7.5.5.1 Quality Control shall visually inspect the molded unit for voids, unbonded areas, general optical quality, luminous transmittance, haze and thickness.
- 7.5.6 Protective Coating.
- 7.5.6.1 Units acceptable from paragraph 7.5.5.1 shall have both surfaces coated with an abrasion resistant protective coating.
- 7.5.6.2 The materials and process used for applying the protective coating was developed prior to this contract and, as such, is not a part of this process specification. Protective coating capability, including the process and facilities, is currently available from several transparency fabricators.
- 7.5.7 Quality Control.
- 7.5.7.1 Quality control shall inspect the molded units with protective covers as specified in paragraph 7.5.5.1.
- 7.5.7.2 Acceptable units shall be machined to the triangular shape as shown in AMMRC Drawing CD-1, as follows.
- 7.5.3 Machining.
- 7.5.8.1 The molded unit is protected on each surface with WPL-3 protective paper.
- 7.5.8.2 The molded unit is band sawed one-inch oversize, to the approximate shape of the window.

7.5.8.3 The window is machined to final dimensions as follows.

- 7.5.8.3.1 To prevent delamination, a 0.125 inch thick sheet of acrylic is placed on each side of the molded panel. Sufficient pressure is applied to prevent slipping. Routing is then accomplished with an 18000 RPM hand held router using a 0.500 inch diameter, two flute carbide inlaid router bit.
- 7.5.8.3.2 The machined panel is then submitted to Quality Control.
- 7.5.9 Quality Control
- 7.5.9.1 Quality Control shall determine compliance with the drawing dimensions.
- 7.5.9.2 Quality Control shall determine compliance with Items 1,2,3,4 and 8 of Table 1.
- 7.5.9.3 Every tenth unit shall be tested to determine compliance with Items 5 and 6 of Table 1.
- 7.5.9.4 Compliance to Item 7 of Table 1 is to be determined by the Army Materials and Mechanics Research Center (AMMRC).
- 8.0 PACKAGING/DELIVERY

The completed unit shall be protected by sealing in a 0.002 inch polyethylene film envelope and delivered to the customer.

TABLE 1

MOLDED POLYOLEFIN FILM ARMOR

REQUIREMENTS AND TEST METHODS

Item	Property	Test Method	Requirement
1	Weight, Ounces/Foot ²		Paragraph 7.1.3
2	Light Transmission, %	ASTM D-1003	> 82.0
3	Haze, %	ASTM D-1003	< 4.0
4	Maximum Deviation, Line of Sight-Minutes of Arc	ASTM D-881-48	< 7.0
5	Resistance to Debonding	ASTM D-756 (Procedure E, _57°C Low Temperature)	Minimum of 5 Cycles without Debonding
6	Interlaminar Shear Strength, PSI	MIL-P-25690, Paragraph 4.6.9	> 1000
7	Ballistics, V ₅₀	MIL-STD-662	Maximum
8	Thickness	ASTM D-374	± 5%



• <u>*</u>.•

MOLDING ASSEMBLY

FIGURE 2

,

PRESS LAMINATION REPORT - EK500 FILM

The state of the s

• . • . . .

ş

فتصنعكم أمتم ومشر بالالاشتر المريمين ومرد

TRANSPARENT POLYOLEFIN FILM ARMOR

CONTRACT NUMBER DAAG-46-76-C-0034

UNIT NO		UNIT	SIZE	PRESS	DATE
LAY-UP DATA	-PLIES			BY	
. 0	R UNIT WEIGHT			GMS .	
DRYING CYCL	E-VACUUM		TIM	i	_TEMP
PRESS CYCLE	-PLATEN TEMP	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	PRESS NO.	
	PRESSURE			PSI	
MOLDING DAT	A-EXPERIMENTAL	RUN NO.			
TIME	PSI	TEMP	TIME	PSI	ТЕМР
Remarks	<u> </u>		µ		

LAMINATE-WEIGHT_____GMS.____LBS/FT²

APPENDIX F

DRAWINGS

AMMR C

μ. Έ

Ē

CD-1 Transparent	: Polypropylene	Film	Windows
------------------	-----------------	------	---------

SWEDLOW, Inc.

77050	Assembly -	Chase Mold (12" x	12") - AMMRC.
		Transparent Armor	Test Plaques

80025 Assembly - Chase Mola - AMMRC Transparent Armor Windows



こう こうごう ちょうちょう



A





	Army Nuterials and Mechanics Rewarch Center AD Thimited Distribution Watertown, Nassachusetts 021/2 Unlimited Distribution FILM REND POLYOLEFIN Unlimited Distribution FILM REND FILM REND	processing conditions for the large value convertantly brance survable for Arm, oriented polyphelin (thm into leagment resistant transparent armor survable for Arm, for Army aircraft glusting applications. The manufacturing process must produce a laminate with sufficient advession for eves deconding during thermal cycling and yet react a a laminate with sufficient advession for eves deconding during thermal the objective's required a second advession for the state armor survability performed an strengt advession for the survability or to a second law optimum process has been equal to the general label, and in the process, areas of further development have been identified.	Army Materials and Mechanics Research Center Ar. Tribution TriANSPARENT POLYOL FFIN Uninimited Distribution TriANSPARENT POLYOL FFIN TriAnstruct Annot TriANSPARENT POLYOL FFIN Uninimited Distribution TriANSPARENT POLYOL FFIN TriAnstruct Annot Saerlow, Inc. Saerlow, Inc. Saerlow, Inc. Arman Saerlow, Inc. Arman TriAnsparent Triansparent Carden Grove, Contract Prinan Dong diversit Triansparent Dong diversit Trianspa
--	--	--	--

a laminal strakture outling carries trakes trake were successfully performed and the completion of six major takes. These trakes were successfully performed and the general defettive of this project has been achieved. An optimum process has been established, and in the process, areas of further development have been identified.

•

2

100

ł.

.

,

rny Materials and Mechanics Research Center waterrown. Masselmostics (2)/2 TRANSTARENT FOLYOLEFIN FILM ARMOR Raiph C. Shelton Raiph C. Shelton Swedlow, Inc. 22122 Western Avenue Carden Grove, CA 9564 (212) Water Avenue (212) Water Avenue (213) Mater Avenue (213) Mate	AD Universified Universified Universified Examplation Key Words Armor Transparent Polyoletin Film Film Film Film Film Film Film Film	Army Materials and Mechanics Research Center Waterrown, Massachusetts 021/2 TRANSPATENT POLYOLEFIN FILLIA ARNOR Raph C. Shelton Swedlow, Inc. 1212 Western Anning all all August 1981 Garden Grove, CA 28645 Technical Report Anning all all August 1981 (AAG66-76-C-0014 (AAG66-76-C-0014) (AAG66-76-76-76-76-76-76-76-76-76-76-76-76-7	AD Inclassified Unimited Distribution Key Words Armor Transparent Paramor Film Film Film Film Film Film Film Film
Army Materials and Mechanics Revearch Center Waterious, MLSuchuseris 02172 TRANSPARENT POLYOLEFIN FILM ARNICR Rajph C. Shelton Seedlow, Inc. Svedtow, Inc. 12122 Vestern Aroue 12122 Vestern 12122 V	AD Unclassified Unclassified Unclassified Unclassified Exervised Armor Transparent Polyaletin Film Film 31 and Lannating of crucated and Lannated and Lannated An	Army M. renals and Mechanics Research Center Waterlown, Massachuse Its 02172 TRANSPARENT POLYOLEFIN FILVI ARNDR RILVI ARNDR RILVI ARNDR Seedow, Inc. 12122 Western Avenue Garden Grock, CA 92kg Garden Grock, CA 92kg 12122 Western Avenue Garden Group Garden Merch 174 Physics 103 1976 to February 23 Finish Report, March 10, 170 File Finish Report, March 10, 170 File Finish Report, March 10, 170 File Finish Report, March 10, 170 File	AD Unclassified Unlimited Distribution Key Words Armar Famar Polyolefin Faith I 191 Li

No. Copi	of es To
<u> </u>	Commander, U.S. Air Force Wright Aeronautical Laboratories, Wright-Pattersor
_	Air Force Base, Ohio 45433
1	ATTN: AFWAL/MLTN
1	AFWAL/MLTM
1	AFWAL/MLTE
1	AFWAL/MLTC
1	National Aeronautics and Space Administration, Washington, D.C. 20546 ATTN: AFSS-AD, Office of Scientific and Technical Information
	National Aeronautics and Space Administration, Marshall Space Flight Center, Huntsville, Alabama 35812
1	ATTN: R. J. Schwinghammer, EH01, Dir., M&P Lab
1	Mr. W. A. Wilson, EH41, Bldg. 4612
1	Metals and Ceramics Information Center, Battelle Columbus Laboratories, 505 King Avenue, Columbus, Ohio 43201
	Director, Army Materials and Mechanics Research Center, Watertown, Massachusetts 02172
2	ATTN: DRXMR-PL
1	DRXMR-PR
1	DRXMR-PD
1	DRXMR-AP
6	DRXMR-RC, Mr. A. Alesi

Contract 2

No. of To Copies Commander, U.S. Army Depot Systems Command, Chambersburg, Pennsylvania 17201 1 ATT'N: DRSDS-PMI Commander, U.S. Army Natick Research and Development Laboratories, Natick, Massachusetts 01760 1 ATTN: DRDNA-Z Commander, U.S. Army Test and Evaluation Command, Aberdeen Proving Ground, Maryland 21005 1 ATTN: DRSTE-ME Commander, U.S. Army Communications-Electronics Command, Fort Monmouth, New Jersey 07703 1 ATTN: DRSEL-LE-R 1 DRSEL-POD-P Director, U.S. Army Ballistic Research Laboratory, Aberdeen Proving Ground, Maryland 21005 1 ATTN: DRDAR-TSB-S (STINFO) U.S. Army Munitions Production Base Modernization Agency, Dover, New Jersey 07801 1 ATTN: SARPM-PBM-D Chief of Naval Research, Arlington, Virginia 22217 1 ATTN: Code 472 Headquarters, Naval Material Command, Washington, D.C. 20360 1 ATTN: Code MAT-042M Headquarters, Naval Air Systems Command, Washington, D.C. 20361 1 ATTN: Code 5203 Headquarters, Naval Sea Systems Command, 1941 Jefferson Davis Highway, Arlington, Virginia 22376 1 ATTN: Code 035 Headquarters, Naval Electronics Systems Command, Washington, D.C. 20360 1 ATTN: Code 504 Commander, Naval Ordnance Station, Louisville, Kentucky 40214 1 ATTN: Code 85 Director, Naval Material Command, Industrial Resources Detachment, Building 75-2, Naval Base, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19112 1 ATTN: Technical Director Headquarters, U.S. Air Force, Washington, D.C. 20330 1 ATTN: RDXI
No.	of
Cop	ies

Commander, U.S. Army Tank-Automotive Materiel Readiness Command, Warren, Michigan 48090 1 ATTN: DRSTA-EB Commander, U.S. Army Armament Research and Development Command, Dover, New Jersey 07801 ATTN: DRDAR-PML 1 1 Technical Library DRDAR-LCA, Mr. Harry E. Pebly, Jr., PLASTEC, Director 1 Commander, U.S. Army Armament Research and Development Command, Watervliet, New York 12189 1 ATTN: DRDAR-LCB-S 1 SARWV-PPI Commander, U.S. Army Armament Materiel Readiness Command, Rock Island, Illinois 61299 1 ATTN: DRSAR-IRE DRSAR-IMC 1 1 Technical Library Commander, U.S. Army Foreign Science and Technology Center, 220 7th Street, N.E., Charlottesville, Virginia 22901 1 ATTN: DRXST-SD3 Commander, Rock Island Arsenal, Rock Island, Illinois 61299 1 ATTN: SARRI-EN Commander, Advanced Technology Laboratory, AMRTL, Fort Eustis, Virginia 23604 1 ATTN: SAVDL-EU-TAS Commander, U.S. Army Mobility Equipment Research and Development Command, Fort Belvoir, Virginia 22060 1 ATTN: DRDME-V, Mr. E. York DRDME-U 1 Commander, Industrial Base Engineering Agency, Rock Island, Illinois 61299 1 ATTN: DRXIB-MT Commander, U.S. Army Electronics Research and Development Command, Fort Monmouth, New Jersey 07703 1 ATTN: DELET-DS Commander, U.S. Army Electronics Research and Development Command, 2800 Powder Mill Road, Adelphi, Maryland 20783 1 ATTN: DELSD-BC Commander, Harry Diamond Laboratories, 2800 Powder Mill Road, Adelphi, Maryland 20783 1 ATTN: DELHD-PP

DISTRIBUTION LIST

No. of То Copies Office of the Under Secretary of Defense for Research and Engineering, The Pentagon, Washington, D.C. 20301 1 ATTN: Dr. L. L. Lehn, Room 3D 1079 12 Commander, Defense Technical Information Center, Cameron Station, Building 5, 5010 Duke Street, Alexandria, Virginia 22314 Defense Industrial Resources Office, DIRSO, Dwyer Building, Cameron Station, Alexandria, Virginia 22314 1 ATTN: Mr. C. P. Downer Headquarters, Department of the Army, Washington, D.C. 20310 1 ATTN: DAMA-CSS, Dr. J. Bryant DAMA-PPP, Mr. R. Vawter 1 Director, Defense Advanced Research Projects Agency, 1400 Wilson Boulevard, Arlington, Virginia 22209 1 ATTN: Dr. A. Bement Commander, U.S. Army Materiel Development and Readiness Command, 5001 Eisenhower Avenue, Alexandria, Virginia 22333 1 ATTN: DRCMT DRCLDC 1 DRCPM 1 Commander, U.S. Army Aviation Research and Development Command. 4300 Goodfellow Boulevard, St. Louis, Missouri 63120 1 ATTN: DRDAV-EGX DRDAV-QE 1 Technical Library 1 Commander, U.S. Army Missile Command, Redstone Arsenal, Alabama 35809 1 ATTN: DRSMI-ET 1 DRSMI-RBLD, Redstone Scientific Information Center 1 DRSMI-NSS DRSMI-RLM 1 Commander, U.S. Army Materiel Systems Analysis Activity, Aberdeen Proving Ground, Maryland 21005 1 ATTN: DRXSY-MP, H. Cohen Commander, U.S. Army Troop Support and Aviation Materiel Readiness Command, 4300 Goodfellow Boulevard, St. Louis, Missouri 63120 1 ATTN: DRSTS-PLE Commander, U.S. Army Tank-Automotive Research and Development Command, Warren, Michigan 48090 1 ATTN: DRDTA-R 1 DRDTA-RCKM, Dr. J. Chevalier 1 Technical Library

1